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A letter from our CEO, Kabir Nath

Dear friends of COMPASS Pathways,

For years | watched COMPASS with interest and excitement as it took its first bold steps. Like many
others, | saw a young company with obvious passion and best of all a novel and exciting approach to
answer the urgent need for better mental health care worldwide.

In 2022, | was delighted to become COMPASS’s CEO, and joined a team every bit as dynamic, driven
and optimistic as | had expected. It's my privilege to continue the pioneering journey of our co-
founders, George Goldsmith and Ekaterina Malievskaia, and I'm delighted that COMPASS will
continue benefiting from their vision, with George as Chairman of the Board and Ekaterina as Chief
Innovation Officer and Director.

2022: evolution

2022 was a transformative year for COMPASS. As the potential of psychedelics to treat multiple
mental health challenges became a hot topic in clinical and public discussions, we matched this
growing interest with first-of-its-kind clinical evidence. The New England Journal of Medicine's
publication of our phase 2b trial data for investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy in treatment-
resistant depression (TRD) was a watershed moment on this new therapeutic frontier. And it came on
the heels of COMPASS being awarded the innovative medicine designation, the Innovation Passport,
for COMP360 for TRD. The Innovation Passport is the entry point to the MHRA's Innovative Licensing
and Access Pathway (ILAP), which aims to accelerate patient access to safe, financially sustainable
and innovative medicines.

Now COMPASS is sustaining momentum with the initiation of our pivotal phase 3 programme, which
will offer a deeper understanding of the safety, efficacy, and dosing methodologies for COMP3E0
psilocyhin therapy in TRD. You can read more about the innovation behind these trials in this report.
We also made meaningful progress in our research of COMP360 in other potential indications,
beginning a phase 2 trial in anorexia nervosa and continuing our phase 2 trial in post-traumatic stress
disorder.

2022 also saw encouraging signals of early efficacy from exploratory investigator-initiated studies
(115}, including in bipolar disorder, anorexia nervosa, severe TRD, and major depressive disorder.
COMPASS began supporting new [1Ss in bipolar and autism spectrum disorders as well, with the
latter the first-ever mechanistic study of psilocybin in autistic adults.

Meanwhile, we're creating the systems, expertise and processes necessary to support this new
approach to mental health care. We began training therapists for our phase 3 TRD trials, developed
innovative digital support tools for patients and therapists in our clinical trials, and continued our work
in developing machine learning, which has the potential to support the prediction of treatment
outcomes based on patient experiences with COMP360 so far.

Partnerships and collaborations are key to achieving our mission. With a view to transforming future
delivery of mental health care, in March 2022 we announced our partnership with King's College
London and the South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust to establish the Centre for
Mental Health Research and Innovation. We're also proud to have partnered with One Mind, a leading
mental health non-profit, to sponsor three "COMPASS-One Mind Rising Star Awards”™ which fund




three early career scientists pursuing research with the potential to dramatically advance the
understanding and treatment of mental health conditions, and to improve patient outcomes.

Finally, of course, we continued to develop our own potential. Companies are only as dynamic and
successful as their people, and it's a priority of mine to sustain the team's energy and enthusiasm that
has inspired me from day one. By remaining true to our culture and values, in 2022 we were certified
as a Most Loved Workplace® in the UK, based upon authentic employee feedback.

2023: acceleration

Looking to the year ahead, | expect COMPASS's work to be just as pioneering and exciting as last
year's. In 2023, we'll be squarely focused on our global phase 3 TRD programme, while continuing to
pursue other indications with equal urgency.

This year we will also increase focus on preparing for commercialisation. We'll build on our training of
research therapists and start training content development for commercial launch, and in the US,
we're starting to engage with potential commercial delivery partners in earnest. In short, we're taking
steps to prepare for potential regulatory approval of COMP360 psilocybin therapy and its introduction
into health systems, should our phase 3 programme validate the results of our phase 2b study.

Why we’re here

The urgent need for better mental health care drives us in everything we do. In 2022, our
accomplishments kept us on track to deliver on the vision of our co-founders. Our motivation and
passion continue to grow as COMPASS transforms from a start-up with a great idea, to a mental
health company with an evidence-affirmed pipeline and a clear plan to deliver.

There is nowhere else | would rather be and there's no company | would rather have joined.

Sincerely,

pyoN Powd

Kabir Nath




CERTAIN NOTE DISCLOSURES RELEVANT TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP”), as permitted by Statutory Instrument
2015 No. 1675, “The Accounting Standards (Prescribed Bodies) (United States of America and Japan)
(Amendment) Regulations 2015" and now amended by "The Accounting Standards (Prescribed Bodies)
(United States of America and Japan) (Amendment) Regulations 2022 (2022 No. 943)" and in accordance
with the UK Companies Act 2006. The Group financial statements comprise both the Consolidated Financial
Statements of COMPASS Pathways plc on Form 10-K and the certain note disclosures relevant to the

Group financial statements.

UK Statutory Disclosure Requirements

(i) Monthly average number of people employed:

Group 2022 2021
UK 108 69
Offshore* 43 19
Total employees 151 88
*Relates to employees located in the United States.
(i) Employee costs:
2022 2021
Group US $°000 Us $'000
Salaries and bonuses 25,281 18,299
Share-based compensation expense 13,123 8,639
Benefits* 1,913 1,081
Social insurance and social security costs 2434 1,563
Total employee costs 42,751 29,582

*Includes private medical insurance, life assurance, income protection and employer pension contributions.




(iii) Auditor remuneration
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Company's auditors.

2022 2021
Group US $°000 Us $'000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors for the audit of the
Parent Company and its subsidiaries and consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 511 447
Audit-related assurance services 177 407
Taxation advisory services e 6
Other assurance services 444 596
Total auditor remuneration 1,132 1,456

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”") have been the Group's auditors beginning in fiscal year 2018. PwC
operates procedures to safeguard against the possibility of their objectivity and independence being
compromised. This includes the use of quality review partners, consultation with internal compliance teams
and the carrying out of an annual independence procedure within their firm. PwC reports to the Audit
Committee on matters including independence and non-audit fees on a quarterly basis. The audit partner
changes every five years. The amount charged by the external auditors for the provision of services during
the twelve-month period under review is set out above. The Committee assesses the performance of the
auditors and is comfortable that PwC has operated effectively and a resolution to reappoint the firm as
auditors will be put to shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting ("AGM").




Independent auditors’ report to the
members of COMPASS Pathways plc

Report on the audit of the group financial
statements

Opinion
In our opinion, COMPASS Pathways plc's group financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its loss and cash flows for the
year then ended;

« have been properly prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(*US GAAP"); and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006,

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report”),
which comprise: the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2022; the Consclidated Statement of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity (Deficit), and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant

accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence
We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements.

Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

= All four of the group's components were deemed significant based on the proportion of the group's loss incurred by each
component. Each component therefore required an audit of its complete financial information. This, together with
additional procedures performed over consolidation adjustments at a group level, gave us the evidence we needed.




Key audit matters
+  Benefit from Research and Development (R&D) Tax Credit
Materiality

Overall materiality: US$ 4,554,000 (2021: US$ 3,573,000) based on 5% of loss before income taxes.
+  Performance materiality: US$ 3,415,000 (2021: US$ 2,679,000).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial

statements.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of

the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

The key audit matter below is consistent with |ast year.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Benefit from Research and Development (R&D) Tax

Credit

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the group Audit procedures to address the matter included (i)
recognised $14.4 million in benefit from research and evaluating management's assessment of the nature of the
development (R&D) tax credit. Management exercises activities performed by the company and their qualification
judgement in determining the nature and amount of for the R&D tax credit program (i) testing management's
expenses that qualify under the tax credit program, process for estimating R&D costs that qualify, (i) evaluating
including estimating the allocation of time spent on R&D the reasonableness of management's allocation of qualifying
activities. Management disclose the accounting policies expenses including determining the amount expected o be
applicable to the benefit from R&D tax credit in note 2 to realised based on relevant criteria outlined in the tax relief
the consolidated financial statements on Form 10-K. program, (iv) testing the completeness and accuracy of the

data underlying the tax credit calculations, (v) obtaining
evidence of cash received in respect of the prior year's claim
to support the assessment that the benefit will ultimately be
realised, and (vi) assessing the benefit from R&D tax credit
disclosures and accounting policies in the consolidated
financial statements. Based on these procedures,
management's assumptions were deemed appropriate and
no material errors were identified in the benefit from R&D tax
credit calculation.

How we tailored the audit scope
We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial

statements as awhole, taking into account the structure of the group, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry

in which it operates.




The group is structured such that the significant majority of the business is comprised of its UK trading entity, COMPASS
Pathfinder Limited and full scope procedures were performed over this entity. The consolidated financial statements are a
consolidation of four components, comprising the group's operating subsidiaries and centralised functions, all of which have
been deemed to be significant components based on the proportion of the group's loss incurred by each component. In
establishing the overall approach to the audit of the consolidated financial statements, we determined the type of work needed
to be performed at the components, with all significant components audited by the UK PwC firm with no use of component
auditors or required visits to overseas locations.

The impact of climate risk on our audit
As part of our audit we made enquiries of management to understand the extent of the potential impact of climate risk on

the group’s financial statements, and we remained alert when performing our audit procedures for any indicators of the
impact of climate risk. Our procedures did not identify any material impact as a result of climate risk on the group's financial
statements.

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for materiality.

These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line iters and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements, bath individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall group US$ 4,554,000 (2021: USS$ 3,573,000).

materiality

How we 5% of loss before income taxes

determined it

Rationale for The group is loss making, as expected given its status as an early stage biotech company which

benchmark applied | has not yet commercialised its products. As such, loss before tax is deemed to be the most
appropriate benchmark on which to calculate materiality, as this is the metric on which the group's
financial performance is assessed.

For each component in the scope of our group audit, we allocated a materiality that is less than our overall group
materiality. The range of materiality allocated across components was between US$ 3,643,000 and US$ 4,099,000.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope
of our audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of fransactions and disclosures, for example
in determining sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% (2021: 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to US$
3,415,000 (2021: US$ 2,679,000) for the group financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment
and aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount in the middle of our normal range was
appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
US$ 228,000 (2021: US$ 178,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.




Conclusions relating to going concern

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
included:

+ A review of management's latest cash flow forecast, in which we have assessed the forecasts for reasonableness,
understood the planned cash outflowsfinflows and considered management's previous ability to forecast accurately. We
also note that a significant proportion of planned expendilure remains under management's control for the foreseeable
future, therefore if cash were to run short, management have a number of options under which certain expenditure could
be reined back.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's
ability to continue as a going concern,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does
not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report hased
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the UK Statutory Strategic report and UK Statutory Directors' Report, we also considered whether the
disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain
opinions and matters as described below.

UK Statutory Strategic report and UK Statutory Directors’ Report
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the UK Statutory Strategic

report and UK Statutory Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
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In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did not
identify any material misstatements in the UK Statutory Strategic report and UK Statutory Directors' Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors are

responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to Companies Act 2006, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material
effect on the financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of
the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the
audit risk detailed within the above key audit matter section, as well as misappropriation of cash, misclassification of general
& administrative (G&A) expense to research & development (R&D) expense, and potential management hias in accounting
estimates. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

+  Discussions with management and internal legal counsel including consideration of known or suspected instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations and fraud, and obtaining legal confirmations from external legal counsel.

«  Reviewing minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors.

+  Obtaining direct confirmation from the third party contract research organisations (CROs) around the clinical trials being
performed on behalf of the group.

+ lIdentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations
impacting cash and R&D expense.

+ Challenging assumptions made by management in their accounting estimates, in particular around share-based
compensation, the research and development tax credit, and CRO expenses, accruals and prepayments.
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There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations,
or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete
populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases,
we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.fre.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

Use of this report
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’'s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do nat, in giving these opinions, accept or

assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the company financial statements of COMPASS Pathways plc for the year ended
31 December 2022 and on the information in the Directors' Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.

Sam Taylor (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Reading

22 March 2023
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Independent auditors’ report to the
members of COMPASS Pathways plc

Report on the audit of the parent company financial
statements

Opinion
In our opinion, COMPASS Pathways plc's parent company financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its loss for the year then
ended;

= have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and
applicable law); and

= have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report”), which
comprise: the Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2022; the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the notes to
the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section
of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We remained independent of the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the

financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Our audit approach

Qverview
Audit scope

+  The audit comprised only the audit of the parent company, COMPASS Pathways plc.
Key audit matters

« Valuation of investments and amounts due from group undertakings

13




Materiality

«  Overall materiality: £2 989,000 (2021: £5,071,000) based on 1% of total assets.
+ Performance materiality: £2,249,000 (2021: £3,803,000).

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the financial

statements.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in the audit of the

financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not

due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results
of our procedures thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

This is not a complete list of all risks identified by our audit.

Valuation of investments and amounts due from group undertakings is a new key audit matter this year.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Valuation of investments and amounts due from group undertakings

The market capitalisation of the Compass Group has fallen below the
net assets held by the parent company. This is considered a triggering
event which may indicate that the investment and amounts due from
group undertakings balances (which comprise the majority of the net
assets) may be impaired in the parent company’s financial
statements. Management disclose the accounting policies applicable
to investments and amounts due from group undertakings in notes 1
and 2 to the parent company financial statements. Because of the
uncertainties involved in a value in use calculation due to the early
stage nature of the Group, management assessed the market
capitalisation of the Group to be representative of the Group's fair
value (and therefore its recoverable amount), with the control
premium and costs to sell considered to be negligible and offsetting
each other. When comparing the market capitalisation of the Group to
the carrying value of the net assets held by the parent company, an
impairment charge of £245.8 million has been recognised against the
investment. The investments balance at 31 December 2022 is £18.7
million after impairment, while amounts due from group undertakings
are £279.3 million and are not impaired as the impairment charge has
been recognised fully against the investment.

‘We have performed the following procedures
over the impairment assessment which
management have prepared:

- Assessed management's impairment model
and calculation for compliance with UK GAAP
(FRS 102?, including an assessment of the
reasonableness of the fair value less costs of
sell approach adopted by management.
—Corroborated the inputs to the model and
validated these (o external sources or our audit
testing performed in other areas.

— Recalculated the impairment to be recognised
in the year as the excess of the parent
company's net assets over their recoverable
amount.

— Reviewed the disclosures in the financial
statements.

The methodology adopted by management and
the conclusions reached are deemed to be
reasonable and appropriate.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole, taking into account the structure of the parent company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which

it operates.
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The parent company is based in the UK and audited by the UK PwC firm with no use of component auditors or required visits to
overseas locations.

The impact of climate risk on our audit
As part of our audit we made enquiries of management to understand the extent of the potential impact of climate risk on the parent

company'’s financial statements, and we remained alert when performing our audit procedures for any indicators of the impact of
climate risk. Our procedures did not identify any material impact as a result of climate risk on the parent company’s financial
statements,

Materiality
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds for material ity. These,

together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures on the individual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Overall parent £2,999,000 (2021: £5,071,000).
company materiality
How we determined it | 1% of total assets

Rationale for We believe that total assets is the primary measure used by the shareholders in assessing the
benchmark applied performance and position of the parent company and reflects the parent company's principal
activity as a holding company.

We use performance materiality to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds overall materiality. Specifically, we use performance materiality in determining the scope of our
audit and the nature and extent of our testing of account balances, classes of transactions and disclosures, for example in determining
sample sizes. Our performance materiality was 75% (2021: 75%) of overall materiality, amounting to £2,249,000 (2021:

£3,803,000) for the parent company financial statements.

In determining the performance materiality, we considered a number of factors - the history of misstatements, risk assessment and
aggregation risk and the effectiveness of controls - and concluded that an amount in the middle of our normal range was appropriate.

We agreed with those charged with governance that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit above
£150,000 (2021: £253,000) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for qualitative reasons.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
included:

= Areview of management's latest cash flow forecast, in which we have assessed the forecasts for reasonableness, understood
the planned cash outflows/inflows and considered management’s previous ability to forecast accurately. We also note that a
significant proportion of planned expenditure remains under management’s control for the foreseeable future, therefore if cash
were to run short, management have a number of options under which certain expenditure could be reined back.
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Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of
at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the parent
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any
form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are
required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstate ment
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the UK Statutory Strategic Report and UK Statutory Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures
required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and
matters as described below.

UK Statutory Strategic Report and UK Statutory Directors' Report
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the UK Statutory Strategic Report

and UK Statutory Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2022 is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the UK Statutory Strategic Report and UK Statutory Directors' Report,

Directors' Remuneration
In our opinion, the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 2006.
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financial statements, the directors are responsible

for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the parent company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the parent company and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws
and regulations related to Companies Act 2006, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect
on the financial statements. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial
staterments (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to the audit risks detailed
within the above key audit matter section and potential management bias in accounting estimates. Audit procedures performed by
the engagement team included:

= Discussions with management and internal legal counsel including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud, and obtaining legal confirmations from external legal counsel

+ Reviewing minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors.

- Considering assumptions made by management in their accounting estimates, in particular around share-based compensation

and the valuation of investments and amounts due from group undertakings.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above, We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations that are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. Also,
the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using data auditing
technigues. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We
will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling
to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:

www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body in accordance with

Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Other matter

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of COMPASS Pathways plc for the year ended 31 December 2022,

]

. /’/ /f'

//?/L

Sam Taylor (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

Reading
22 March 2023
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UK STATUTORY STRATEGIC REPORT

All references in this Annual Report to “COMPASS,” the “Company,” the "Group", “we,"” “us" and “our” refer
to COMPASS Pathways plc and its subsidiaries. The Directors present their UK Statutory Strategic Report
on the Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
information in this document below that is referred to in the following table shall be deemed to comply with

the UK Companies Act 2006 requirements for the UK Statutory Strategic Report:

Required item in the UK | Company Response and where information can be found in the Annual Report on

Statutory Strategic Form 10-K, if applicable

Report

A fair review of the Part Il - ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
company’s business, Results of Operations. Specifically, management addresses research and development
including use of key (R&D) expenses, including benefit from R&D tax credit, non-cash share based payment

performance indicators expense and general and administrative expenses. Additionally, management addresses

liquidity and capital resources.

The Company monitors the aforementioned key performance indicators on a monthly
basis by analysing actual performance versus budget. We perform analysis of key cost
drivers to monitor Company growth and cash flows.

The loss for the year for the Group was £95 million (2021; £58 million). The Group has
net assets of £150 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: £209 million).

The loss for the year for the Parent Company was £227 million (2021: £1 million). The
Company has net assets of £283 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: £496 million).

A description of the Summary of the Material Risks Associated with Our Business.
principal risks and
uncertainties
Information on 2022
environmental matters (KWH)
Estimated greenhouse gas emissions from purchased electricity, heat, steam,
or cooling for our own use (KWH) 68,872

We have used estimates provided by our lessor in the UK to generate our disclosure of
emissions for the year. These include the purchase of electricity, heat, steam or cooling
through utility bills which are borne by our lessor, The Company considers that the
estimate of total greenhouse gas emissions from purchased electricity, heat, steam, or
cooling for our own use (KWH) is a suitable metric for its operations.

We have discussed the impact of our US operations on emissions with our US lessors
but they have not been able to provide relevant information for us to provide a
meaningful analysis.

The Parent Company has considered the use of the intensity ratio of total greenhouse
gas emissions per full-time equivalent employee, however do not believe this to be an
appropriate metric owning to our hybrid working model, for which we do not track
sufficient information to provide a meaningful analysis of.
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Information about the
company’s employees

Information about social,

community and human
rights issues

Description of the
company's strategy
Description of the
Company's business
model

Diversity

20

Part | - Item 1. Business - Human Capital Management.
As a mental health care company, we're dedicated to accelerating patient access to
evidence-based innovation in mental health. Our team is the key to our success, and we
believe it is essential to invest in building an engaged, diverse, supported, and
incentivised workforce who can help us achieve our vision of a world of mental
wellbeing. As of 31 December 2022, we had 181 employees. 134 employees are
engaged in research and development activities and 47 employees are engaged in
general administrative functions. We had 114 employees as of 31 December 2021 and
grew hy 59% as of 31 December 2022. As of 31 December 2022, 31% of our employees
are located in the US, while the remaining 69% are located in the UK.
The Group endeavours to impact positively on the community in which it operates
through various charity donations and other charitable events. The Group does not, at
present, have a specific policy on human rights. However, we have several policies that
promote the principles of human rights. We respect the human rights of all our
employees, including:

. Provision of a safe, clean working environment

*  Ensuring employees are free from discrimination and coercion

*  Not using child or forced labour

+« Respecting the rights of privacy and protecting access and use of employee

personal information

We also have a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that is shared with all employees
and which provides guidance on honest and ethical conduct and fair dealing with
employees.

Part | - ltem 1. Business.

Part | - Iltem 1. Business.

Appointments within the Group are made on merit according to the balance of skills and
experience offered by prospective candidates. While acknowledging the benefits of
diversity, individual appointments are made irrespective of personal characteristics such
as race, disability, gender, sexual orientation, religion, or age. A breakdown of
employment statistics as of 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Position Male Female | Other | Total
Company Executive Directors* 1 1 0 2
Executives / Senior Vice Presidents / Vice 19 11 0 30
Presidents

Other Employees 49 99 1 149
Total Employees 69 111 1 181
Non-Executive Directors 4 2 0 6
Total Employees and Non-Executive Directors 73 113 1 187
*includes our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Innovation Officer




Section 172(1) Companies Act 2006

The Directors are required by law to act in good faith to promote success of the Company for the benefit

of the shareholders as a whole and are also required to have regard for the following:

Section 172(1)
Companies Act
requirements

Company Response and where information can be found in the Annual Report
on Form 10-K, or elsewhere in this Annual Report, if applicable.

the likely long-term
consequences of any
decision;

the interests of the
Company's employees;

Part 2 - Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations.

The Group will need substantial additional funding to support our continuing
operations and pursue our growth strategy. Until such time as we can generate
significant revenue from sales of therapeutic candidates, if ever, we expect to finance
our operations through a combination of equity offerings, debt financings,
government or other third-party funding, marketing and distribution arrangements and
other collaborations, strategic alliances and licensing arrangements. Our inability to
raise capital as and when needed could have a negative impact on our financial
condition and ability to pursue our business strategies. There can be no assurances,
however, that our current operating plan will be achieved or that additional funding
will be available on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

Part 11l - Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. The
Board and Company management has a good relationship with the Group’s
employees. The Board maintains constructive dialogue with employees through the
Company's Executive Leadership. Appropriate remuneration and incentive schemes
are maintained to align employees’ objectives with those of the Group.

the need to foster the
Company's business
relationships with

suppliers and others;

the impact of the
Company's operations on
the community and the
environment,

Part | - Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks related to manufacturing and supply

Part | - Item 1. Business - Human Capital Management. Also refer to the

“Diversity” (page 20), and “Information on Environmental Matters” (page 19) sections
of this Strategic Report.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has 56 employees in the US and 125
employees in the UK, most of whom are ordinarily based in London. The Company
has adopted a hybrid working model.
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the desirability of the
Company maintaining a
reputation for high
standards of business
conduct;

The Board of Directors of COMPASS Pathways plc sets high standards for the
Company's Employees, Officers and Directors. Implicit in this philosophy is the
importance of sound corporate governance. The Group operates a Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics and provides mechanisms for whistleblowing and complaints,
which employees are required to read and acknowledge annually and to follow at all
times. The Audit and Risk Committee oversees the procedures for the receipt,
retention, and treatment of complaints received by us regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls, or audit matters, and the confidential, anonymous submission by
employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting, internal accounting
controls or auditing matters. We have also established a toll-free telephone number
for the reporting of such activity, which is +1 877 306 1965 or +44 (0) 800 032 5911.

the need to act fairly as
between shareholders of
the Company

The Board endeavours to maintain good relationships with its shareholders and treat
them equally. The Board values good relations with the Company’s shareholders and
understands the importance of effectively communicating the Company's operational
and financial performance as well as its future strategy. The Company’s website
provides financial information as well as historical news releases and matters relating
to corporate governance. Annual and interim results are communicated via press
releases, and are filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, as are
operational and regulatory press releases. Shareholders may also attend the Annual
General Meeting where they can submit questions to the Board.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Kabir Nath
Chief Executive Officer
22 March 2023
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UK STATUTORY DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of the Company present this report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the

Group as of and for the year ended 31 December 2022. The information in this report, including the

information that is referred to below in the following table, shall be deemed to comply with the UK

Companies Act 2006 requirements for the UK Statutory Directors’ Report:

Required item in the UK
Statutory Directors’ Report
Level of political donations and
political expenditure

Company Response and where information can be found in the Annual
Report on Form 10-K, if applicable.

Details of the recommended
dividend

Indication of the Group's
research and development
activities

Not applicable - the Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2021:
nil).
Part | - ltem 1. Business.

Indication of the likely

future developments of
the Group's business

Part | - ltem 1. Business.

Particulars of any post balance
sheet events

Name of all Directors and their
interests

There were no material events subsequent to the balance sheet date that require
disclosure in the financial statements.

The Directors during the year and up to the date of signing these financial
statements, unless otherwise stated, were:

Kabir Nath (appointed 1 August 2022)
George Goldsmith

Ekaterina Malievskaia, M.D., MScPH.
Jason Camm (resigned 17 June 2022)
Annalisa Jenkins, MBBS, FRCP
Thomas Lonngren

Linda McGoldrick

Robert McQuade, PhD

David York Norton

Wayne Riley

For a list of Directors at the date of approval of the financial statements, refer to the
Directors’ Shareholding table included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report, on
page 46 of this Annual Report, and the Company Information on page 2 of this
Annual Report.

Statement on Directors’ third-
party indemnity provision

The Company has granted a qualifying third-party indemnity to each of its Directors
against liability in respect of proceedings brought by third parties, which remains in
force as at the date of approving the UK Statutory Directors’ Report.

The financial risk management
objectives and policies of the
entity, including the policy for
hedging each major type of
forecasted transaction for
which hedge accounting is
used

Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk consist primarily of
cash and cash equivalents. The Company places cash and cash eguivalents in
established financial institutions in the currencies for which future expenditure is
expected to occur. The Company has no significant off-balance-sheet risk or
concentration of credit risk, such as foreign exchange contracts, options contracts,
or other foreign hedging arrangements: (2021: nil).
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The exposure of the entity ta:
Credit risk

Refer to Financial Statements in the 10-K, Note 2. Summary of Significant
Accounting Palicies — Concentration of credit risk.

piquidity risk _
Exchange rate and cash flow
risk

Part Il - Item 7. Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Part | - Item 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Related to Our Financial Position and Need
for Additional Capital

Part Il - Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk —
Foreign currency exchange risk.

Disclosures on purchases of
own shares during the year
Branches outside the UK

Nat applicable - the Group has not purchased or placed a charge on its own shares
in the year (2021: none).

The Group does not have any branches.

Note 2 in the Parent Company Financial Statements on page 65 outlines subsidiary
undertakings and their relative locations.

Going Concemn

At 31 December 2022, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
£118.3 million (2021: £202.4 million).

The Directors have reviewed and approved a forecast into 2024 and expect
that its cash and cash equivalents on hand as of the date of signing will be
sufficient to fund its operations and capital expenditure requirements for at
least the next twelve months from the date of signing. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that the going concern basis is appropriate for the
preparation of the financial statements.

Information on contracts of
significance

Information on corporate
governance practices

Except as otherwise disclosed in the Form 10-K (including the exhibits thereto), the
Company is not currently, and has not been in the last two years, party to any
material contract, other than contracts entered into in the ordinary course of
business.

Part lll - Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance. In
addition, our Board of Directors is committed to assessing its own performance as a
Board in order to identify its strengths as well as areas in which it may improve its
performance. The self-evaluation process, which is overseen by the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee, involves the completion of annual written
questionnaires by the Directors, review and discussion of the results of the
evaluations by both the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and our
Board, and consideration of action plans to address any issues.

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office
as auditors for another year. In accordance with Section 489 of the Companies Act
2006, a resolution proposing that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed as
auditors of the Group and Company will be proposed at the Annual General
Meeting.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on 2 June 2023. Further details will be
provided to shareholders in due course.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
("US GAAP") and the Company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland”, and applicable law).

Under Company Law, Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

+  select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. state whether applicable US GAAP have been followed for the Group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 102 have been followed for the Company financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

«  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and
Company will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s and
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and Company and

enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each Director in office at the date the Directors’ report is approved:

. so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group's and Company's auditors are
unaware; and

+  they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Group's and Company’s auditors are aware of that information.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(ll[_’_‘ /\A.-\/\-‘IWV\,-‘/-

Kabir Nath
Chief Executive Officer
22 March 2023
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COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ANNUAL STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR OF THE COMPENSATION AND LEADERSHIP

DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Compensation and Leadership Development Committee (“Committee”) of COMPASS
Pathways plc (the “Company”), | am pleased to present our Directors' Remuneration Report

(“Remuneration Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company's Annual Report and Financial Statements, along with the Remuneration Report, will be

subject to an advisory vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting on 2 June 2023 ("AGM").

As a NASDAQ-listed health care company with operations in the United States and Europe we operate
within a global marketplace for talent. Given that the market for experienced health care executive talent
is competitive, particularly in the United States, the Committee references the US market as the leading
indicator for remuneration levels and practices. This will help attract and retain the executive talent
needed to successfully manage the Company's operations. Being consistent in this market view of the
United States as the primary benchmark for remuneration practices for our Executive and Non- Executive
Directors is key for COMPASS as it builds to deliver sustainable, long-term growth and shareholder value.
The Committee is also mindful to the general UK compensation frameworks and investor guidance when

making decisions on executive compensation.

Key decisions and activities in the year ended 31 December 2022
In the year ended 31 December 2022, the Committee has undertaken the following key decisions and
activities:
+ Considered the annual bonus objectives for the financial year ended 31 December 2022 for the
Executive Directors. These objectives were approved by the Company's Board of Directors

("Board”) in February 2022;
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Assessed performance against the annual bonus objectives for the financial year ended 31
December 2022 for the Executive Directors. The Committee, exercising discretion in this
assessment, considered, reviewed and approved the level of bonuses to be paid to the chief
innovation officer, determined according to performance against bonus objectives. The
Committee, exercising discretion in this assessment, considered, reviewed and recommended to
the Board the level of bonuses to be paid to the Executive Directors who served as Chief
Executive Officers during 2022, determined according to performance against bonus objectives.
The Board accepted this recommendation and such amounts have been included within this

Annual Report and Financial Statements;

Reviewed the AON report on employee salaries and equity guidelines, and supported the action

plan proposed by management;

Served as the administrator for the Company’s 2020 Employee Share Purchase Plan (the

“ESPP") and 2020 Share Option and Incentive Plan (the “2020 Plan”);
Considered and approved awards of share options and restricted share units to employees; and

Benchmarked and reviewed healthcare and other benefits packages offered to US employees to

ensure compensation is competitive in the US market to attract and retain employees.

The Company has made substantial progress during 2022, including:
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Transitioned to a phase Ill company and launched a phase Il programme in treatment resistant

depression (“TRD"), the first ever phase Il programme of psilocybin, a unique achievement;

Launched a phase Il programme in anorexia nervosa, an area of critical unmet need with no
FDA-approved pharmaceutical treatments available and high mortality rate for patients suffering

from anorexia nervosa;

Advanced our preparations for a successful and scalable commercial launch of COMP360

therapy that will support access for as many patients as possible;

Developed a high-performing team and a mission-driven organisation committed to the highest

standards of quality and compliance; and




+  Progressed its development of a pipeline of new drug and technology assets to increase the

value of COMPASS while demonstrating commitment to transforming mental health.

This has been a year of significant milestones for the Company and its employees. | hope that you find
the information in this report helpful, and | look forward to addressing questions you may have and to your

support at the Company's AGM.

Yours faithfully,
Dr Annalisa Jenkins, MBBS, FRCP

Chair of the Compensation and Leadership Development Committee

22 March 2023
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REMUNERATION POLICY

This part of the Remuneration Report sets out the remuneration policy for the Company. The current
Directors’ Remuneration Policy (the “Policy”) was approved by shareholders in a binding vote at the
AGM held on 22 June 2021, It took effect from the date of approval and applies for a period of three
years until 2024, At the 2022 annual general meeting of shareholders, 88.1% of shareholders voted in
favour of the proposal to receive and approve, as a non-binding advisory resolution, the U.K. statutory
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2021, with 0.1% voted against and

11.8% withheld from such proposal.
Key considerations when determining the Policy
The Policy was designed by the Committee with a number of specific principles in mind:

+ attract, retain and motivate high calibre Senior Management and focus them on the delivery of

the Company's strategic and business objectives;

+ encourage a corporate culture that promotes the highest level of integrity, teamwork and ethical

standards;

*  be competitive against appropriate market benchmarks (being predominantly the US biotech
sector) and have a strong link to performance, providing the ability to earn above-market

rewards for strong performance;
*  besimple and understandable, both internally and externally;

* encourage increased equity ownership to motivate executives in the overall interests of

shareholders, the Company, employees and customers; and
= take due account of good governance and promaote the long-term success of the Company.

In seeking to achieve the above objectives, the Committee is mindful of the views of a broad range of
stakeholders in the business and accordingly takes account of a number of factors when setting
remuneration including: market conditions; pay and benefits in relevant comparator organisations;
terms and conditions of employment across the Company; the Company's risk appetite; the
expectations of institutional shareholders; and any specific feedback received from shareholders and
other stakeholders. In 2022, the Committee reviewed and updated the peer group used to benchmark

remuneration for Senior Management.
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The Directors identify any conflicts of interest at the beginning of each Board meeting and the beginning
of each Committee meeting. Mr. Goldsmith who served as Chairman and Chief Executive until August
2022 and continues to serve as Chairman of the Board, is married to the Chief Innovation Officer and

Executive Director, Dr Malievskaia.

The Senior Independent Director, Mr Norton and the Chair of the Compensation and Leadership
Development Committee, Dr Jenkins, have assumed the governance role for all matters pertaining to
the compensation of Mr Goldsmith and Dr Malievskaia. No conflicts of interest relevant to remuneration

have been identified to date.
The Policy for Executive Directors

During 2022 the Company had three Executive Directors, but the Policy will apply equally to any
additional Executive Directors who may be appointed in the future. The Committee annually reviews
the operation of the remuneration packages to ensure they are operating within an acceptable risk

profile and that they do not inadvertently encourage any economic, social or governance issues.
The total remuneration for the Executive Directors is made up of the following elements:

+ salary;

*  benefits;

* annual bonus;

* long-term incentive awards; and

*  Pension/401k contribution.

Long term incentive awards: The Company adopted the 2020 plan and the ESPP, on completion of its
Nasdagq IPO in September 2020. On 1 October 2021, the Company launched the Share Incentive Plan
(the “3IP") and the ESPP. Since the completion of the Nasdaq IPO, the Company has issued equity
under these plans and has issued an inducement grant, on such terms as are defined under applicable
NASDAQ listing rules, in connection with hiring of Mr. Nath as our Chief Executive Officer in 2022. In

the period 1 January 2020 to 18 September 2020, the Company granted options under the 2017 Plan.




Purpose and link to strategy

Salary Provides market competitive fixed remuneration that reflects the responsibilities of
the role undertaken, the experience of the individual and performance in the role over
time.

' Benefits Provides market competitive, yet cost-effective employment benefits.

Annual bonus

To incentivise and award delivery of the Company's strategy and corporate objectives
on an annual basis.

Equity Incentives

To align the interests of Executive Directors and management with long-term
shareholder interests and to attract, incentivise and retain staff, To incentivise and
recognise achievement of longer term corporate objectives and sustained
shareholder value creation. To effectively manage the Group's cash resources.

Pension

To provide a competitive and tax-efficient pension savings plan which complies with
at least the minimum contributions requirements of the applicable jurisdiction.
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' Sélary

Operation

Reviewed annually taking into account individual responsibilities, experience,
performance, inflation and market rates, The Committee will also consider the pay
and employment conditions in the wider workforce when determining Executive
Directors’ salaries. Where there has been a change in role, or the individual is new to
the role, increases could be higher. Salary increases are normally effective from 1
January each year. Salaries are periodically benchmarked against a relevant peer
group of biotech companies, most of which are listed on Nasdaq, with others listed on
European stock exchanges, with a similar stage of clinical development, and similar
market capitalisation or net assets.

Benefits

Far Executive Directors this includes private medical insurance and life insurance.
Other employment benefits may be provided from time to time on similar terms as
those of other employees. If an Executive Director is based outside the UK additional
benefits and assistance with relocation may be provided which reflect local market
norms or legislation. Any reasonable business-related expenses can be reimbursed,
including tax there-on.

Annual bonus

'Equity Incentives

[Pension/401(k)

Annual bonus performance targets are set at the start of the year by the Board and
performance against objectives is assessed by the Compensation and Leadership
Development Committee after the end of the relevant financial year. Bonuses are paid
in cash after the award has been approved by the Committee and, as applicable for
the Chief Executive Officer, the Board.

Long-term equity incentive awards are granted annually under the 2020 Plan. The
awards have time-based vesting conditions and vest over a period of at least three
years and may include a mix of share options, restricted share units, performance
shares and other awards available for issuance under the 2020 Plan. Awards vest in
accordance with the vesting schedule set for the relevant award in its equity
agreement.

Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the SIP and ESPP under the same
conditions as other employees. The SIP and ESPP generally allow employees to
save a portion (up to a specified maximum) of their salary over a six-month savings
period and at the end of the savings period, shares will automatically be purchased at
the lower of the opening and closing price of the shares for the saving period minus a
15% discount.

The Committee maintains discretion over the types and terms of equity awards
granted.

Executive Directors are el'i'gib\e to join a defined contribution pension scheme. Only
base salary is pensionable. Dr Malievskaia and Mr Goldsmith have opted out of
pension arrangements while Mr Nath receives company 401k contributions.
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Maximum potential value

Salary

The current base salary of the Executive Directors is set out in the application of
policy section of the Remuneration Report. Whilst there is no prescribed formulaic
maximum, any increases will take into account prevailing market and economic
conditions and the approach to employee pay throughout the organisation. Base
salary increases are awarded at the discretion of the Committee; however, salary
increases will normally be no greater than the general increase awarded to the
wider workforce, in percentage of salary terms. However, a higher increase may
be made where an individual had been appointed to a new role at below-market
salary while gaining experience. Subsequent demonstration of strong performance
may result in a salary increase which is higher than that awarded to the wider
waorkforce.

Benefits

The value of each benefit is not predetermined and is typically based upon the
cost to the Company of providing said benefit which will vary from year to year
based on the cost from third-party providers.

Annual bonus

The maximum payable to an Executive Director is 125% of the target bonus level
for each Executive Director. The target bonus level for the Chief Executive Officer
is 60% of base salary (55% in 2021) and Chief Innovation Officer is 45% (45% in
2021) of hase salary.

Equity Incentives

The Company initially reserved 2,074,325 of its ordinary shares for the issuance of
awards under the 2020 Plan. The 2020 Plan provides that the number of shares
reserved and available for issuance under the plan will automatically increase
each 1 January, beginning on 1 January 2022, by up to 4% of the outstanding
number of ordinary shares on the immediately preceding 31 December, or such
lesser number of shares as determined by our Compensation and Leadership
Development Committee. This number is subject to adjustment in the event of a
sub-division, consolidation, share dividend or other change in our capitalisation.
The total number of ordinary shares that may be issued under the 2020 Plan was
3,755,120 shares as of 31 December 2022, of which 667,802 shares remained
available for future grant.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company granted
options to purchase 2,120,783 and 1,043,702 ordinary shares under the 2020
Plan to employees and non-employees, respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company granted options to purchase 600,000 shares to the
Company’'s new Chief Executive Officer as an inducement grant, as such term is
defined under applicable NASDAQ listing rules.

Pension/401(k)

For the pension, the maximum contribution, cash supplement (or combination
thereof) payable by the Company is 3% of salary, which is at the same level as the
general workforce. For the 401(k) defined contribution plan available to
employees, including Executive Directors, in the United States, the Company
match is equal to 100% of the amount an employee contributes to the 401(k) plan
for each payroll period up to a maximum of 4% of cash compensation earned by
such employee.




Performance metrics

Salary The overall performance of the individual and Company, including against individual
performance objectives, is a key determinant for salary increases.

Benefits None.

Annual bonus Operational targets related to research and development, business development,
financial goals and commercial goals are discussed with the Compensation and
Leadership Development Committee and set at the start of the year by the Board.
Details of the performance measures for the current year are provided in the
Remuneration Report, subject to any nondisclosure on the basis of commercially-
sensitive information. The payment of any bonus is at the absolute discretion of the
Committee which has the discretion to override out-turn of the bonus if appropriate
to do so, including but not limited to factors such as the underlying financial and
operational performance of the Company and individual performance.

Equity Incentives | Vesting may be on a time-phased basis or subject to performance conditions, as
determined at the discretion of the Committee. During the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Company granted equity awards with time-phased
vesting.

Pension/401(k) MNone.

The Committee operates the annual bonus and 2020 Plan, in accordance with their rules, and where
relevant, NASDAQ listing rules. To maintain an efficient administrative process, the Committee retains

the following discretion relating to remuneration:
a. the eligibility to participate in the plans;
b. thetiming of grant of awards and any payments;

c. the size of awards and payments (subject to the maximum limits set out in the Palicy table

above and the respective plan rules);
d. the determination of whether any performance conditions have been met; and
e. the annual review of performance objectives for the annual bonus plan.

In certain exceptional circumstances, such as a material acquisition/divestment of a Group business or
a change in the broader business environment, which mean the original performance conditions are
no longer appropriate, the Committee may adjust the objectives, alter weightings or set different
measures as necessary, to ensure the conditions achieve their original purpose and are not materially

less difficult to satisfy.

The Directors' service contracts and letters of appointment are kept for inspection at the Company's
registered office. The Company has a classified Board with each Director serving a three-year term;
each Director must seek re-election at the annual general meeting of shareholders at the end of his or

her three-year term.




Historical equity incentive awards

Awards which were granted prior to 18 September 2020 are disclosed separately in this
Remuneration Report in the Statement of Directors’ Shareholding and Share Interests section. These
awards remain eligible to vest, based on their original terms which are described separately in the

Directors' Remuneration Report.
Annual bonus

The annual bonus is designed to drive the achievement of the Company's strategic and corporate
objectives. These targets are agreed by the Board and selected because of their importance in value
creation for shareholders. Objectives are weighted for Executive Directors in proportion to the degree

of importance of that objective for the Company. The weightings are agreed by the Committee.
Remuneration on recruitment

The remuneration package for any new Executive Director will be determined by the Committee in
accordance with the terms of the Policy at the time of appointment (including salary, benefits, annual
bonus, long-term incentive awards and pension). It is recognised that in order to attract and recruit
talented individuals the Policy needs to allow sufficient flexibility with respect to remuneration on

recruitment. The following policies apply to the remuneration on recruitment of new Executive Directars:

Salary: Base salary will be determined based on the responsibilities of the role, experience of the
individual and current market rates. It may be considered necessary to appoint a new Executive Director
on or below market rates (e.g. to reflect limited Board experience). In such circumstances, phased
increases above those of the wider workforce may be required over an appropriate time period, to bring

the salary to the desired market level, subject to the continued development in the role.

Annual bonus: The ongoing annual bonus maximum will be in line with that outlined in the policy table
for existing Executive Directors, pro-rated to reflect the period of service. Depending on the timing or
nature of an appointment it may be necessary to set different initial performance measures and targets

for the first year of appointment.

Long-term incentive awards: 2020 Plan awards are granted in line with the policy outlined for existing
Executive Directors. An award may be made shortly following an appointment. For internal

appointments, existing awards will continue on their original terms.
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Benefits: Benefits provided should be in line with those of existing Executive Directors. For external and
internal appointments, where reguired to meet business needs, reasonable relocation support will be
provided. In addition, if it becomes necessary to appoint a new Executive Director from outside the UK,

additional benefits may be provided to reflect local market norms or legislation.

Pension/401k: A company contribution or cash supplement up to the maximum as outlined for existing
Executive Directors. Our Chair and Chief Innovation Officer have opted out of pension arrangements
while our current Chief Executive Officer receives a company contribution to his 401(k). Any new

executives will be offered a pension or 401(k), as applicable, at the same level as the general workforce.

Sign-on payments and buy-out awards: To enable the recruitment of exceptional talent, the Committee
may offer additional cash and/or share-based remuneration to take account of and compensate for
remuneration that the Executive Director is required to relinguish when leaving a former employer. The
Committee will seek to structure any such replacement awards to be no more generous overall in terms
of guantum or vesting than the award to be forfeited from the previous employer and will take into
account the timing, form and performance requirements of the awards forgone. Where appropriate, any
long-term incentive awards will be granted under the 2020 Plan, however, the Committee will have
discretion to make use of the flexibility to make awards under any relevant exemptions in the NASDAQ

listing rules.

For an internal Executive Director appointment, any variable pay element awarded in respect of the
prior role will be allowed to pay out according to its terms. In addition, any other contractual

remuneration obligations existing prior to appointment may continue.

The fees for any new Chairman and non-Executive Director appointments will be setin accordance with
the prevailing policy and at a level that is consistent with those of the existing Chairman and non-

Executive Directars.
Policy for payments on loss of office

The Company does not have a policy of fixed term employment contracts, however, the Directors are
required to retire and are entitled to put themselves forward for re-election at the AGM in accordance
with their respective Director class, as prescribed by the Company’s articles of association (“Articles of
Association”). The notice period for the current Chief Executive Officer's employment contract is 90
days, provided however, that if the Company terminates his employment contract without cause, the

Chief Executive Officer is entitled to a cash severance payment equal to one year's annual salary plus
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the target annual bonus amount for the year in which such termination occurs, for the Chief Innovation

Officer is 9 months, and one months for the existing non- Executive Directors.

The Committee's approach to payments in the event that an Executive Director's employment is
terminated is to take account of the individual circumstances including the reason for termination,
individual performance, contractual obligations, potential claims the Executive Director might have
against the Company and the terms of the equity incentive plans in which the Executive Director

participates.

Termination by notice from the Company: up to 12 months' notice, with the discretion for the Committee
to make a payment in lieu of notice for base salary, pension and other benefits that would otherwise

have been paid during the notice period.

Annual bonus: except for the current Chief Executive Officer who is entitled to his target annual bonus,
there is no automatic contractual entitiement to bonus or pro-rata bonus on termination, although this

may be considered at the discretion of the Committee.

Long-term incentives: whether any long-term incentive awards would vest and be exercisable upon loss
of office would be subject to the relevant plan rules under which such award was granted. The 2020
Plan allows vesting and exercise of awards in the event of death, retirement, ill-health, injury,
redundancy and any other reason at the discretion of the Committee. The Committee retains discretion
to determine the extent to which the award will vest, taking into consideration the circumstances.
Unvested awards normally lapse, although the Committee retains the power to determine, in
accordance with the “good leaver” provisions of the relevant plan rules, what proportion of unvested
awards will be retained and what proportion will lapse. In determining this, the Committee will give
consideration to the reason for leaving, the extent of achievement of performance objectives at the date

of leaving and may decide to pro-rate awards.

Change of Control: on a change of control, all unvested awards vest on the date of change of control.
Change of control provisions in the Chief Innovation Officer’s service agreement provide for a lump sum
payment equal to the value of salary, bonus and contractual benefits for 12 months if, within 12 months
of the change of control, their employment by the Company is terminated (other than for reason of
misconduct and certain other grounds, but including by way of constructive dismissal) less any sums

paid by way of notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Additional payments: the Committee reserves the right to make paymenis it considers reasonable under

a settlement agreement, including payment or reimbursement of reasonable legal and
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professional fees, untaken holiday and any payment for the settlement of potential claims against the
Company in the UK or other jurisdictions. Payment or reimbursement of reasonable outplacement fees

may also be provided.

The Directors' service contracts are available for inspection at the Company's principal place of

business:

Fora - Soho

33 Broadwick Street
Soho

London

W1F 0DQ

The Policy for the Chairman

The Board approves fees payable to the Chairman. The Chairman (who also occupied the role of
Chief Executive Officer until August 2022) does not participate in discussions in respect of his own

fees.
The Policy for the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The Board approves any compensation paid to the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Executive

Officer does not participate in any discussions relating to his own compensation.
The Policy for Non-Executive Directors

The Board approves the fees payable to the Company's non-Executive Directors.




Remuneration Purposeand Operation and Maximum Performance
Element link to Related
strategy
Chair's fee Toattractand The now Chair of the Board, Mr Goldsmith, served | No
retain a high  part of the year as Chief Executive Officer, and did
calibre not receive any additional remuneration in respect of
individual with | his duties as Executive Chair in 2022. His fee for
the requisite | 2023 was agreed by the Compensation Committee
experience without his participation. Any fees payable in the
and future will be reviewed by the Committee on a
knowledge. periodic basis against those in similar sized

companies to ensure they remain competitive and
adequately reflect the time commitments and scope
of the role. Any increase in fee levels may be above
that of the wider workforce in a particular year to
reflect the periodic nature of any review and/or any
change in responsibilities/ time commitments. The
Chair may also receive limited travel and/or
hospitality related benefits in connection with the
role. The Chair may not receive any consultancy or
other payments outside his fee.
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Non-Executive | Toattractand | The current fee levels are set out in the Non- |No
Director fee retain high Executive Director cash fees section of the

calibre Remuneration Report. Fees are reviewed on a
individuals periodic basis against those in similar sized

with the companies to ensure they remain competitive and
requisite adequately reflect the time commitments and scope
experience of the role. A Board fee is paid to each non-

and Executive Director. Supplemental fees may be paid

knowledge. to the Senior Independent Director and for
chairmanship and membership of Committees to
recognise the additional time commitments and
responsibilities of these roles. Any increase in fee
levels may be above that of the wider workforce in a
particular year to reflect the periodic nature of any
review and/or any change in responsibilities/time
commitments. If business needs arise, non-
Executive Directors may also be engaged to provide
limited consulting services outside their director
responsibilities and receive fees for those services.
Non-Executive Directors may also receive limited
travel and/or hospitality related benefits in
connection with the role.

Non-Executive | To provide The Company has historically awarded share No
Director long- | alignment options to all employees and certain Non-Executive
term incentive | with the Directors in order to align long-term employee
awards interest of interests with those of shareholders, and this will be
shareholders.  the case going forward for any new Non-Executive
Directors.

Motwithstanding anything to the contrary in the 2020
Plan, the value of all Awards awarded under this
Plan and all other cash compensation paid by the
Company to any Non-Employee Director in any
calendar year for services as a Non-Employee
Director shall not exceed £750,000. For the purpose
of this limitation, the value of any Award shall be its
grant date fair value, as determined in accordance
with the Accounting Standards Codification (ACS)
718 Compensation — Stock Compensation or
successor provision but excluding the impact of
estimated forfeitures related to service-based
vesting provisions.

Statement of consideration of employees’ pay and remuneration conditions elsewherein the
Group

The Company does not formally consult with employees when drawing up the Policy. However, the
Committee is made aware of employment conditions in the wider Group. The same broad principles
apply to the Policy both for the Executive Directors and the wider employee population. However, the
remuneration for the Executive Directors has a stronger emphasis on variable pay than for other
employees. In particular, the following approach is used for the wider employee population in the

Group:
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Salaries, benefits and pensions are compared to appropriate market rates and set at
approximately mid market level with allowance for role, responsibilities and experience.
When setting salary levels for the Executive Directors, the Committee considers the salary
increases provided to other employees.

An annual bonus plan is available to all employees and is based on business and individual

performance. Payments under the bonus plan are entirely discretionary.




ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Single total figure of remuneration of each Director (audited).

The Directors received the following remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022;

Share-

Base Total variable Total fixed Total
Sal Bonus Dased Otes? remuneration remuneration remuneration
ey payments A RO =m
uss Uss uUss Uss uss uss Uss
Kabir Nath* 2022 243,123 145,000 — — 145,000 243123 388,123
2021 — — — — — o —
George Goldsmith
(Executive Chairman) 2022 179,843 123,642 37,355 17,994 123,642 235,192 358,834
Gearge Goldsmith
(CEO) 2022 311,484 171,321 52,296 22,076 171,321 385,866 557,187
2021 584,658 321,562 846,545 37,304 321,562 1,468,507 1,790,069
Ekaterina Malievskaia 2022 378,563 163,549 89,651 25802 163,549 494,016 657,565
2021 412,700 231,800 739,056 24,635 231,800 1,176,291 1,408,191
David Norton 2022 60,620 — 20,426 — = 81,046 81,046
2021 62,249 — 265,031 — - 327,280 327,280
Florian Brand?® 2022 — - - —_ _ —_ —_
2021 13,119 — — — — 13,119 13,119
Jason Camm? 2022 - — - — — — —
2021 — — — — — — —
Annalisa Jenkins 2022 59,382 - 47,601 —_ —_ 106,983 106,983
2021 66,032 — 302,913 — — 368,945 368,945
Thomas Lonngren 2022 45,692 — 47,601 —_ — 93,293 93,293
2021 49,535 — 258,663 — — 308,198 308,198
Robert McQuade 2022 54,434 — — — — 54,434 54,434
2021 60,529 — — —_ —_— 60,529 60,529
Linda McGoldrick 2022 56,290 - —_— — -_— 56,290 56,290
2021 62,077 — 81,691 — - 143,768 143,768
Wayne Riley’ 2022 46,393 - —_ —_ _ 46,393 46,393
2021 38.531 = = = = 38,531 38,531
Total 2022 1435834 603,512 294,930 65872 603,512 1,796,636 2,400,148
2021 1,349430 553,362 2,493,899 61.939 553,362 3,905,268 4,458,630

*Relates to health insurance, life assurance and income protection insurance

! Kabir Nath was appointed as CEO and Director, effective from 1 August 2022
“0n 14 May 2021, Florian Brand resigned from the position of Director.

% 0n 1 February 2021, Jason Camm permanently waived any and all compensation which he was entitled to receive. Shares
issued in 2020 were subsequently cancelled in 2021, On 19 April 2022, Jason Camm notified the Company of his intent not to
stand for re-election as a Director of the Company at the Company’s 2022 annual general meeting of shareholders and his term
as a Director ended on 16 June 2022 (the date of the 2022 annual general meeting of shareholders).
“Wayne Riley was appointed as Director, effective from 31 March 2021,

42




i) The value of share-based payment awards to Directors is defined as the intrinsic value of the

shares. The table reflecis the total share-based expense recognised in 2022.

iiy No Director is currently in receipt of a pension contribution. Each Director is either not entitled to a
pension payment or has opted out of receiving it. There are no payments made in lieu of pension

entitlement.

lllustrations of Base Case, Expected, and Maximum remuneration for the Executive Directors

Scenarios (unaudited)

The charts set out for illustrative purposes only, what annual remuneration the Company expects the
Executive Directors to obtain as a base case, expected and maximum achievement of performance

targets with respect to the year ending 31 December 2023.

The assumptions used in the calculations are set out below:

Chief Executive Chief Innovation

2023 Officer Chairman Officer
Uss Uss uss

Base salary 594,500 96,824 370,352
Benefits — 40,070 25,802
Fair value of restricted share
units (granted on 2 February
2023) 273,420 —] 126,945
Base case 867,920 136,894 523,099
Expected bonus (assumed at
100% of target) 356,700 — 166,658
Expected case 1,224,620 136,894 689,757
Maximum bonus (paid at 125%
of target) 445,875 —_ 208,323
Maximum bonus case 1,313,795 136,894 731,422

i) Base case; this illustration assumes fixed base case, as set out above. This illustration

assumes no annual bonus;

ii) Expected case: this illustration assumes the base case remuneration set out above, plus an
annual bonus. We make the assumption that each Executive Director will receive the target
annual bonus of 60% in the case of the Chief Executive Officer (2021: 60%) and 45% (2021:
45%) in the case of the Chief Innovation Officer of base salary, being $356,700 and $166,658

respectively; and




i) Maximum bonus case: this illustration assumes the base case remuneration set out above,
plus the maximum annual bonus of 125% x the target bonus percentage of base salary, being
$445,875 for the year in respect of the Chief Executive Officer and $208,323 for the year in

respect of the Chief Innovation Officer.
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The Group has used the exchange rate $0.8262:£1.00, the rate at 31 December 2022,

Annual performance bonus

In 2022 the CEO, Executive Chairman (who served as CEO until 1 August 2022) and CIO’s annual
bonus outcome of 100% of target for each, resulted in a total bonus pay out for the financial year
ended 31 December 2022 of 60% of the CEO's base salary, 60% of the Executive Chair's base salary

and 45% of the CIO's base salary in each case for the period.

During a series of meetings in January and February 2023, the Compensation and Leadership
Development Committee evaluated achievement of the 2022 corporate objectives and each Executive
Director’s individual performance. The Compensation and Leadership Development Committee
reviewed the following corporate goals and based on the results approved an overall average 100%

achievement level of the 2022 corporate objectives as the Company achieved its target goals.
The goals were as follows:
Corporate Goals and Achievements

* Launched a phase Ill programme in TRD and phase Il programmes in PTSD and anorexia

nenosa,




+  Established a robust pipeline of new drug and technology assets to increase the value of

COMPASS while demonstrating commitment to transforming mental health;

+  Prepared for a successful and scalable commercial launch of COMP360 therapy that will

ensure access for as many patients as possible; and

+ Developed a high-performing team and a mission-driven organisation committed to the

highest standards of quality and compliance.
Long term incentive awards during the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the 2022 performance year, Mr Goldsmith and Ms Malievskaia were awarded options and
restricted share units ("RSUs") grants on 1 February 2022. Mr Nath was awarded options and RSUs

upon his hire date 1 August 2022.
Payments to past Directors (audited)

There were no payments to past Directors made during the financial year ending 31 December 2022

(2021: nil).
Payments for Loss of Office (audited)

There were no payments made to Directors for Loss of Office during the financial year ending 31
December 2022 (2021: nil) and no such payments have been made in the period between 31

December 2022 and the date of this report.
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Statement of Directors’ Shareholding and Share Interests (audited)

The Company does not have a formal policy on Executive or Non-Executive Director shareholdings.

The table below details the total number of shares owned (including their beneficial interests), the

total number of share options held, the number of share options vested but not yet exercised and the

total number of RSUs held as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022, respectively:

Shares Share options RSUs
Beneficially | Total share
owned options at | Unvested Total RSUs | Unvested
shares at31 |31 without at 31 without
December December performance | Vested but | December | performance | Vested but
2021 2021 2021 conditions unexercised | 2021 conditions | unexercised
Executive Directors
George Goldsmith | 4,318,572 113,600 78,100 35,500 44,710 30,739 e
Ekaterina
Malievskaia 4,308,510 85,200 58,575 26,625 44,710 30,739 —
Non-Executive Directors
David Norton 127,984 147,404 26,839 120,565 23,740 16,321 —
Florian Brand — 5,396 — 5,396 — — —
Jason Camm — — — —_ —_ — i
Annalisa Jenkins 113,054 132,474 26,839 105,635 23,740 16,321 —
Thomas Lonngren | 123,919 72,095 37,225 34,870 —_ — —
Robert McQuade 1,600,523 33,584 27,738 5,846 — — —
Linda McGoldrick | 6,745 33,584 26,839 6,745 — — —_
Wayne Riley — 24,000 24,000 — — — —

*Includes 1,594,677 ordinary shares held by McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC. Dr.

MeQuade,

the Officer and Manager of McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC, may be deemed to have voting and
investment power over the shares beneficially owned by McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC, but

he disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

Shares Share options RSUs

Beneficially | Total share

owned options at Unvested Total RSUs | Unvested

shares at 31 | 31 without at 31 without

December December [ performance | Vested but December | performance | Vested but
2022 2022 2022 conditions unexercised | 2022 conditions unexercised
Executive Directors
Kabir Nath — 600,000 600,000 e 50,000 50,000 .
George Goldsmith | 4,397,499 | 286,600 186,658 90,942 73,710 48,561 e
Ekaterina
Malievskaia 4,349,794 160,200 96,650 63,550 57,710 32,561 —_
Non-Executive Directors
David Norton 150,314 164,404 26,443 137,961 23,740 10,386 =
Annalisa Jenkins 135,384 149,474 26,443 123,031 23,740 10,386 —
Thomas Lonngren | 149,137 89,095 30,894 58,201 — — —
Robert McQuade 1,618,818* 50,584 27,342 23,242 = — .
Linda McGoldrick 25,040 50,584 26,443 24,141 — — —
Wayne Riley 11,500 45,250 34,750 10,500 — — —

*Includes 1,594,677 ordinary shares held by McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC. Dr. McQuade,
the Officer and Manager of McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC, may be deemed to have voting and
investment power over the shares beneficially owned by McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC, but
he disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares,
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The interests of the Directors in the Company's share options and RSUs as at 31 December 2022 is

as follows:
Price
per Granted | Exercised Cancelled Date fram
Date of Share during during Vested | during the which
Directar grant o] Type | ouowzo22| theyear | theyear | inyear | period | 3101202022 | exercisable | Expiry date
Kabir Nath owonizozz| 1494 | opion | — 600,000 | — — — eo0.000 | oupaeozz | avovizose
01/08/2022 | 0.01 RSy ~ so000 | — — 50,000 ovosizozz | ovoarzozs
George 181002020 1685 | opton | 113800 | — - 28400 | — 113600 | 18092020 | 18002030
Gold=mith) owozz02z| 1575 | opion | — 173,000 | — 30z | — 173000 | owozeozz | swousozz
30062020 | D01 RSU 30,730 — — 11178 | — 19,561 OLOB/2024
ou0ziz022 | oo RSU — 29,000 | — — - 29,000 ouozizozz | owozrzoze
Ekaterina 181092020 1585 | Option | 85,200 - 21,300 | — 85,200 18092020 | 1earz0a0
Malievskaia owozzoez| 1575 | opten | — 75000 | — 15525 | — 75,000 ouoeoz2 | 3L0u2032
3006/2020 | D.01 RSU 30,730 — — 1178 | — 19,561 121082020 | owoerzoza
010202022 | 0.01 RSU — 13000 | — — — 13,000 01022022 | 010212008
David Norton 200072018 1.40 Cption 09,040 — — — — 0,048 05/05/2018 | 2000712029
30/03i2020 | 240 Option | 14771 - - - — 14,771 05052018 | 3040312030
181092020 1685 | Option | 21,584 — — 5396 | — 21584 18/09iz020 | 18/09/2030
01102021 | 2087 | Option | 12,000 — == 12000 | — 12,000 01102021 | 300012031
160062022 | 0.44 option | — 17000 | — - — 17,000 160672022 | 150612082
300062020 | 0.01 RSU 16,321 — — 5985 | — 10,386 12i08i2020 | ovoarzoz4
Annalisa Jenkins | z0072019] 1.40 Opoon | 84,118 — — — — 84,118 OLUDE/R0LE | 20007/2029
30103/2020| 240 Option | 14,771 — - - — 14771 01062018 | 30i03r2090
u 1685 | opton | 21,584 — — 5396 | — 21584 18/09/2020
ovi02021 | 2087 | opion | 12,000 — — 12000 |— 12,000 01102021 | 3040812031
161062022 | 9.44 option | — 17000 | — — — 17,000 15/06/203
30/06/2020| 0.01 REU 16,321 — — 5,935 — 10,286 120802020 | OL0BI2024
Thomas 300032020 | 0.01 Option | 14,771 - - - — 14,771 18052018 | 3000302080
Lonngren 30006/2020| 0.01 option | 23,740 — =k 5935 | — 23,740 I0062020 | 3006/2030
181002020 1685 | Option | 21584 - — 5306 | — 21 584 1810012030
ouio2021 | 29.87 Ciption 12,000 — — 12,000 | — 12,000 01712021 300092031
LEMRIZ0ZE | §.44 Ciption — 17,000 -_ — - 17,000 16062022 LAME203E
Robert McQuade | zanuzozn| 32.66 Option 21,584 — — 5,396 - 21584 23102020 | 22102080
0v102021 | 2087 | Opton | 12,000 — —_ 12000 |— 12,000 V102021 | 300912031
161062022 | 9.44 option | — 17000 |— — — 17,000 16062022 | 1506/2032
Linda McGoldrick | ieomzo20] 17.05 | opion | 21,584 — — 5306 | — 21,584 1802020 | 1enarz0a0
0v102021 | 2087 | Option | 12,000 — — 12000 | — 12,000 ouiovzozt | soi0ar2081
161062022 | 8.44 Option | — 17,000 | — — — 17,000 1606/2022 | 150612032
Wayne Riley 3103/2021 | 35.25 | Opon | 24,000 — — w500 | — 24,000 31032021 | 30/0ar2031
161062022 | 9.44 option | — 21250 | — — — 21,250 16062022 | 15062032

All options are subject to service rather than performance conditions. The options vest monthly over 4
years with a 1 year 25% cliff for those granted after September 2020 and with a 25% cliff on the
earlier of 1 year and IPO for the June 2020 grants. Awards granted in March 2020 vested fully upon
IPO. Awards granted prior to March 2020 had fully vested prior to IPO. RSU awards granted in
February 2022 vest 25% per year for 4 years, and the options granted at that time vest monthly over 4
years. Mr Nath's option grant awards vest over 4 years with a 1 year 25% cliff and his RSU awards
vesit 25% per year for 4 years. For the Non-Executive Officers, the options awarded on 1 October

2021 vested 100% after one year and the options awarded on 16 June 2022 vest upon the earlier of
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the one-year anniversary of the date of grant or the date of the 2023 annual general meeting of

shareholders.

The beneficial interests in the Company's shares of the Directors and their families were as follows:

ORDINARY SHARES BENEFICIALLY
OWNED AT 31 DECEMBER 2022
NAME OF BENEFICIAL OWNER NUMBER | PERCENT
Directors
George Goldsmith 4,397,499 10.3%
Ekaterina Malievskaia 4,349,794 10.2%
Non-Executive Directors
David Norton 150,314 £
Annalisa Jenkins 135,384 *
Thomas Lonngren 149,137 *
Robert McQuade 1,618,818* 3.8%
Linda McGoldrick 25,040 *
Wayne Riley 11,500 *

*Represents beneficial ownership of less than one percent.

**Includes 1,594,677 ordinary shares held by McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC.
Dr. McQuade, the Officer and Manager of McQuade Center for Strategic Research and Development LLC, may
he deemed to have voting and investment power over the shares beneficially owned by McQuade Center for
Strategic Research and Development LLC, but he disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. These rules generally attribute beneficial ownership of securities to persons
who possess sole or shared voting power or investment power with respect to those securities and

include ordinary shares that can be acquired within 60 days of 31 December 2022,
Total Shareholder Return

The graph below shows the Company’s performance, measured by total shareholder return, for the
Company's American Depositary Shares (“ADSs"), which are listed on Nasdaq and each representing
one of the Company’s ordinary shares against the Nasdag Composite Index (Nasdag: CMPS vs NCI)
and the Nasdagq Biotech Index (Nasdag: CMPS vs NBI). We have selected these indices for this
comparison because the Company has been admitted to trading on the Nasdaq exchange and

operates as a Biotech and we consider them to be the most suitable comparator indices.
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Chief Executive Officer total remuneration history

2020 was the first year that the Company prepared a Remuneration Report. We have taken the
exemption not to disclose 5 years of history of remuneration and have chosen to disclose

remuneration history for 2020 onwards.
Percentage change in remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors

The year on year movement to 31 December 2021 of CEO, CIO and Non-Executive Directors pay

versus that of employees is disclosed in the table below.

Changein pay between 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020
Salary Annual Bonus Benefits

CEO % change 29 % 379 9 9
CIlO % change 14 % 54 % 4 9
David Norton 288 % n/g nig
Jason Camm n/g n/g nig
Annalisa Jenkins 277 Y n/g nig
Thomas Lonngren 277 % n/g n/g
Robert McQuade 277 Y n/g n/g
Linda McGoldrick 278 % n/d nig
Wayne Riley n/g B n/g
Employees % change 17 % 29 Y9 36 U
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The year on year movement to 31 December 2022 of CEO, Executive Chairman, CIO and Non-

Executive Directors pay versus that of employees is disclosed in the table below.

Change in pay between 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021
Salary Annual Bonus (1) Benefits (1)

CEO % change (2)* (1)%4 6 % (100)%
CEOQ % change (2)** (8) (2)9 7Y
Executive Chairman % change (2) 100 % 100 % 100 9
CIO % change (8)%4 (29)% 5 o
David Norton (3)%4 nig n/g
Annalisa Jenkins (10)%4 n/g n/g
Thomas Lonngren (8)%4 nig n/g
Robert McQuade (10)%4 nfg n/g
Linda McGoldrick (9)94 nig n/g
Wayne Riley (3) 20 nig nlg
Employees % change (37)% (27)9%4 (19)%'

*Represents Kabir Nath
*Represents George Goldsmith

1. None of the Non-Executive Directors are eligible for an annual bonus and none claimed any

benefits during the year.

2. During 2022, Kabir Nath joined as our Chief Executive Officer, effective 1 August 2022 and
George Goldsmith transitioned to Executive Chair. The remuneration received by Mr. Nath
and Mr Goldsmith in 2022 in respect of their roles as CEO were full annual amounts,
therefore for comparison purposes, the remuneration received in 2022 as CEO was pro-rated
as a result and was compared to Mr. Goldsmith's remuneration for the year ended 31

December 2021.

3. Wayne Riley joined the Board in 2021 and the remuneration received in 2021 was not a full

annual amount.

4. Year over year decreases in average salary are the result of fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates and as a result of the hire of additional employees at lower pay bands.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The Committee considers the Company's research and development expenditure relative to
remuneration expenditure for all employees, to be the most appropriate metric for assessing overall

spend on pay due to the nature and stage of the Company’s business. Dividend distribution




comparators have not been included as the Company has no history of such transactions. The graph
below illustrates the gross remuneration to all employees compared to research and development
expenditure in 2022 and in 2021. The Committee notes that research and development expenditure
may increase in future years as the Company continues to progress its COMP360 psilocybin therapy
into later stage clinical trials for the treatment of TRD and into trials for other indications, as well as

developing other neuropsychiatric therapies.

R&D vs Remuneration Expenditure
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Structure and Role of Committee and Approach to Remuneration Matters

The Committee is comprised of Annalisa Jenkins, who chairs the Committee, David Norton and

Wayne Riley. The constitution of the Committee is in compliance with Nasdaq requirements. The

members of the Committee are Independent Directors as defined in Rule 10C-1 under the US

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and under applicable NASDAQ listing rules.

It is the Board's belief that good corporate governance is integral to a successful business and the
Company finds instructive the standards of corporate governance prescribed by the Corporate
Governance Code for Small and Mid-Size Quoted Companies from The Quoted Companies Alliance
(the "QCA Code"). The Board believes that this corporate governance framework is an appropriate

guide for the Company, having regard to its size and nature.
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The Committee’s approach to remuneration matters is to enable the Company to attract and retain
talent, incentivise long-term value generation and effectively manage the Company's cash resources.
It is the belief of the Committee that this is best achieved through a greater emphasis on variable
rather than fixed remuneration, comprised of a mix of base salary and benefits, along with the
flexibility to appropriately reward and incentivise with variable pay and longer term incentives, as

described within the Policy.

When applying the Policy to Executive Directors, the Committee seeks to comply with the QCA Code
so far as it is practical to do so, having regard to the size, nature and business requirements of the
Company. Operation of the Policy will largely be compliant with the remuneration elements of the QCA
Code, but we are aware that in certain instances we will differ from the QCA Code. These instances
reflect differences in US market practice when compared to the UK, and the need to balance our
governance obligations against the importance of offering competitive remuneration packages in the

markets in which we compete and operate.

The terms of reference of the Committee can be found on our website at

www.compasspathways.com.
External advice

During the year, the Company engaged Aon Solutions UK Limited (Aon) to support management and
the Committee with advice on remuneration matters, in particular peer-group benchmarking of
Director and Senior Management remuneration and the grant of long term equity incentives under the
2020 Plan that became effective on the day prior to the listing of our ADSs on Nasdaqg. The
consultants were appointed by the Committee. The Company also engaged Aon to support
management in the valuation of option awards granted under the 2020 Plan. The Committee is
satisfied that Aon provides independent and objective advice, as Aon is a leading global professional
services firm and the Board confirm no conflicts of interest before each meeting. During 2022 fees of

$213,826 (2021: $76,957) were paid to Aon Solutions UK Limited (Aon).
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Proposed Application of the Policy for the Year Ending 31 December 2023

CEO remuneration

ii)

i)

Fixed elements of remuneration

With effect from 1 January 2023, the base salary of Kabir Nath in his role as Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) and Executive Director of the Company is $594,500 (£491,201)

per annum.
Variable elements of remuneration - Short-term incentives

The target bonus for Mr. Nath for the 2023 performance year will be 60% of base salary.
The performance objectives for Mr. Nath against which the Committee will determine the
annual bonus were approved by the Board in February 2023. The detail behind the
performance objectives is currently considered to be commercially sensitive as they relate
to the strategy that the Company intends to take with respect to the advancement of the
COMP360 clinical development program and the Company's financial and commercial
goals. To the extent that the objectives do not comprise commercially sensitive
information, the Company expects to disclose both the objectives and performance

against those objectives in next year's Remuneration Report.

Long-term incentive awards

Long term incentives for 2023 were awarded on 2 February 2023. The Company awards
share options to all employees in order to align long-term employee interests with those

of shareholders. On 2 February 2023, the Company awarded Mr. Nath 153,900 share

options and 25,200 restricted share units.

Chairman remuneration

)

Fixed elements of remuneration

With effect from 1 January 2023, the base salary of George Goldsmith in his role as non-

Executive Chairman of the Company is £80,000 ($96,824) per annum.
Long-term incentive awards

Mr Goldsmith will be awarded 25,500 options at the 2023 AGM for his role as Chairman.




CIO remuneration

D]

ii)

i)

Fixed elements of remuneration

With effect from 1 January 2023, the base salary of Ekaterina Malievskaia in her role as
Chief Innovation Officer (CIO}) and Executive Director of the Company is £306,000
($370,352) per annum.

Variable elements of remuneration - Short-term incentives

The target bonus for Dr Malievskaia for the 2023 performance year will be 45% of base
salary. The performance objectives for Dr Malievskaia against which the Committee will
determine the annual bonus were approved by the Board in February 2023. The detail
behind the performance objectives is currently considered to be commercially sensitive as
they relate to the strategy that the Company intends to take with respect to the
advancement of the COMP360 clinical development program and the Company's
financial and commercial goals. To the extent that the objectives do not comprise
commercially sensitive information, the Company expects to disclose both the objectives

and performance against those objectives in next year's Remuneration Report.
Long-term incentive awards

Long term incentives for 2023 were awarded on 2 February 2023. The Company awards
share options to all employees in order to align long-term employee interests with those
of shareholders. On 2 February 2023, the Company awarded Dr. Malievskaia 67,500

share options and 11,700 restricted share units.




Chairman and Non-Executive Director fees (audited)
Chairman fees

Mr Goldsmith serves as Chairman and does not receive any additional remuneration in respect of his

role as chair other than the total amounts disclosed above.
Non-Executive Director cash fees

Non-Executive Directors are paid a basic fee. In addition to the basic fee, committee fees may b

e paid

for chairing or membership of a Board committee. Non-Executive Director fees were reviewed in

2022.

Non-Executive Directors are eligible to receive the following annual fees:

2022 2021
#) 8

Annual Retainer for Board Membership*: 37,114
Additional Annual Retainer for Lead Independent Director: 18,657
Additional Retainers for Committee Membership:

Audit and Risk Committee Chair; 14,846
Audit and Risk Committee member: 7423
Compensation and Leadership Development Committee Chair: 9,897
Compensation and Leadership Development Committee member: 4,949
MNominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chair: 8,660
MNominating and Corporate Governance Committee member: 4,330
Innovation and Research Committee Chair: 9,897
Innovation and Research Committee member: 4,949

41,270
20,635

16,508
8,254
11,005
5,503
9,630
4,815
11,005
5,503

* for general availability and participation in meetings and conference calls of our Board of Directors,

to be paid monthly, pro-rated based on the number of actual days served by the Director during such

calendar month.

**Year over year decreases in salary are the result of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates

rather than actual decreases in compensation paid in GBP.

MNote: Chair and committee member retainers are in addition to retainers for members of the Board of

Directors.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Directors are allocated into one of three

classes. Each class of Directors serves a staggered three-year term. At each annual general meeting,

the successors of Directors whose terms then expire will be elected to serve from the time of election

and gualification until the third annual meeting following election. Directors of the class retiring at the
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annual general meeting shall be eligible for re-appointment by ordinary resolution at such annual
general meeting. The Company's Class | Directors are David York Norton, Ekaterina Malievskaia and
Wayne Riley, all of whom were re-elected at the 2021 annual general meeting. The Company's Class
Il Directors are Kabir Nath (who was appointed in August 2022 and therefore will stand for re-election
at the 2023 annual general meeting), Robert McQuade and Thomas Lénngren, each of whom were
re-elected at last year's annual general meeting. The Company's Class lll Directors are Annalisa
Jenkins, George Goldsmith and Linda McGoldrick, each of whom shall be eligible for re- election at
the 2023 annual general meeting. Pursuant to our Articles of Association, if the Director eligible for re-
election does not seek re-election and no other Director is elected to fill their respective position(s),

they shall be re-elected by default if the relevant Director is willing to do so.

Details of Directors’ service contracts or letters of appointment for the year ended 31 December 2022

are as follows:

Director Executive/NED Date of contract
Kabir Nath Executive 01 August 2022
George Goldsmith Executive 01 August 2022
Ekaterina Malievskaia Executive 17 September 2020
David York Norton NED 14 September 2020
Annalisa Jenkins NED 14 September 2020
Thomas Lonngren NED 15 September 2020
Robert McQuade NED 25 March 2021
Linda McGoldrick NED 14 September 2020
Wayne Riley NED 31 March 2021

The information in this part of the Remuneration Report is not subject to audit.
Directors’ Remuneration Policy

This remuneration policy was approved by shareholders in a binding vote at the AGM held on 22 June

2021.
Statement of consideration of shareholder views

The Compensation and Leadership Development Committee will consider any shareholder feedback
received and ongoing shareholder feedback throughout the year, when reviewing and applying the

Policy each year.

The broad topics discussed with shareholders in 2022 include peer groups and appropriate

jurisdiction for benchmarking Directors remuneration.




The guidance from shareholder representative bodies is also considered on an ongoing basis. The
Committee submits a its U.K. Statutory Directors’ annual report on remuneration for a non-binding,
advisory vote of shareholders at its annual general meeting of shareholders. At the 2022 annual
general meeting of shareholders, 88.1% of shareholders voted in favor of the proposal to receive and
approve, as a non-binding advisory resolution, the U.K. Statutory Directors’ Remuneration Report for

the year ended 31 December 2021, with 0.1% voted against and 11.8% withheld from such proposal.

Although non-binding, the Compensation and Leadership Development Committee will review and
consider the voting results when making future decisions regarding our Director remuneration

program.

The attendees of the Compensation and Leadership Development Committee meetings in 2022 were

as follows:
Director Attendance
Jason Camm* 3of3
David York Morton** 50f6
Annalisa Jenkins 6of6
Wayne Riley 6 of 6

*Jason Camm attended 3 of 3 meetings prior to stepping down from the Board effective 18 June 2022
**Dawvid York Morton attended 5 of 6 meetings due to scheduling conflicts.
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COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2022

Notes 2022 2021
(£000) (£000)

Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiary 2 18,659 264,487
Total fixed assets 18,659 264,487
Current assets
Debtors — Amounts falling due within one
year 3 281,264 242,543
Current liahilities
Creditors - Amounts falling due within one
year 4 (17,097) (10,865)
Net current assets 264,167 231,678
Met assets 282,826 496,165
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 5 341 336
Deferred share 22 22
Share premium account 217,957 217,177
Share option reserve 61,700 49,154
Retained earnings 2,806 229,476
Total Equity 282,826 496,165

The above Parent Company balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Parent Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006
from presenting the Parent Company statement of comprehensive income. The Parent Company net
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 was £226,669,846 (2021: net loss

£1,300,688).

The financial statements on pages 58 to 67 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2023 and
signed on its behalf by

k/\ﬁmﬁw\f

Kabir Nath
Director and Chief Executive Officer

22 March 2023
The notes on pages 61 to 67 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Registered number: 12696098
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COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Share Share
Share Deferred premium option  Retained Total
capital  share account reserve earnings equity

(£000)  (E000)  (£000)  (EODO)  (£000)  (E000)

At 31 December 2020 300 22 104,633 40,949 230,776 376,680
Exercise of share options 10 — 1,351 — — 1,361
Issuance of shares due to options

exercised in previous year 2 — 2) — — —
Issuance of ordinary shares 36 — 111821 — — 111,857
Directly attributable issuance costs — — (626) — — (626)
Share-based compensation — — — 8,205 — 8,205
Shares issued for options exercised in

2020 (12) — — — — (12)
Net loss for the year — — — —  (L300) (1.300)
At 31 December 2021 336 22 217,177 49,154 229476 496,165
Exercise of share options 4 — 276 — — 280
Issuance of ordinary shares — — 381 — — 381
Vesting of restricted stock units 1 — — — — 1
Share-based compensation — — — 12,546 — 12,546
Shares issued for options exercised in

2021 — — 25 — — 25
Issuance of ordinary shares under 2020

employee share purchase plan —_ — 166 —_ — 166
Shares tendered for withholding taxes — — (68) — — (68)
Net loss for the year — — — — (226,670) (226,670)
At 31 December 2022 341 22 217957 61,700 2,806 282,826

The above Parent Company statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPASS Pathways plc (the "Parent Company”) and, together with its subsidiaries ("COMPASS"), is a
mental health care company dedicated to accelerating patient access to evidence-based innovation in
mental health. The Group is developing psilocybin therapy through late-stage clinical trials in Europe and
North America for patients with treatment-resistant depression.

The Parent Company is a public limited company incorporated pursuant to the laws of England and Wales.
Our registered office is 3rd Floor, 1 Ashley Road, Altrincham, Cheshire, United Kingdom, WA14 2DT.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and applicable law) and the Companies Act 2006.
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Group financial statements comprise both the Consolidated Financial Statements of COMPASS
Pathways plc on Form 10-K and the certain note disclosures relevant to the Group financial statements.

The Parent Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions in preparing these

financial statements, as permitted by FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and

Republic of Ireland.”

- the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;

- the requirements of Section 3 Financial Statement Presentation paragraph 3.17(d);

- the requirements of Section 11 Financial Instruments paragraphs 11.42, 11.44, 11.45, 11.47,
11.48(a)(iii), 11.48(a)(iv), 11.48(b) and 11.48(c);

- the requirements of Section 33 Related Party Disclosures paragraph 33.7;

- the requirements of Section 26 Share-based Payments paragraphs 26.18(b), 26.19-26.21 and
26.23

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern hasis. See below for further detail. The
Directors have considered the appropriateness of the going concern basis in the Directors’ Report.

The financial statements and related notes have been prepared and presented in Pounds sterling (GBP).
The functional currency of the Parent Company is GBP.

The Parent Company has chosen to adopt the Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial
instruments.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
The Parent Company has adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Parent Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
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COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in the "Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates" section.

INVESTMENTS

The investment in the subsidiary relates to COMPASS Pathfinder Holdings Limited ("CPHL"). The
investment is recorded at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The cost is measured at the nominal
value of the shares issued. Where at the year end there is evidence of impairment, the carrying value of
the investment is written down to its recoverable amount.

GOING CONCERN

The Parent Company has incurred a net loss for the year after tax of £226,669,846 (2021: net loss
£1,300,688). The Parent Company has been formed to act as the holding company for the COMPASS
Group, which is focused on mental healthcare.

At 31 December 2022, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of £118.3 million (2021: £202.4 million).

The Directors have reviewed and approved a forecast into 2024 and expect that its cash and cash
equivalents on hand of the date of signing will be sufficient to fund its operations and capital expenditure
requirements for at least the next twelve months from the date of signing. Accordingly, the Directors are
satisfied that the going concern basis is appropriate for the preparation of the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares, the deferred share and each class of preference shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares, preference shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

DEBTORS AND OTHER DEBTORS

Debtors are amounts due from other Group companies for cash receipted on behalf of the Parent Company
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. Debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment.

CREDITORS

Creditors are amounts due to other Group companies for services performed in the ordinary course of
business. Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

We measure non-cash share-based awards granted to employees, non-employees and Directors based
on the fair value on the date of the grant. The accounting for forfeitures is different to that for cancellations.
Where a number of individual awards within a larger portfolio of awards are forfeited, the expense is revised
to reflect the best available estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. So, on a
cumulative basis, no expense is recognised for goods or services received if the equity instruments do not
vest as a result of a service or non-market performance condition (for example, if the employee or
counterparty fails to complete a specified service period).
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COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

We issue non-cash share-based awards with service-based vesting conditions. For equity awards that vest
based on a service condition, the non-cash share-based compensation expense is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period.

We measure share options granted to employees and members of our Board of Directors for their services
as Directors based on the fair value on the date of the grant. We have only issued share options with
service-based vesting conditions and record the expense for these awards using the straight-line method.

We estimate the fair value of each share option grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which
uses as inputs the fair value of our ordinary shares and assumptions we make for the volatility of our
ordinary shares, the expected term of our share options, the risk-free interest rate for a period that
approximates the expected term of our share options and our expected dividend yield.

The financial effect of awards by the Parent Company of shares and share options over its equity shares
to the employees of subsidiary undertakings are recognised by the Parent Company in its individual
financial statements.

In particular, the Parent Company records an investment in subsidiary with a corresponding credit to the
share options reserve. The Parent Company recognises the reimbursement of the capital contribution from
the subsidiary by recording an intercompany asset with a corresponding adjustment to the investment in
subsidiary recognised in respect of the share based payment.

The subsidiary records a stock-based compensation expense, such that the expense associated with the
equity-based award is recognised in profit and loss for the subsidiary undertaking, with a corresponding
capital contribution from the Parent Company. The subsidiary will recognise its reimbursement of that
capital contribution by recording an intercompany liability with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
contribution recognised in respect of the share-based payment.

For full share based payments disclosures, please refer to the consolidated financial statements presented
with these Parent Company financial statements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Parent Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors
are required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimates that the Directors have made in the process of

applying the Parent Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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INVESTMENT IN, AND RECEIVABLE FROM, SUBSIDIARY

Management performs an annual impairment assessment of the investment held in and receivable due
("the investment”) from COMPASS Pathfinder Holdings Limited. The valuation of the subsidiary is derived
from publicly available information, being the market capitalisation of the Group, at the year end date, given
that the future value of the Group is expected to be generated from the products and treatments which are
being developed by the subsidiary companies. On the balance sheet date, where the market capitalisation
of the Group as a whole falls below the carrying value of the investment, management will perform a fair
value less cost to sell calculation and then consider whether an impairment of the investment is required,
and if so, will write down the cost of the investment to its recoverable amount, with an associated impairment
charge recognised in the Parent Company profit and loss account. In the event the Group's market
capitalisation increases and the reasons for any impairment loss have ceased to apply, an impairment loss
may be reversed in a subsequent period in the Parent Company profit and loss account, to the extent the
carrying value would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the investment in
prior years. In 2022 an impairment of £245.8 million has been recognised against the investment in
subsidiary.

2. Investments

Investments
(£000)

Cost
At 31 December 2021 264,487
Additions —
At 31 December 2022 264 487
Accumulated Impairment
At 31 December 2021 —
Impairment (245,828)
At 31 December 2022 (245,828)
Net book value
At 31 December 2022 18,659
At 31 December 2021 264,487

The Parent Company recorded an impairment of £245,827,631 during 2022. Refer to note 1 for further
details surrounding the impairment.




COMPASS PATHWAYS PLC
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Subsidiary undertakings

Name of undertaking Class of shareholding Proportion held Nature of business

COMPASS Pathfinder Holdings Ordinary 100% Holding Company

Limited

COMPASS Pathfinder Limited Ordinary 100% Research and
development

COMPASS Pathways Inc Ordinary 1009% Staffing and General

and Administrative

COMPASS Pathfinder Limited and COMPASS Pathways Inc are subsidiaries of COMPASS Pathfinder
Holdings Limited. The following table outlines the country of incorporation and registered office of
each of the subsidiary undertakings:

Name of undertaking Country of Registered Office

Undertaking
COMPASS Pathfinder Holdings United Kingdom 3rd Floor, 1 Ashley Road, Altrincham,
Limited

Cheshire, United Kingdom, WAL14 2DT.

COMPASS Pathfinder Limited United Kingdom 3rd Floor, 1 Ashley Road, Altrincham,
Cheshire, United Kingdom, WA14 2DT.
180 Varick Street, 6th Floor, New York, NY

COMPASS Pathways Inc United States .
10014, United States.
3. Debtors - Amounts falling due within one year 2022 2021
(£000) (£000)
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 279,269 242 543
Other Debtors 1,995 —
281,264 242,543

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of
repayment and are repayable on demand. Refer to note 1 for details around the assessment of
recoverability of Amounts owed by Group undertakings.

4. Creditors - Amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021

(£000) (£000)

Amounts owed to Group undertakings 17,097 10,865
17,097 10,865

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment
and are repayable on demand.
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5. Share Capital

2022 2021
(E000) (E000)
Ordinary shares, £0.008 par value, 42,631,794 (2021:
42,019,874) shares issued and outstanding 341 336
341 336
Ordinary Deferred
Description shares Shares
Shares (#000) | Shares (£000)| Shares (#000)| Shares (£000)
Balance at 31 December 2020 35,930 300 — 22
Exercise of share options 1,245 10 — —
Issuance of shares due to options 232 2 | |
exercised in previous year
f i r
il:gssﬁa:gsgﬂ;;d nary shares, net of 4,600 36 | o
Vesting of restricted stock units 13 — — —
Shares issued for options exercised in al 12 n _
2020
Balance at 31 December 2021 42,020 336 — 22
Exercise of share options 463 4 — —_
_Issuance of ordinary shares, net of a4 Hl | H
Issuance costs
Vesting of restricted stock units 83 1 — —
Issuance of ordinary shares under 2020 22 ol | et
employee share purchase plan
Balance at 31 December 2022 42,632 341 — 22

As of 31 December 2022, the Parent Company had authority to allot ordinary shares up to a maximum
nominal value of £536,000 with a nominal value of £0.008 per share. As of 31 December 2022, there
were 42,631,794 ordinary shares issued and outstanding. In addition, there were a total of 5,092,732
share options in respect of ordinary shares outstanding and 271,135 restricted share units unvested
and outstanding in respect of ordinary shares at 31 December 2022.

On 4 May 2021, the Parent Company sold 4,000,000 ordinary shares in connection with its follow- on
offering. On 19 May 2021, the underwriters exercised their option to purchase an additional 600,000
ordinary shares. This capital raise resulted in net proceeds of approximately £111.2 million after
deducting underwriting fees and offering costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Parent Company issued in total 1,476,936 ordinary shares
to settle share options exercised by employees and non-employees, of which 232,227 ordinary shares
related to options exercised in 2020, with subsequent share issuances in 2021.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, 70,482 restricted share units vested, of which, 12,607 ordinary
shares were issued in settlement of the vested restricted shares units on 13 August 2021. No ordinary
shares were issued for the vested restricted share units of 57,875 in May, August and November 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Parent Company issued in total 462,722 ordinary shares
to settle share options exercised by employees and non-employees.

In October 2021, the Parent Company entered into a Sales Agreement with Cowen and Company, LLC,
under which the Parent Company may issue and sell from time to time up to $150 million of ordinary

shares at market prices, which is referred to as the ATM Facility. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Parent Company issued in total 44,416 ordinary shares in respect to sales under the facility.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, a total of 42,635 restricted share units vested, of which 24,747
shares were vested and issued in settlement and 17,888 shares were vested but had not been issued at
31 December 2022. During 2022, a total of 82,622 shares were issued in settlement, of which 57,875
vested in 2021 and 24,747 vested in 2022.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Parent Company issued in total 22,160 and 0
shares under the employee share purchase plans.

Each ordinary share entitles the holder to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote of the Parent
Company’s shareholders. Ordinary shareholders are entitled to receive dividends, if any, as may be
declared by the Board of Directors. Through 31 December 2022 and 2021, no cash dividends had been
declared or paid by the Parent Company.

6. ULTIMATE PARENT UNDERTAKING AND CONTROLLING PARTY

There is no ultimate parent undertaking or controlling party of the Parent Company as ownership is
split between the Parent Company’s shareholders.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the “Securities Act,” and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the
“Exchange Act”. Forward-looking statements generally relate to future events or our future financial or operating
performance. All statements other than statements of historical fact included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including
regarding our strategy, future operations, financial position, estimated revenues and losses, projected costs, prospects, plans
and objectives of management, are forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements
because they contain words such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “could,” “intends,” “target,”
“projects.” “contemplates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continue™ or the negative of these words or
other similar terms or expressions. The forward-looking statements and opinions contained in this 10-K are based upon
information available to our management as of the date of this 10-K, and while we believe such information forms a
reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our statements should not be read to
indicate that we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information.
Forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to, statements about:

o EI

«  the timing, progress and results of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, including statements regarding
the timing of initiation and completion of trials or studies and related preparatory work, including our expectations
regarding amendments to our phase 3 protocols, results of ongoing discussions with FDA and the timing of
completion of our Phase 3 clinical program for treatment-resistant depression, or TRD, the period during which the
results of the trials will become available and our research and development programs;

« our estimates regarding expenses, capital requirements and needs for and ability to raise additional financing;

= our reliance on the success of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy;

+ thetiming, scope or likelihood of regulatory filings and approvals;

+ our expectations regarding the size of the eligible patient populations for COMP360 psilocybin therapy, if approved
for commercial use;

« our ability to identify third-party clinical sites to conduct our trials and our ability to identify and train appropriately
qualified therapists to administer COMP360 psilocybin therapy in our clinical trials;

« our ability to implement our business model and our strategic plans for our business and our investigational
COMP360 psilocybin therapy;

= our ability to identify new indications for COMP360 beyond our current primary focuses on TRD, anorexia nervosa,
and post-traumatic stress disorder, or PTSD;

« our ability to identify, develop or acquire digital technologies to enhance our administration of our investigational
COMP360 psilocybin therapy;

+ our ability to leverage our technology and drug development candidates to advance new psychedelic compounds in
other areas of unmet mental health need;

«  our ability to successfully establish and maintain Centers of Excellence and our ability to achieve our goals with
respect to the Center for Mental Health Research and Innovation;

« our commercialization, marketing and manufacturing capabilities and strategy;
= the pricing, coverage and reimbursement of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, if approved;
«  the scalability and commercial viability of our manufacturing methods and processes;

+  the rate and degree of market acceptance and clinical utility of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, in
particular, and psilocybin-based therapies, in general;
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« our ability to establish or maintain collaborations or strategic relationships or obtain additional funding;

+  our expectations regarding potential benefits of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy and our therapeutic
approach generally;

= our expectations around feedback from regulators, regulatory development paths and with respect to Controlled
Substances Act designation;

+  the scope of protection we and any current or future licensors or collaboration partners are able to establish and
maintain for intellectual property rights covering COMP360;

= our ability to operate our business without infringing, misappropriating, or otherwise violating the intellectual
property rights and proprietary technology of third parties;

«  regulatory developments in the United States, under the laws and regulations of England and Wales, and other
jurisdictions;

« developments and projections relating to our competitors and our industry;
+  the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting;
= our ability to attract and retain qualified employees and key personnel;

+ the effect of global financial, economic and geopolitical events, including fluctuations in the stock market, heightened
and fluctuating interest rates and inflation, and foreign exchange fluctuations, particularly the Pound Sterling to U.S.
Daollar, on our business;

«  the effect of public health crises, including the COVID-19 pandemic and the emergence of any new COVID-19
variants or any future mitigation efforts and current or future economic effects, on any of the foregoing or other
aspects of our business ar operations;

+  whether we are classified as a controlled foreign corporation, or CFC, or a passive foreign investment company, or
PFIC, under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, for current and future periods; and

= the future trading price of the ADSs and impact of securities analysts’ reports on these prices.

We caution you that the foregoing list may not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this Form 10-K.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events, which speak only as of the date made.
We have based the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K primarily on our current
expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects. The outcomes of the events described in these forward-looking statements are subject to risks,
uncertainties and other factors described in the section titled “Risk Factors™ in Part I, Item 1A, of this Annual Report on Form
10-K and our other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. Moreover, we operate in a very
competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks and uncertainties emerge from time to time and it is not possible for
us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. We cannot assure you that the results, events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking
statements will be achieved or occur, and actual results, events or circumstances could differ materially from those described
in the forward-looking statements. Except as otherwise required by the securities laws of the United States, we disclaim any
obligation to subsequently revise any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such
statements or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events.




SUMMARY OF THE MATERIAL RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH OUR BUSINESS

QOur business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties that you should be aware of in evaluating our business. These
risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the following:

We are a clinical-stage mental health care company and have incurred significant losses since our inception. We
expect to incur losses for the foreseeable future and may never achieve or maintain profitability;

We will need substantial additional funding to complete the development and commercialization of our
investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy. Our ability to raise additional funds may be adversely impacted by
macroeconomic conditions and disruptions to and volatility in the credit and financial markets in the United States
and worldwide. Failure to obtain additional funding when needed or on favorable terms may force us to delay, limit
or terminate certain or all of our product discovery, therapeutic development, research operations or
commercialization efforts or grant rights to develop and market products or therapeutic candidates that we would
otherwise prefer to develop and market ourselves;

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to holders of our ordinary shares and ADSs, restrict our operations or
require us to relinquish rights to COMP360 or any future therapeutic candidates;

We are dependent on the successful development of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy. We cannot
give any assurance that COMP360 will successfully complete clinical trials or receive regulatory approval, which is
necessary before it can be commercialized;

COMP360 is, and any future therapeutic candidates we may develop may be, subject to controlled substance laws and
regulations in the jurisdictions where our products, if approved, may be marketed, and failure to comply with these
laws and regulations, or the cost of compliance with these laws and regulations, or changes in these laws and
regulations may adversely affect the results of our business operations, both during clinical development and post
approval, and our financial condition. In addition, during the review process of COMP360, and prior to any approval,
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, and/or other regulatory bodies may require additional data,
including with respect to whether COMP360 has abuse or misuse potential, which may delay approval and any
potential rescheduling process;

COMP360 contains controlled substances, the use of which may generate public controversy. Adverse publicity or
public perception regarding COMP360, in particular, and psilocybin-based therapies, in general, or our current or
future investigational therapies using psilocybin may negatively influence the success of these therapies;

Clinical drug development is a lengthy and expensive process with uncertain timelines and uncertain outcomes. If
clinical trials of COMP360 psilocybin therapy or any future therapeutic candidates are prolonged or delayed, we or
our current or future collaborators may be unable to obtain required regulatory approvals, and therefore we will be
unable to commercialize our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy or any future therapeutic candidates on a
timely basis or at all, which will adversely affect our business;

COMP360 psilocybin therapy and any future therapeutic candidates we may develop may have serious adverse,
undesirable or unacceptable side effects which may delay or prevent marketing approval. If such side effects are
identified during the development of COMP360 psilocybin therapy or any future therapeutic candidates or following
approval, if any, we may need to abandon our development of such therapeutic candidates, the commercial profile of
any approved label may be limited, or we may be subject to other significant negative consequences;

Research and development of drugs targeting the central nervous system is particularly difficult, which makes it
difficult to predict and understand why the drug has a positive effect on some patients but not others;

We have never commercialized a therapeutic candidate before and may lack the necessary expertise, personnel and
resources to successfully commercialize our therapies on our own or with suitable collaborators;

The future commercial success of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy or any future therapeutic
candidates will depend on the degree of market access and acceptance of our potential therapies among healthcare
professionals, patients, healthcare payors, health technology assessment bodies and the medical community at large;
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QOur business and commercialization strategy depends on our ability to identify, qualify, prepare, certify and support
third-party therapy sites offering any approved therapy. If we are unable to do so, our commercialization prospects
would be limited and our business, financial condition and results of operations would be harmed;

We currently rely on qualified therapists working at third-party clinical trial sites to administer our investigational
COMP360 psilocybin therapy in our clinical trials and we expect this to continue upon approval, if any, of COMP360
or any future therapeutic candidates. If third-party sites fail to recruit and retain a sufficient number of therapists ar
effectively manage their therapists, our business, financial condition and results of operations would be materially
harmed;

Intellectual property rights of third parties could adversely affect our ability to develop or commercialize our
investigational therapies, such that we could be required to litigate or obtain licenses from third parties in order to
develop or market our investigational therapies. Such litigation or licenses could be costly or not available on
commercially reasonable terms;

Others may claim an ownership interest in our intellectual property and our product candidates, which could expose
us to litigation and have a significant adverse effect on our prospects;

Enacted and future legislation may increase the difficulty and cost for us to obtain marketing approval of and
commercialize our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy or any future therapeutic candidates and could have
a material adverse effect on our business;

We rely on third parties to supply and manufacture the psilocybin and psilocin incorporated in COMP360 and expect
to continue to rely on third parties to supply and manufacture any future therapeutic candidates, and we will rely on
third parties to manufacture these substances for commercial supply, if approved. If any third-party provider fails to
meet its obligations to manufacture COMP360 or our future therapeutic candidates, or fails to maintain or achieve
satisfactory regulatory compliance, the development of such substances and the commercialization of any therapies, if
approved, could be stopped, delayed or made commercially unviable, less profitable or may result in enforcement
actions against us;

There are a number of third parties who conduct investigator-initiated studies, or 11Ss, using COMP360 provided by
us. Any failure by a third party to meet its obligations with respect to the clinical development of our investigational
COMP360 psilocybin therapy or any future therapeutic candidates may delay or impair our ability to obtain
regulatory approval for COMP360. 11Ss of COMP360 or any future therapeutic candidates may generate clinical trial
data that raises concerns regarding the safety or effectiveness of COMP360 and any data generated in 11Ss may not be
predictive of the results in populations or indications in which we are conducting, or plan to conduct, clinical trials;

Unfavorable global economic conditions could adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of
operations. Economic uncertainty and worsening or deteriorating global economic conditions and financial market
conditions may materially and adversely affect our business, including our ability to raise capital and our financial
results;

A pandemic, epidemic, or outbreak of an infectious disease, or new variant of COVID-19, may materially and
adversely affect our business, including our preclinical studies, clinical trials, third parties on whom we rely, our

supply chain, our ability to raise capital, our ability to conduct regular business and our financial results;

We face substantial competition and our competitors may discover, develop or commercialize therapies before or
mare successfully than us, which may result in the reduction or elimination of our commercial opportunities;

Our bhusiness is subject to economic, political, regulatory and other risks associated with international operations; and

We may face business interruptions resulting from failures or significant downtime of our information technology
systems resulting from cyber-attacks on such systems or otherwise.




PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

We are a mental health care company dedicated to accelerating patient access to evidence-based innovation in mental
health. We are motivated by the need to find better ways to help and empower people suffering with mental health challenges
who are not helped by existing therapies, and are pioneering the development of a new model of psilocybin therapy, in which
our investigational COMP360 psilocybin is administered in conjunction with psychological support. COMP360 is our
proprietary psilocybin formulation that includes our pharmaceutical-grade polymorphic crystalline psilocybin, optimized for
stability and purity.

We believe that our COMP360 psilocybin therapy - combining COMP360 psilocybin with psychological support from
specially trained therapists - could offer a new approach to treatment of serious mental health conditions, including treatment-
resistant depression, or TRD, a subset of major depressive disorder, or MDD, anorexia-nervosa and post-traumatic stress
disorder, or PTSD.

Our initial focus is on TRD comprising patients who are inadequately served by the current treatment paradigm. Early
signals from academic studies, using formulations of psilocybin not developed by us, have shown that psilocybin therapy may
have the potential to improve outcomes for patients suffering with TRD, with rapid reductions in depression symptoms and
effects lasting up to six months, after administration of a single high dose. In 2018, we received Breakthrough Therapy
designation from the FDA for COMP360 for the treatment of TRD. In 2019, we completed a Phase 1 clinical trial
administering COMP360, along with psychological support, to 89 healthy volunteers. In this trial, we observed that COMP360
was generally well-tolerated and supported continued progression of Phase 2b studies. We also demonstrated the feasibility of
administering COMP360 psilocybin to up to six healthy participants simultaneously, with 1:1 support.

In November 2021, we announced positive topline results from our Phase 2b clinical trial evaluating COMP360 in
conjunction with psychological support for the treatment of TRD. On November 3, 2022, The New England Journal of
Medicine, the world’s leading peer-reviewed medical journal, published the positive results from our Phase 2b trial. This is the
largest, randomized, controlled, double-blind psilocybin therapy clinical trial completed to date. The objective of the phase 2b
study was to evaluate the efficacy and safety of a single dose of investigational COMP360 psilocybin (25mg or 10mg).
compared to 1mg, in patients with TRD. The topline results from the 233-participant trial showed a rapid and sustained
response for patients receiving a single 25mg dose of COMP360 psilocybin administered with psychological support, with
29.1% of participants in remission by week 3 (p<0.002). The trial achieved its primary endpoint for the 25mg dose, with a
25mg dose of COMP360 demonstrating a statistically significant (p<0.001) and clinically relevant treatment difference against
the 1mg dose of COMP360 in reducing depressive symptom severity after three weeks.

We commenced our Phase 3 program evaluating our COMP360 psilocybin therapy in TRD. The Phase 3 program is
composed of two pivotal trials, each with a long-term follow-up component. The pivotal program design is as follows:

= Pivotal trial 1 (COMPOO05) (n=255): a single dose (25mg) monotherapy compared with placebo. This trial is designed to
replicate the treatment response seen in the Company’s Phase 2b trial (n=233). We expect top-line data in summer of 2024,

+ Pivotal trial 2 (COMPO006) (n= 568): a fixed repeat dose monotherapy using three dose arms: 25mg, 10mg and 1mg.
This trial is designed to investigate whether a second dose can increase treatment responders and/or improve responses
observed in our Phase 2b trial and explore the potential for a meaningful treatment response from repeat administration of
COMP360 10mg. We expect top-line data by mid-2025.

« The primary endpoint in both pivotal trials is the change from baseline in MADRS total score at week 6.

Beyond TRD, we have ongoing Phase 2 trials in anorexia nervosa and PTSD. We also provide support to research
institutions conducting investigator-initiated studies, or 11Ss, with COMP360 psilocybin in areas of serious unmet need. These
are signal-generating studies that we believe may provide signals for new potential indications that we can explore further and
may bring into our development pipeline. For example, the University of California San Diego School of Medicine completed
an 11S of COMP360 psilocybin in anorexia nervosa and presented positive data from this study at the Society of Biological
Psychiatry Annual Meeting in May 2022. Based on the data generated in this 11S, we decided to proceed with a Phase 2
clinical trial for anorexia nervosa. Additional 115 studies are underway in a number of other indications including autism,
body dysmorphic disorder, suicidal ideation and severe TRD.




The need for innovation in mental health care is significant, given that the current paradigm is ineffective for millions of
people. Our vision is a world of mental wellbeing — a world in which mental health isn’t simply the absence of mental illness,
but the ability to flourish. We want to help reduce the stigma surrounding mental health, to acknowledge that “everyone has a
story,” and to create a system of care for all who are not helped by the existing system and existing therapies.

OUR STRATEGY

Qur mission is to accelerate patient access to evidence-based innovation in mental health. Key elements of our strategy to
achieve this include:

= Advance our Phase 3 registrational program for our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy for the treatment of
TRD. In 2021, we completed a randomized, controlled Phase 2b clinical trial in 233 TRD patients, in 22 sites across North
America and Europe and a Phase 2 exploratory trial in 19 TRD patients. We announced positive topline results from these
trials in November and December 2021, The results from our Phase 2b clinical trial were published in the New England
Journal of Medicine in November 2022. We commenced our Phase 3 registrational program and expect topline data from
our COMPOOS study in the summer of 2024 and from our COMPOO0E study in mid-2025.

+  Expand our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy into new indications. We believe that our investigational
COMP360 psilocybin therapy may confer beneficial effects in other areas of high unmet need in mental health. We are
conducting Phase 2 trials evaluating COMP360 psilocybin therapy in anorexia nervosa and PTSD. In addition, we are
generating preclinical and clinical data to further our mechanistic understanding and explore the potential benefits of our
psilocybin therapy in other indications. We are performing some of these studies ourselves and some through
collaborations with academic institutions, including through 11Ss and through our Discovery Center which is carrying out
preclinical research into new compounds. The outcomes of these studies will inform which indications, compounds and
therapies we may pursue.

¢ Explore other compounds and therapies to address areas of unmet need. We established our Discovery Center, initially
based at University of the Sciences in Philadelphia, to include a network of expert teams across the United States, and we
are focused on developing optimized psychedelic and related compounds targeting the 5-HT2A receptor, which is
believed to mediate the potential therapeutic effects of psychedelics. We have also acquired an intellectual property
portfolio including patent applications covering a variety of psychedelic and empathogenic substances, and we are
waorking on an exclusive research project with inventor Matthias Grill PhD, founder and CEO of MiHKAL GmbH in
Basel, Switzerland, to develop new product candidates. Cngoing research on prodrug development has led to a number of
potential candidate leads being identified that we plan to continue through further research based development.

*  Maximize the reach and value of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy by creating a new model for mental
health care. We retain global development and commercialization rights for our investigational COMP360 psilocybin
therapy and are developing a commercial rollout plan in the event we are granted approval from regulatory authorities,
working with payors to enable reimbursement and with health systems to enable broad patient access. We have and may
in the future continue to set up research facilities and innovation labs, which we refer to as Centers of Excellence, in key
markets. Through these, we also intend to gather evidence to optimize our therapy model, training and certification of
therapists, and prototype digital technology solutions to improve patient experience and outcomes. In January 2021, we
established our first Center of Excellence, with The Sheppard Pratt | nstitute for Advanced Diagnostics and Therapeutics,
in Baltimore, Maryland. In March 2022, we announced a strategic collaboration with King's College London and South
London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust, or SLaM, to establish The Center for Mental Health Research and
Innovation. We helieve the Centers of Excellence will give us a firm foundation from which to grow and develop
potential new business models as we seek to expand access to our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, if
approved.

= Use digital technology to improve access to and the impact of our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy. We are
exploring ways to use digital technology to make our therapeutic model more scalable, and to improve patient experience
and outcomes. We plan to build upon the technologies we are deploying during our clinical trials, including our
myPathfinder app, which is designed to help patients prepare for their COMP360 psilocybin therapy experience, and
Therapist COMPanion a web-based “shared knowledge™ interactive platform to complement our face-to-face and clinical




therapist training. We are also developing Chanterelle, our Al (which we refer to as Augmented Intelligence as well as
Avrtificial Intelligence) and an analytics solution through which we aim to generate novel insights into the predictors and
drivers of therapeutic outcomes, the patient experience, and therapist performance. We believe this may enable us to offer
a personalized, preventative and predictive care model.

Our Market Opportunity

We are developing our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy for the treatment of a range of mental health
conditions, with an initial focus on TRD. There is a large unmet need for new therapies to improve the response rate and
durability of response for patients suffering with TRD. We believe our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, if
successfully developed and approved, represents a promising therapeutic option for TRD, as well as potentially for other
mental health and neurological conditions, including anorexia nervosa and PTSD.

MDD and TRD Prevalence

Globally, more than 320 million people suffer from MDD. The economic burden of MDD in the United States, accounting
for comorbid physical and psychiatric conditions, is estimated to be over $200 billion per year. TRD, a condition affecting the
approximately 100 million patients worldwide who are not helped after two or more existing depression treatments, has even
greater economic and societal cost than non-TRD MDD. TRD patients are often unable to perform daily tasks, are more likely
to receive disability or welfare benefits and more frequently have co-occurring conditions compared with non-TRD MDD
patients. Direct medical costs for TRD patients are estimated to be two to three times higher than for non-TRD MDD patients,
caused by, among other factors, increased rates of hospitalization and longer average hospital stays. Patients with TRD have a
higher all-cause mortality compared with non-TRD MDD patients.

Patients suffering with depression are treated through a variety of approaches, each of which can have significant
shortcomings in certain subsets of patients. Most pharmacotherapies for depression employ the same mechanism of action,
targeting the modulation of the brain’s neurotransmitter monoamine levels, and have exhibited limited efficacy in a significant
portion of patients and can result in high relapse rates. There are only two pharmacotherapies specifically approved for TRD in
the US: esketamine, and a combination of olanzapine (an atypical antipsychotic) and fluoxetine (a selective serotonergic
reuptake inhibitor). Esketamine was approved in 2019 by the FDA. Mixed efficacy and limited durability were observed in
clinical trials as well as potential side effects, including dissociation and cognitive impairment. The olanzapine-fluoxetine
combination has also shown mixed efficacy and can commonly lead to side effects such as dizziness, drowsiness and weight
gain. In addition to pharmacotherapies, various forms of somatic intervention are also used, although these treatments tend to
be invasive and/or onerous, and there are limited data supporting their long-term benefit. Psychotherapy is another common
treatment approach, but it requires a significant time commitment and is subject to large variability in availability and
administration. Despite the range of treatments and therapies available for depression, patients suffering with TRD continue to
be underserved, prolonging a significant health, social and economic burden. We believe patients suffering with TRD need a
paradigm-shifting treatment that can deliver rapid and sustained relief of their depression.

MDD is a condition characterized by a persistent feeling of sadness and heightened negative emotions. It is considered a
unipolar condition, suggesting a distinction between MDD and bipolar depression, the latter of which is often associated with
an emotional state fluctuating between depression and hypomania or mania. MDD is a chronic, relapsing, recurring and
serious mental health condition associated with high mortality rates, morbidity and diminished quality of life. The World
Health Organization, or WHO, estimates as of 2015 that more than 320 million people worldwide are suffering with MDD and
that MDD currently accounts for an average of 7.5% of years of life lost due to disability globally, as defined by disability-
adjusted life years, or DALY, or the sum of years of healthy life lost to either mortality or non-fatal illness or impairment.

Due to the limitations of existing treatments, nearly one-third of those suffering with MDD are not adequately helped after

two or more existing depression treatments. This condition is referred to as TRD. We estimate the TRD population to be
approximately 100 million people globally, based on the most recently available data in 2010.
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The following table, which is based on data from the Star*D trial conducted by the National Institute of Mental Health in

20086, indicates the worldwide estimated patient populations suffering with new onset MDD, persistent MDD and TRD, and

the primary treatment options available.

New onset depression

1 et padley Major depressive disorder
(MDD)

First line

Patients (worldwide)

320 million

Antidepressants
Psychological
interventions eg,
CBT*

Available treatments

Y% relapse 60-70%

Persistent depression
Major depressive disorder
(MDD)

Second line
200 million

Antidepressants
Antidepressant
combinations
Psychological
interventions

50-75%

Treatment-resistant depression

(TRD)

100 million
(~33% of total)

Antidepressants
Augmentation therapy
(antidepressants, mood
stabilizers,
anticonvulsants,
atypical antipsychotics.
esketamine)

Ketamine

Somatic therapy
(rTMS* tDCS* ECT?,
DBS*)

High-intensity
psychological
interventions

80-90%%

CBT = cognitive behavioral therapy; rTMS = repetitive transcranial magnetic stimulation; tDCS=transcranial direct current stimulation;

ECT=electroconvulsive therapy; DBS=deep brain stimulation. Table adapted from Rush, A. J., Trivedi, M. H., Wisniewski, S. R., Nierenberg, A. A.,
Stewart, J. W., Warden, D., ... & Fava, M. (2006). Acute and longer-term outcomes in depressed outpatients requiring one or several treatment
steps: a STAR* D report. American Journal of Psychiatry, 163(11), 1905-1917.

Economic and Societal Burden

The economic burden of MDD in the United States, accounting for comorbid physical and psychiatric conditions, is
estimated to be over $200 billion per year as of 2010. Approximately 47% of this figure is attributable to direct costs including
outpatient, inpatient, emergency, medical and pharmaceutical cost, while the rest is attributable to indirect costs, including loss
of productivity, absenteeism and suicide. Between 2005 and 2010, the economic burden of MDD rose by $37.3 billion, an
increase of 21.5%. A large proportion of this increase can be attributed to direct costs such as outpatient and inpatient medical
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services, with an increase of 27.5% from $77.5 billion in 2005 to $98.9 billion in 2010. This figure demonstrates that the
economic burden of MDD is large, and we believe it is likely to continue to grow over time.

Economic Burden of Individuals with MDD
(U.S., 2010) in 3B
Total = $211B

B Qutpatient
¥ Inpatient
" Emergency department

Other medical services Direct costs

= Pharmaceutical services S99B (47%)

" Suicide-related costs

= Workplace-related (absenteeism)

B Workplace-related (presenteeism)

TRD patients are often less productive at work and have higher rates of unemployment. They are also more likely to
receive disability or welfare benefits than non-TRD MDD patients. Employees suffering with TRD have higher rates of
workplace absenteeism compared with those without a mental health condition. In addition, co-occurring conditions, such as
hypertension, anemia and diabetes, are more common in TRD patients versus non-TRD MDD patients.

Direct medical costs for TRD patients are estimated to be two to three times higher than for non-TRD MDD patients. An
analysis from commercial claims and Medicare/Medicaid data in the United States points to average annual healthcare costs of
between $17,000 and $25,000 per TRD patient per year. This compares with less than $10,000 per year for non-TRD MDD
patients. TRD patients have higher prescriptions costs, more doctor visits and increased rates of hospitalization. TRD patients
also have, on average, twice the number of inpatient visits compared with non-TRD MDD patients and, on average, their
hospital stay is approximately 36% longer.

Ewvery year, approximately 800,000 pecple die from suicide globally. For each adult suicide death, estimates suggest there
may have been more than 20 other attempts. Patients with TRD have a higher all-cause mortality compared with non-TRD
MDD patients. Research conducted in 2018 suggests that the proportion of patients suffering with TRD attempting suicide at
least once during their lifetime could be as high as 30%.

Existing Therapies for Depression

Because depression has biological, social, psychological, environmental, genetic, and stress-related determinants, many of
which co-occur, treatment options are wide-ranging and often combined. Current pharmacological and non-pharmacological
treatments, such as antidepressants and psychotherapy, respectively, are well-established and efficacious for a subset of MDD
patients. However, many patients experience relapses. Clinicians lack high-quality evidence and often rely on a trial-and-error
approach, course correcting as patients experience these relapses or difficult side effects. Experts are beginning to recommend
a shift to more multi-modal treatments where different types of therapy are delivered concomitantly (i.e., a mix of
pharmacotherapy, psychological/behavioral, and device interventions).

Patients suffering with TRD are treated through a variety of approaches, each of which is associated with significant
shortcomings. Consequently, there remains a need for a fast-acting, tolerable treatment that provides a durable response.
Despite the condition’s largely heterogeneous nature, most pharmacotherapies for depression use the same mechanism of
action, targeting the modulation of the brain’s neurotransmitter monoamine levels. As evidenced by the low response and high
relapse rates, these treatments are not effective for a large number of patients. Various forms of somatic intervention are also
used, although there is limited data supporting their long-term benefit. Esketamine, a TRD therapy, demonstrated mixed
efficacy in its pivotal clinical trials, with rapid relapse rates even with adjunctive antidepressants and protracted withdrawal
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reactions. We believe currently available options do not adequately meet the needs of patients suffering with TRD and there is

a significant need for a new therapeutic approach.

The following table includes representative ranges and approximate costs for existing treatments of depression as well as

their methods of delivery.
Therapy Route Frequency and Strategy 1 Reimbursement2 | Approximate annual cost
duration per patient 3
Antidepressants: SSRI/SNRI* [eigl] 1/day, chronic Mono/ Broad $500 - 900
Adjunctive
therapy
Atypical antipsychotics Oral Liday - chronic | Adjunctive Broad $3,000 - 9,000
therapy
CBT Face-to-faceor | 10-20 sessions, Mono/ Broad Averaging $1,000
online 3-4 months Adjunctive
therapy
Esketamine Intranasal Up to 56 Adjunctive Limited $33,000 - 49,000
sessionsfyear, therapy
under supervision
of a healthcare
professional
Ketamine** Intravenous Up to 9 injections | Adjunctive Mo $2,500 - 5,000
therapy
rTMs Magnetic brain | 5 sessions/ week, | Mono/Adjunctive | Limited 6,000 - 12,000
stimulation 4-5 weeks therapy
without
anesthesia
Electric brain 3 sessions/ week, | Mono/Adjunctive | Limited $5,000 - 15,000
stimulation under | 4+ weeks therapy
anesthesia
Electric pulses Duration varies | Mono/Adjunctive | Limited $40,000 - 45,000 for
sent to the brain | from patient to | therapy surgical implementation
patient — (excluding costs of post-
stimulator must operative device
first be implanted adjustments)
and given at a
starting low dose
every 5 minutes
from day to night
Electrical 3-6 hour Mono/Adjunctive | Limited $200,000 - 250,000 for
impulsestothe | operations; therapy surgical implementation
brain through follow up visits (excluding costs of
implanted battery replacements
electrodes required every 12-24
months costing ~$95,000
for hardware
replacement and surgery)

Key: orange: established common pharmacotherapies for depression; blue: common psychotherapy for depression; grey: novel pharmacotherapies for

depression; green: somatic therapies for depression

*  SSRI = selective serotonergic reuptake inhibitor; SNRI =serotonergic norepinephrine reuptake inhibitor; ** Ketamine is prescribed off-label and
is not approved for the treatment of depression
1. Based on a year of treatment, 150mg/day, augmentation with fluoxetine for U.S. or citalopram for UK 2. Government reimbursement or private
insurance coverage; 3. Assumes one treatment course over the year, direct treatment cost only (not total healthcare costs).
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Pharmacotherapies

There are five main categories of antidepressants available on the market. These are selective serotonergic reuptake
inhibitors, or SSRIs, and serotonergic norepinephrine reuptake inhibitors, or SNRIs, atypical antidepressants, monoamine
oxidase inhibitors, or MAOIs, and tricyclic antidepressants, or TCAs. These are frequently used in first- and second-line
treatment of depression and can also be used after this point. Studies have shown that approximately 50% of patients are not
helped by their initial antidepressant treatment. This figure rises to as high as 70% for subsequent treatments.

Currently approved antidepressants have significant limitations, including delayed onset of action, poor therapy adherence
rates and various side effects. The onset of action for the most commonly used antidepressants is typically between two and
three weeks. Adherence levels are relatively low, with approximately 50% of individuals in primary and psychiatric care not
adhering to their prescribed antidepressant medication.

There is limited evidence to effectively guide clinical decisions following non-response or partial response to first-line
antidepressant medications, Recommended treatment approaches include optimizing the current antidepressant dose or
switching to an antidepressant in the same or different class. Partial response or lack of response thereafter is recommended to
be addressed by combining antidepressants from different pharmacological classes, or augmenting with an alternative
medication, primarily with atypical antipsychotics, but also mood stabilizers, anticonvulsants, thyroid hormones and
stimulants, and N-methyl-D-asparate, or NMDA, antagonists.

Antipsychotics, such as olanzapine, quetiapine and aripiprazole are typically used as adjunctive therapies when there is a
lack of notable efficacy with an antidepressant. There is an approved combination of olanzapine and fluoxetine (an SSRI) for
TRD. However, using antidepressants and antipsychotics together can have serious side effects, such as weight gain, other
metabolic complications, sedation, extrapyramidal side effects (movement disorders), and QTc prolongation, which means the
ventricles of the heart take longer than usual to recharge between beats.

Psychotherapies (Including Cognitive Behavioral Therapy, or CBT)

Psychotherapy is a form of talk therapy often recommended as first-line treatment in mild depression and often used as
adjunctive therapy for MDD patients. Two frequently used psychotherapies for depression are CBT and interpersonal therapy,
or IPT. CBT focuses on changing negative thought and behavior patterns. IPT also looks at negative thoughts and behaviors,
but only as they apply to interpersonal relationships and social functioning. The incremental efficacy of psychotherapy in more
severe cases and in later lines of treatment remains questionable, Psychotherapeutic approaches can be effective for many
individuals but require a significant time commitment from patients and are subject to variability in their availability and
delivery.

Esketamine/Ketamine

Ketamine is an NMDA receptor antagonist that has been used for several decades in sedation, anesthesia and chronic pain.
The S-enantiomer of ketamine, esketamine, is administered intranasally as a spray and has been approved by the FDA to treat
TRD (2019) and depressive symptoms in adults with MDD with acute suicidal ideation or behavior (2020). There are mixed
efficacy results associated with the use of esketamine. Ketamine and esketamine require multiple administration sessions and
are associated with a high abuse potential. Esketamine treatments typically need to be frequently administered, in a controlled
environment under medical supervision. This frequency makes administration costly for payors and burdensome for patients,
resulting in limited clinical adoption and patient access.

Somatic Therapies

Patients who suffer with severe TRD and have tried several courses of antidepressants are often treated with resource-
intensive somatic therapies like electroconvulsive therapy, or ECT, repetitive transcranial magnetic stimulation, or rTMS,
vagal nerve stimulation, or VNS, and deep brain stimulation, or DBS. These therapies are generally administered in inpatient
settings. Somatic and device-related interventions like ECT and VNS are associated with significant adverse reactions and
interventional concerns, such as use of general anesthesia and memory loss in the case of ECT, and surgical intervention and
infection risk with VNS implantation. Limitations of rTMS include inadvertent seizures, pain, face twitching and application
discomfort. Similarly, DBS has the potential to cause pain and seizures as well as a high risk of infection due to the
invasiveness of the surgical procedure. These treatments are typically reserved for patients who have not been helped by other
treatments, and are characterized as high-cost treatment options with reimbursement limited for a subset of these therapies.
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Despite the range of treatments and therapies available for MDD, patients suffering with TRD continue to be underserved,
prolonging a significant health, social and economic burden. We believe patients suffering with TRD need a paradigm-shifting
treatment that can deliver rapid and sustained relief of their depression.

Based on early signals from psilocybin therapy studies (using a different formulation of psilocybin from COMP360),
which showed a rapid reduction in depression symptoms and effects lasting up to six months for some patients following
administration of a single high dose, we believe psilocybin therapy has the potential to transform the current paradigm for
TRD and other mental health and neurological conditions.

Anorexia Nervosa

Anorexia nervosa is a serious mental health condition characterized by severe restriction of calorie intake and a
preoccupation with weight and shape. People with anorexia nervosa generally restrict their caloric intake, types of food they
eat, and might engage in purging behaviors, such as strenuous exercise, vomiting, and laxatives misuse. It carries the highest
mortality rate of all psychiatric disorders. This high mortality rate is explained in part by the physical complications (muscle
and bone problems, such as osteoporosis; damage to the brain leading to seizures and memory issues; and heart problems
including heart failure) and in part by an increased rate of suicide; approximately 20% of deaths in anorexia nervosa are
thought to result from suicide. Approximately 3.9 million people suffer from anorexia nervosa as of 2019; it has a lifetime
prevalence of approximately 4% in females. There are no pharmacological treatments approved to treat anorexia nervosa and
psychological treatments have relapse rates as high as 52%.

Post traumatic stress disorder

PTSD is a serious mental health condition that can impact quality of life and lead to diminished cognitive and
psychosacial functioning, fractured relationships, inability to maintain employment, substance abuse, high healthcare
utilization costs, increased depression, and suicide risk. PTSD can occur in people who have experienced or witnessed a
traumatic event, such as a natural disaster, serious accident, war or rape. People who experience PTSD may relive their
traumatic experience(s) through nightmares and flashbacks, have difficulty sleeping, and feel detached or estranged. Some
people with PTSD experience symptoms immediately after the event, while for others symptoms may appear years later. It is
estimated that approximately 311 million people will experience PTSD at some point during their lives. Only 20 -30% of
patients treated with currently approved pharmacological interventions for PTSD will reach full remission.

Psilocybin Therapy
History of Psilocybin Usage

Psychedelics are a class of psychoactive drugs that act primarily through an agonist action on neurotransmitter receptors
and cause psychological, visual and auditory changes, as well as an altered state of consciousness. Prior to psychedelics being
classified as Schedule | drugs in the early 1970s, clinical research in psychedelics was widespread, with more than 40,000
patients suffering with mental health conditions participating in clinical studies and case reports. Accumulating evidence
suggests that many psychedelic drugs may have psychopharmacological effects on the brain, including increasing the number,
density and connections of neurons. This body of evidence has driven a resurgence of interest in the evaluation of psychedelic
drugs for therapeutic use to treat a range of mental health conditions. A number of major academic institutions - Imperial
College London, Johns Hopkins University, and Mount Sinai Health System - have established dedicated psychedelic research
centers in the last two years.

Psilocybin is considered a serotonergic hallucinogen, along with other tryptamines such as dimethyltryptamine, or DMT,
ergolines such as lysergic acid diethylamide, or LSD, and phenethylamines such as mescaline. It is an active ingredient in
some species of mushrooms and was first isolated from psilocybe mushrooms by Dr. Hofmann and synthesized in the late
1950s. While classified as a Schedule | drug, the FDA and DEA began permitting the use of psilocybin in clinical studies for
the treatment of a range of psychiatric conditions in the 1990s. Psilocybin has been researched as a potential treatment for a
range of CNS diseases for over 60 years.
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Mechanism of Action

There is an accumulating body of evidence that psilocybin may have beneficial effects on depression and other mental
health conditions. We believe the benefits of psilocybin are largely derived from its mechanism of action. As shown in the
graphic below, by activating a distinct set of receptors in brain areas critical to mood and cognition, psilocybin acts to induce a
range of downstream effects that may have important, sustained effects on brain function. In this way, evidence of the
molecular, cellular, and systemic effects of psilocybin in the CNS supports the potential for psilocybin in the treatment of
mental health conditions.
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Molecular Effects of Psilocybin: Partial Agonism of Serotonin Receptors

At the molecular level, psilocybin is rapidly metabolized to its active metabolite psilocin, which is a partial agonist at
several 5-hydroxytryptamine (serotonin) 2A, or 5-HT, receptors, also known as serotonin receptors, including 5-HT a4, 2¢, and
1a receptors. This means that psilocin binds to and activates these receptors, all of which are expressed in neurons in different
areas of the CNS. In particular, many of the prominent acute effects of psilocybin, such as changes in emotion and cognition,
are thought to be mediated by 5-HT:a receptor stimulation, an interpretation that is supported by the fact that blocking the 5-
HT2a receptor prevents the psychedelic effects of psilocybin in humans. This mechanism of 5-HT2a receptor stimulation is
also implicated as a possible component of the antidepressant action of SSRIs, although these operate by inhibiting reuptake of
serotonin by presynaptic neurons. In contrast, psilocin is believed to initiate an antidepressant effect by directly activating this
receptor. The relevance of 5-HTza receptors in modulating depressive symptoms may also be supported by the fact that these
receptors are abundantly expressed in multiple areas of the brain that have important roles in regulating cognitive and
emotional processing. For instance, 5-HT2 receptors are predominately expressed in cortical pyramidal neurons, the most
abundant type of neuron found in the human cerebral cortex, and thus may be implicated in executive function. Additionally,
5-HTa receptors are expressed in other key regions of the brain, like the hippocampus and nucleus accumbens, which are
associated with crucial biological functions like memory and reward processing, respectively.
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Cellular Effects: Activation of Downstream Signaling Cascades

Activation of 5-HT2a receptors by agonist ligands such as psilocin can modulate a number of downstream signaling
cascades to alter the structure and function of neurons, which are the primary signaling components of the CNS, The 5-HT:a
receptor is a G-protein coupled receptor, which means that it predominantly relays signals through a family of proteins called
G-proteins. Specifically, the main signaling cascade downstream of 5-HTza receptors occurs via the Gogi: protein and leads
to increased intracellular calcium release within the cell. In turn, this may promote neuron growth and function. However, non-
canonical 5-HT2a receptor signaling cascades specific to certain cell or tissue types may also exist, as there is evidence of
certain downstream effects of psychedelic agonists occurring via the Gay, protein, which typically downregulates signaling
pathways related to neurotransmitter release, for example, within neurons. This diverse range of cellular signaling cascades
that may be modulated by psilocin likely underlie some of the local circuit-level effects of the drug.

Local Circuit-Level Effects: Neurotransmitter Release and Neuroplasticity

The consequences of 5-HT receptor signaling cascades as modulated by psilocin include (i) changes in activation of
neurons in the brain, (ii) neuroplasticity, and (iii) alteration of neurotransmitter release. The activation of neurons, or
depolarization, corresponds to positive ions flowing into these cells, which ultimately drives signal transmission and
communication between neurons.

Neuroplasticity refers to the ability of the nervous system to reorganize its structure, function, and connections. This can
involve the generation of new neurons, changes in neuron morphology and connectivity, and neurobiochemical changes in
receptor and neurotransmitter levels. In particular, the expression of immediate early genes, or IEGs, such as Early Growth
Receptor-1, or EGR-1 and Early Growth Receptor-2, or EGR-2, is induced by psilocin. IEGs are genes activated in response to
external stimuli and are associated with depolarization. IEGs produce transcription factors that may cause wider changes in
gene regulation and, in turn, could enable longer-term neuroplastic changes through structural and connectivity changes at the
synapse. The fact that EGR-1 and EGR-2 appear to be induced specifically by psychedelic compounds suggests that these
genes could be relevant to the acute and sustained effects of these drugs.

Alterations in neurotransmitter release are another local circuit-level consequence of psilocin that may be relevant to its
psychoactive and mood effects. Specifically, evidence from rodent studies suggests that psilocybin may alter extracellular
release of serotonin and dopamine in brain areas such as the prefrontal cortex. By virtue of the extracellular neurotransmitter
release changes in certain brain areas, which have established roles in, for example, executive function, psilocybin may drive
positive mood effects.

Systemic Effects: Changes in Brain Activity and Functional Connectivity

At the systemic level, psilocybin has been shown to alter the synchronicity of neuronal activation within and between
different brain networks, during the psychedelic experience and afterwards. One network that has displayed altered
functioning after psilocybin treatment in recent studies is the default mode network, or DMN, a network of brain areas that
shows increased activation during self-referential mental activity and recollection of prior experiences and reduced activation
during attention-demanding tasks. During the acute experience, psilocybin appears to temporarily reduce synchronicity of
areas within the DMN, whereas connectivity between other brain areas and networks is substantially increased.
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The below figure is a visualization of the acute changes in brain network connectivity when healthy volunteers were
administered with placebo (left) or psilocybin (right). Lines represent connections between or within brain networks (shown as
nodes), with the width of those lines representing the weight of each connection. The size of each node corresponds to the sum
of its weighted connections. Colors represent communities of networks or regions that are more commonly connected to one
another than networks in different communities.

Simplified Visualization of the Acute Changes in Brain Network Connectivity

Placebo Psilocybin
> .-‘l""‘.'—w.. (P T
P g st ey,
. AT
; £
i {
s v
) s B &
{7 3\ 4
9 g 3 o
J . .
i" a‘l‘. »
- - A
(44 w N
L O‘ o % ,;'-i:.n-...

Study analyzed fMRI (functional magnetic resonance imaging) data from healthy volunteers to compare resting-state functional brain connectivity after
intravenous infusion of placebo and psilocybin. Adapted from Petri et al, 2014

On the day after these acute effects, individuals administered with psilocybin may exhibit increased synchranicity within
the DMN, as well as changes between areas of the DMN and other brain regions. These brain network alterations may indicate
the emergence of novel patterns of connectivity upon decoupling of the DMN and could lead to longer-term changes, such as
altered emotional processing, that may ultimately affect behavior.

Psilocybin Academic Studies

The therapeutic potential of psilocybin in depressive and anxiety conditions has been demonstrated in a number of
academic-sponsored studies over the last decade. In these studies, psilocybin, when administered in conjunction with
psychological support, provided rapid reductions in depression symptoms after a single high dose, with antidepressant and
anxiolytic effects occurring on the day of administration and lasting up to the six-month follow-up period for a number of
participants. These studies used a range of widely used and validated scales to assess symptoms related to depression and
anxiety. Some of these scales are self-reported and others are rated by clinicians.

These studies have shown psilocybin to be generally well-tolerated, with low toxicity and no serious adverse events, or
SAEs, reported. The low toxicity profile of psilocybin is corroborated by early non-clinical studies that indicate that very high
levels of psilocybin, in excess of 200mg/kg when administered intravenously, are required to induce toxic effects in rodents. A
2004 study estimated a lethal dose to he 6,000mg of psilocybin in an average, healthy 70kg adult, which vastly exceeds a
therapeutic dose range.

Psilocyhin is categorized as a Schedule | drug in the U.S. and a Class A drug in the UK, due to its abuse potential reported
in the 1960s. However, despite evidence of recreational use of natural sources of psilocybin, a recent and comprehensive
review used the structure of the eight factors of the U.S. Controlled Substance Act to assess the abuse potential of medically
administered psilocybin. It suggested that in a medical context psilocybin does not have a high abuse potential and that there is
no clear evidence for a physical dependence potential, based on animal and human data.

The totality of these data suggests that psilocybin therapy may exhibit clinical activity in patients with depression and
anxiety, when administered with psychological support from specially trained therapists. The table below summarizes the key
findings from academic-sponsored studies that we believe support the use of psilocybin therapy for treating mental health
conditions. None of these studies used COMP360.
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University of California

Mew York University

Johns Hopkins

Imperial College London

Johns Hopkins

Los Angeles Ross et al Griffiths et al Carhart-Harris et al Davis et al
Grob et al (2018) (2016) (2016, 2018) (2020)
(2011) (n=20)@ (n=51)® (n=20) (n=24)@
(n=12)®
Disorder Anxiety related to Anxiety or depression Anxiety or TRD MDD
advanced-stage cancer related to cancer depression in life-
threatening cancer
Design | Double-blinded, placebo- | Randomized, double- Randomized, Open-label Randomized
controlled blinded, placebo- double-blinded
controlled
Dose 14mg/70kg 21mg/70kg Low (1 or 10mg and subsequently 20mg/70kg (first)
3ma/70kg) High (22 25mg 30ma/70kg
or 30mg/70kg) (second)®
Outcome BDI, STAI, POMS HADS, BDI, STAI GRID-HAM-D, QIDS-SR-16 GRID-HAM-D
Measures HAM-A
Safety No SAEs attributed No SAEs attributed Mo SAEs attributed No SAEs attributed MNo SAEs attributed
findings to psilocybin to psilocyhin to psilocybin to psilocybin to psilocybin
administration administration administration administration; administration
only mild and transient
adverse events
Efficacy = BDI: 30% » Significant = A5 weeks + QIDS-SR-16 scores - 71% of
findings improvement at 1 and reductions (mild/ and 6 months, showed significant participants had
6 months vs baseline moderate to 92% and 79% improvement at all a clinically
and significant normal/minimal} in of high-dose post-treatment time significant
reduction from mild HADS, BDI and participants, points respanse in
to minimal depression STAI measures respectively, + Max effect at 5weeks depression
~ POMS: Trend + ~60-80% of continued to with 65% response scores at both 1
reduced adverse participants show (including 20% and 4 weeks.
mood at week 2, continued with clinically remission) 58% and 54%
returned to baseline at clinically significant + No patients sought achieved
6 months significant responses on conventional clinical
= STAL: Sustained responses on depression and antidepressant remission at 1
decrease in trait depression and anxiety treatment within 5 and 4 weeks
anxiety sub-score at anxiety measures measures weeks after psilocybin respectively
every time point for 6 therapy
manths
(@) =N numbers indicate the number of patients that completed at least one administration session. In some studies, not all administration sessions

(b)

Abbreviations: BDI, Beck Depression Inventory; GRID-HAM-D, GRID Hamilton Depression Rating Scale; HADS, Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale;
HAM-A, Hamilton Anxiety Rating Scale; HAM-D, Hamilton Depression Rating Scale; STAI, State-Trait Anxiety Inventory, POMS, Profile of Mood States

and/or follow-up measures were completed for all patients. Reasons provided for patients not completing the studies included patients becoming

too ill due to cancer progression, death due to cancer, or resumption of antidepression medications.

Some patients received the 20mg/70 kg dose again for their second dose. As used herein, “clinically significant response™ is defined as a >50%
reduction in depression or anxiety scores relative to baseline. “Clinical remission™ in the Davis et al study is defined as GRID-HAMD scores <7.

Responses and remission shown for Davis et al study are for “Immediate treatment™ group that had already received psilocybin therapy,

questionnaire; QIDS-SR-16, Quick Inventary of Depressive Symptomatology

University of California Los Angeles, Grob et al, 2011 - Existential Distress: Feasibility and Safety for Cancer Patients

In this 2011 study, 12 patients with anxiety related to advanced stage cancer (defined as diagnosis of acute stress disorder,
generalized anxiety disorder, anxiety disorder due to cancer, or adjustment disorder with anxiety) underwent two experimental
sessions spaced several weeks apart. In one session, each patient received 14mg/70kg psilocybin and in the other session each
patient received a placebo control (250mg niacin), and the order in which they were administered was randomized. The BDI,
POMS and STAI scoring scales were assessed one day before, one day after, and two weeks after each session. Each measure
was assessed again once a month for up to six months after the final session. There was a trend showing decreased BDI scores
at two weeks compared to one day before the first session. BDI scores were reduced by almost 30% at one month after the
second treatment. This change was sustained and became significant at six months. The POMS indicated a trend for reduced

adverse mood tone at two weeks after the first session compared to one day prior to psilocybin treatment. Although no

significant changes were observed on the STAI state anxiety score, a sustained decrease that was significant at one and three-
months post-treatment was evident on the STAI trait anxiety score. No SAEs were attributed to psilocybin administration.
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Significant Reduction in BDI Scores at Six Months Post Treatment Compared with Baseline

Beck depression inventory
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Graph displays changes in depression severity rep d by Beck Depression Inventory (BDI) score between haseline and six months following second

administration session. A reduction in BDI score was reported at the six month timepoint, compared to baseline. Effect sizes not reported. P-value = 0.03,
calculated by performing a t-test to compare the six month score with one day before the first administration. Adapted from Grob et al 2011,

New York University, Ross et al, 2016 — Existential Distress

This 2016 study recruited 29 patients with life-threatening cancer and clinically significant anxiety or depression (defined
as a primary diagnosis of acute stress disorder, generalized anxiety disorder, anxiety disorder due to cancer, or adjustment
disorder with anxiety and/or depression). Patients underwent two administration sessions, one in which 21mg/70kg psilocybin
was administered and one in which they received a placebo (250mg niacin). The administration sessions were spaced seven
weeks apart and the order in which they were administered was randomized. Baseline measurements were collected two to
four weeks prior to the first session. Statistically significant reductions in measures of anxiety and depression were observed
up to 26 weeks following the second dose in patients who received psilocybin first, compared with baseline. Although no
significant changes were observed in the placebo-first group prior to crossover, these patients also experienced statistically
significant, sustained reductions in a majority (five out of six) of anxiety and depressions measures following psilocybin
treatment. At 26 weeks following the final treatment, both groups exhibited antidepressant or anxiolytic, or reduction of
anxiety, response rates of 60-80% across a variety of measures, including BDI remission and response rates as well as HADS,
as demonstrated in the following graphic. No SAEs were attributed to psilocybin administration.

Statistically Significant Decrease in HADS Depression Scores at 26 Weeks Post Treatment

== Niacin-first group (no significant within-group difference versus baseiing)

10 = ; = =Cm Psilocybin-first group (no significant within-group difference versus baseiing)
i ~@- Niacin-first group(significant within-group difference versus bassing)
8 - 1 o e ok =@~ Psilocybin-first group (significant within-group difference versus baseling)

*  *

HADS Depression
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Graph illustrates changes in mean HADS Depression scores in niacin-first (blue) and psilocybin-first (purple) groups between baseline and 26-weeks after
second treatment. The psilocybin-first group exhibited significant reductions in depressed symptoms compared to the placebo group after the first
administration session. The niacin-first group also showed significant reductions in depressive symptoms 26 weeks after receiving psilocybin compared with
baseline. *p<0.05, **p=<0.01, ***p<0.001, calculated by performing between-group t-tests. Solid symbols indicate significant within-group differences versus
baseline. Data shown as mean + Standard Error (SE). Adapted from Ross et al, 2016.
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Johns Hopkins University, Griffiths et al, 2016 - Existential Distress

This 2016 study enrolled 51 patients with life-threatening cancer and a Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders, Fourth Edition (DSM-1V) diagnosis that included anxiety and/or mood symptoms. The patients were randomized to
receive either a low (1 or 3mg/70kg) or a high (22 or 30mg/70kg) dose of psilocybin first. At a second administration session
five weeks later, patients who had received the low dose first were given a high dose, whereas the high-dose first group were
given a low dose of psilocybin. In the high-dose first group, psilocybin treatment resulted in significant reductions in measures
of depression and anxiety at five weeks following the first session. Of the high-dose first group, 92% showed a clinically
significant response (=50% reduction in GRID-HAMD depression scores relative to baseline) at this five-week timepoint,
compared with 32% of the low-dose first group. These significant changes were sustained at the six-month follow-up in both
groups, with 79% of the high-dose first group and 77% of the low-dose first group continuing to show clinical response. More
than two thirds of patients described psilocybin therapy as among the top five most meaningful experiences of their lives,
alongside the birth of a child or the death of a parent, six months after their psilocybin therapy session. No SAEs were
attributed to psilocybin administration.

Statistically Significant Reductions in Depression and Anxiety (GRID-HAMD) Sustained Six Months Post Treatment
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Graph displays changes in GRID-HAMD scores between baseline and six months following first treatment, in groups receiving psilocybin low dose first or
psilocybin high dose first. These changes demonstrate the antidepressant effect of psilocybin in this population and supported greater efficacy for the high
dose of psilocybin. *p<0.05 and +p<0.05, caleulated using planned comparison t-tests. Asterisk indicates significant difference between the groups following
session 1 (Post 1) and cross denotes significant difference between scores at Post 1 and Post 2 timepoints in the group that received the psilocybin low dose
first. Data shown as mean + SEM. Adapted from Griffiths et al, 2016,

Imperial College London, Carhart-Harris et al, 2016, 2018 - TRD

In this study, conducted in 2016, 20 TRD patients with moderate to severe depression were dosed with 10mg psilocybin
and 25mg psilocybin in two separate administration sessions that occurred one week apart. All patients received the lower
dose in the first session. Among the 19 patients who completed the entire follow-up period, a statistically significant reduction
in depressive symptoms was observed for up to six months, compared with baseline, The maximum effect size (on the QIDS-
SR-16) was observed at five weeks post-treatment, at which point nine patients met the criteria for response (=50% reduction
in BDI score compared with baseline). No patients had sought conventional antidepressant treatment within five weeks of
receiving the high psilocybin dose. Only mild and transient adverse events were observed and no SAEs were attributed to
psilocybin administration.
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Significant Reduction in Depressive Symptoms Observed up to Six Months Post Treatment
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Graph shows changes in depression severity represented by QIDS score between baseline and six months after the second treatment. These changes
demonstrated a significant reduction in depressive symptoms following psilocybin treatment in TRD. Effect size comparing pre- to post-treatment scores is
represented by Cohen’s d values in red. Adapted from Carhart-Harris et al 2018.

Johns Hopkins University, Davis et al, 2020 - MDD

This study analyzed data from a total of 24 MDD patients who were randomized into two groups. One group received
treatment immediately following baseline measurements (“immediate treatment™), while a waitlist control group received
treatment eight weeks after baseline measurements (“delayed treatment™). Each patient received 20mg/70kg psilocybin in a
first session and either 20 or 30mg/70kg psilocybin in a second administration session. The authors reported significant
differences between the two treatment groups in depressive symptoms measured using the GRID-HAMD at one and four
weeks post-treatment (when the “delayed treatment™ group were still awaiting their first administration session), caused by a
decrease in scores of the “immediate treatment” group. In addition, at four weeks following treatment, 71% and 54% of study
participants met the criteria for clinically significant response (>50% reduction in GRID-HAMD depression scores relative to
baseline) and remission (GRID-HAMD scores <7), respectively.
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Significant Reduction in Depressive Symptoms Observed up to Four Weeks Post Treatment in Immediate Treatment
Group Compared with Delayed Treatment Group
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Graph shows depression severity represented by GRID-HAMD score between baseline and at one and four weeks post-treatment of the “immediate treatment™
group. Effect size (Cohen’s d): 1 week = 2.5, 4 weeks = 2.6. Graph created based on data from Davis et al 2020,

Qur Investigational Psilocybin Therapy - COMP360
Clinical Summary

COMP360 is our proprietary psilocybin formulation that includes our pharmaceutical-grade polymorphic crystalline
psilocybin, optimized for stability and purity. Our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy comprises administration of
our COMP360 with psychological support from specially trained therapists with specific professional and educational
qualifications. We are investigating the safety and effectiveness of our COMP360 psilocybin therapy in TRD, anorexia
nervosa and PTSD.

In our Phase 1 clinical trial in 89 healthy participants, completed in 2019, we observed that COMP360 was generally well-
tolerated, with no serious adverse events and no clinically relevant negative short- or longer-term effects on cognition or
emotional processing. According to analyses in this exploratory study, for the duration of the trial, there were no negative
effects on cognition (measured up to four weeks from administration) based on a range of validated measures from the
Cambridge Neuropsychological Test Automated Battery, or emotional processing (measured up to 12 weeks from
administration), based on widely accepted clinical and academic tests. The trial also demonstrated the feasibility of
administering COMP360 psilocybin to up to six healthy participants simultaneously, with 1:1 support.

In 2021, we completed a large-scale randomized, controlled, double-blind Phase 2b clinical trial of our COMP360
psilocybin therapy in 233 patients suffering with TRD, in 22 sites in 10 countries in North America and Europe. This is the
largest psilocybin trial completed to date. This dose-finding trial investigated the safety and efficacy of COMP360 in TRD,
and aimed to determine the optimal dose of COMP360, with three doses (1mg, 10mg, 25mg) explored. In November 2021, we
announced positive topline results from this trial which showed a rapid and sustained response for patients receiving a single
dose of COMP360 psilocybin with psychological support. The trial achieved its primary endpoint for the highest dose, with a
25mg dose of COMP360 demonstrating a statistically significant (p<0.001) and clinically relevant treatment difference
compared with the 1mg dose of COMP360 in terms of a reduction of depressive symptom severity after three weeks.

In December 2021 we announced the results from our exploratory study of COMP360 psilocybin therapy in conjunction
with SSRI antidepressant use. This single-arm open label study of 19 patients with TRD taking concomitant SSRI therapy with
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COMP360 psilocybin therapy using a single dose of 25mg saw comparable treatment outcomes to patients in our Phase 2b
trial where patients were withdrawn from their ongoing antidepressants prior to COMP360 psilocybin therapy. The results of
this study challenge the widely held belief that the use of serotonergic antidepressants together with psilocybin could interfere
with psilocybin’s therapeutic effect and provide a strong signal that COMP360 psilocybin therapy could be an adjunctive
treatment to SSRI antidepressants as well as a monotherapy. This could be helpful for some patients with TRD for whom
antidepressant withdrawal is a difficult step.

COMP360 Psilocybin Therapy Protocol

Our psilocybin therapy comprises administration of COMP360 with psychological support from specially trained
therapists. Psychological support is designed to facilitate patient safety and optimal therapeutic outcomes. Our psychological
support model is manualized and standardized for consistent delivery across all our trial sites, Our model is delivered over
three different phases: preparation, the COMP360 administration session, and integration.

Our psilocybin therapy takes place over a period of several weeks, and comprises:

*  Preparation: The objectives of the preparation sessions are to establish a therapeutic alliance between the patient and
therapist, and to demonstrate and practice the skills of self-directed inquiry and experiential processing, which we
believe are critical for embracing the psychedelic experience in the psilocybin administration session. We have
created an online preparation platform for patients where they can learn more about what to expect from the
experience and how to prepare for it.

«  Psilocybin administration: A psilocybin administration session lasts approximately six to eight hours and a therapist
and assisting therapist are present throughout the session. The therapist's goal during the session is to establish
psychological safety, minimizing anxiety and encouraging openness to all emerging experiences. The session takes
place in a room designed to be ambient, comfortable and calming. Patients wear eyeshades to help them focus
internally, lie on a bed, and listen to a carefully curated music playlist through a high-quality sound system and
earphones. After the acute effects of psilocybin subside, patients are evaluated for safety and discharged.

«  Post-administration integration: The objectives of integration sessions are to help patients process the range of
emotional and physical experiences facilitated by the psilocybin session and to generate insights that can lead to
cognitive and behavioral changes. We believe psilocybin therapy can give patients a sense of agency, whereby they
feel separate from their symptoms and empowered to make changes in their lives.

Therapists in the clinical development program of COMP360 psilocybin therapy for TRD are required to have an active
unrestricted professional license to practice as a clinical psychologist, psychiatrist, social worker or mental health counselor.
Therapists must also meet the required training and credentialing standards to practice psychotherapy in their region. Those
who have active, unrestricted professional licenses as mental health nurses or any other mental health professional may be
eligible to practice as a therapist in our clinical trials, subject to fulfilling criteria around equivalent clinical experience and
psychotherapy training as the professionals listed above.

QOur method of psychological support is based on our current understanding of psilocybin’s potential to generate new
insights and perspectives leading to reduced rigidity in thinking. This modification of thought patterns can be uncomfortable or
anxiety-provoking. Therapists refrain from intervening with the patient’s experience, unless required for safety reasons. Such
an approach differs from some forms of psychotherapy which can be more directive and interventional. Our therapist training
program sets out a formal and scalable methodology for psychaological support in psilocybin therapy. It will continue to evolve
as we progress COMP360 psilocybin therapy through clinical trials, but this manualized approach to the training program is an
important first step in reducing variation in psychological support and setting out a framework for training and evaluation of
this support. Details of the program were published in February 2021 in the peer-reviewed journal Frontiers in Psychiatry.

Preclinical and Clinical Experience

Preclinical Studies

We previously conducted a series of in vitro and in vivo toxicology studies, including tests for studies evaluating
genotoxicity and cardiotoxicity. The results of these studies allowed us to begin our Phase 2b clinical trial in TRD. The
required series of in vitro and in vivo safety and toxicology studies is continuing as planned, permitting an efficient start to our
Phase 3 program.
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Phase 1: Healthy Volunteers Trial

In 2019, we completed a Phase 1 clinical trial of COMP360 administered along with psychological support in healthy
participants. The trial recruited 89 healthy participants, of which 41 were females and 48 were males, with an average age of
36 years. This double-blind, placebo-controlled trial was the largest randomized controlled trial of psilocybin at the time, and
the first to simultaneously administer psilocybin, with 1:1 support from therapists in a clinical research setting. The trial was
conducted at the Institute of Psychiatry, Psychology and Neuroscience, King's College London and it was peer-reviewed and
published in The Journal of Psychopharmacology in January 2022,

Trial Design

Prior to administration, participants took part in a two-hour preparatory group session. Participants were randomized to
three arms: placebo, 10mg or 25mg doses of COMP360 in a 1:1:1 ratio. COMP360 was administered orally and 1:1
psychological support was given to up to six participants simultaneously at the facility. Participants were followed up for 12
weeks following drug administration and completed safety assessments, using a range of validated measures of cognitive
function and emotional processing.

Key Enrollment Criteria

Participants were males or females aged between 18 to 65 years of age. Participants with a current diagnosis or past
history of schizophrenia, psychosis, bipolar disorder, delusional disorder, paranoid personality disorder, schizoaffective
disorder, borderline personality disorder, major depressive disorder, panic disorder, generalized anxiety disorder, obsessive-
compulsive disorder, eating disorder, or body dysmorphic disorder, were excluded. Patients with first-degree relatives with the
aforementioned conditions, or a past history thereof, were also excluded. Additionally, participants were not deemed eligible if
they met criteria for current, or history of, substance abuse or dependency, had taken psychiatric medications within one year
of enrollment or had prior exposure to psilocybin within one year of signing the informed consent.

Clinical Findings

There were no SAEs reported, and no adverse events, or AEs, led to withdrawal. A total of 511 AEs were reported
throughout the 12-week duration of the trial. The tables below summarize the most frequently reported AEs, including AE
profile by treatment group, as well as ranking the most frequently reported AEs based on the COMP360 25mg psilocybin arm,
by group:

Placebo 10mg 25mg
(n=29) COMP360 COMP360
(n=30) (n=30)
Total number of treatment-emergent AEs reported 91 203 217
Total number of treatment-emergent AEs reported deemed to be 77 188 208
related or possibly related to study treatment

Number of treatment-emergent adverse events (AEs) reported by treatment group in our health volunteers trial.
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Most Frequently Reported AEs (MedDRA Code)? in our Phase 1 healthy volunteers trial

B 25mg psilocybin B 10mg psilocybin M Placebo

Hallucination®
usion

Mood altered
Headache
Eupheric mood
Fatigue

Emational disorder

Time perception altered

Tension headache

AEs (MedDRA code)

Somatic hallucination
Hypoaesthesia
Paraesthesia

Affect lability

Mental fatigue

Nausea

T T T T T 1
0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

Number of events reported

a  Ranked by incidence in the 25mg COMP360 group
b Includes auditory, gustatory, olfactory, tactile, and visual hallucinations
AE, adverse event; MedDRA, Medical Dictionary for Regulatory Activities
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COMP360 induced expected psychedelic experiences that generally resolved on the day of administration. In previous
third-party studies, these have been found to correlate with therapeutic effect. Of all AEs, 68% reported as starting and
resolving on the day of administration The median duration of AEs in all treatment arms across the 12-week trial was one day.

AE onset day: W 0 (day of drug administration) B 1 day post-administration
B 2 to 7 days post-administration W >1 week post-administration

25mg psilocybin
1 day 10mag psilocybin
Placebo

25mg psilocybin
2 days 10mg psilocybin
Placebo

25mg psilocybin |
3to 7 days 10mg psilocybin
Placebo

Duration of AE

25mg psilocybin
8 to 28 days 10mg psilocybin
Placebo

25mg psilocybin
>28 days 10mg psilocybin
Placebo

I T T ¥ T T T T ¥ T T T 1
0 10 20 30 40 50 €0 70 80 90 100 110 120

Number of events

Above Figure: Most frequent AEs: onset and duration by treatment arm in our healthy volunteers trial.
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There were 57 AEs reported of “mood altered,” of which only two related to negative alterations in mood. One of these
was in the placebo arm (“negative mood,” which started and resolved on the day of dosing) and one in the COMP360 10mg
psilocybin arm (“feeling moody or sensitive,” which started on Day 2 and resolved eight days later).

25mg 10mg Placebo
COMP360 COMP360 (n=29)
(n=30) (n=30)
Any “mood altered” AE 15 (50.0) 13 (43.3) 6 (20.7)
Introspection 7(23.3) 5(16.7) 1(3.4)
Reflections 3(10.0) 2(6.7) 2 (6.9)
Increased empathy 2(6.7) 3(10.0) 0
Sense of oneness 1(3.3) 4(13.3) 0
Introspection/reflection 1(3.3) 1(3.3) 1(3.4)
Laughter 1(3.3) 1(3.3) 0
New perspective 1(3.3) 1(3.3) 0
Awareness of importance of considering others 1(3.3) 0 0
Clarity of thought 1(3.3) 0 0
Contemplative state 1(3.3) 0 1(3.4)
Increased compassion 1(3.3) 0 0
Increased creativity 1(3.3) 0 0
Increased sense of connectedness 1(3.3) 0 0
More socially upbeat 1(3.3) 0 0
Reflections and new perspectives 1(3.3) 0 0
Sense of oneness and connectedness 1(3.3) 0 0
Being less judgmental 0 1(3.3) 0
Feeling more moody/sensitive 0 1(3.3) 0
Feeling rested 0 1(3.3) 0
Increased wit 0 1(3.3) 0
Reflections and new perspectives on relationships and society 0 1(33) 0
Sense of oneness 0 1(3.3) 0
Calm 0 0 1(3.4)
Feeling of adrenaline release 0 0 1(3.4)
Negative mood 0 0 1(3.4)
Unusual appreciation of music 0 0 1(3.4)

Above Table: Reported “mood altered” AEs ranked by incidence in the COMP360 25mg group in our healthy volunteers trial

“Mood altered™ AEs were grouped into this MedDRA preferred term post hoc, while retaining the non-MedDRA AE
description originally reported by the participant/investigator.

Participants completed a range of assessments of cognitive function and emotional processing. These included a range of
validated measures of cognition from the Cambridge Neuropsychological Test Automated Battery, or CANTAB, including,
amongst others, tasks of spatial working memory, rapid visual information processing and paired associates learning. Small
differences in cognitive outcomes were seen between the groups, but no negative trends were identified.

Assessments of emational processing included, amongst others, tasks of social cognition such as the Pictorial Empathy
Test, the Reading the Mind in the Eyes Test, the Scale of Social Responsibility, the Social Value Orientation, and the Toronto
Empathy Questionnaire. There were no consistent negative trends in emotional processing outcomes to suggest that either
COMP360 dose had short- or longer-term effects on these indicators.

According to analyses, we found no negative trends on cognition or emotional processing.
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Conclusions

This trial suggests that COMP360 was generally well-tolerated in healthy volunteers. There were no SAEs and analyses
assessing cognitive and emotional functions showed no clinically-relevant negative short- or longer term effects on cognition
or emotional processing of COMP360. The trial also showed the feasibility of simultaneous administration of COMP360 in up
to six people in the same facility, with 1:1 therapist support, which we believe could accelerate future clinical trials and
commercial scale-up.

Phase 2b Trial of Our COMP360 Psilocybin Therapy in TRD

In 2021, we completed a Phase 2b international multi-site, randomized, controlled, double-blind, dose-finding clinical trial
to assess the safety and efficacy of active doses of COMP360 (10mg or 25mg) compared with 1mg COMP360, administered
with psychological support, in patients suffering with TRD, across 22 trial sites in 10 countries in North America and Europe.
In November 2022, The New England Journal of Medicine, the world’s leading peer-reviewed medical journal, published the
positive results from our Phase 2b trial of COMP360 psilocybin therapy for TRD.

Trial Design

Patients who are on serotonergic medications were expected to taper off their medicine at least two weeks prior to the
baseline (Day -1) visit. Prior to administration, patients received at least one, and up to three, preparatory sessions with an
assigned therapist, in order to be informed and prepared for the COMP360 psilocybin session. During the COMP360
psilocybin session, a single dose of COMP360 was administered to patients. The objective was to provide a safe and
suppartive environment during the session. Patients received two post-administration integration sessions with their therapists
in which the psychedelic experience was discussed. Patients were followed up for 12 weeks, with a visit the day after
administration followed by an additional six visits, weekly for the first three weeks, and every three weeks for the remaining
nine weeks.

Primary, Secondary and Exploratory Endpoints

The primary endpoint of this trial was the change in the MADRS total score from baseline to week 3. MADRS is assessed
by independent raters in native language and is a widely accepted assessment of mood disorders. This variable was also being
analyzed for change from baseline to Day 2, weeks 1, 6, 9 and 12. This Phase 2b clinical trial was powered to capture a
statistically significant reduction in MADRS.

Secondary endpoints of the trial included:
«  The proportion of participants with a response (defined as a =50% decrease in MADRS total score from baseline) at
week 3;

+  The proportion of participants with remission (defined as a MADRS total score <10) at week 3;

«  The proportion of participants who had a sustained response at week 12, Sustained response was defined as the
proportion of patients fulfilling response criteria at any visit up to and including week 3, that also fulfills response
criteria at all subsequent visits up to and including week 12; and

«  Time to event measures: including restarting of antidepressant medication for any reason, suicidality, hospitalization
for depression, and relapse from a previous response to COMP360 psilocybin therapy.

Safety and tolerability of COMP360 in patients suffering with TRD was assessed based on AEs, vital signs, clinical
laboratory assessments, ECG findings and suicidal ideation/behavior (measured using the Columbia-Suicide Severity Rating
Scale, or C-SSRS score, at all visits).

The trial also assessed exploratory endpoints including, but not limited to, quality of life (EQ-5D-3L), functional
impairment (Sheehan Disability Scale, SDS), psychosocial functioning (Work and Social Adjustment scale, WSAS), cognition
(Digit Symbol Substitution Test, DSST), anxiety (Generalized anxiety disorder, GAD-7), and self-reported depression severity
(QIDS-SR-186).

Enrollment Criteria

We recruited a total of 233 adult patients with TRD into the trial. We define TRD patients as those who meet Diagnostic
and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, 5% Edition, or DSM-5, diagnostic criteria for a single or recurrent episode of
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MDD without psychotic features, who have not responded to an adequate dose and duration of two, three, or four
pharmacological treatments for the current episode of depression.

Clinical findings

The 25mg group vs the 1mg group showed a -6.6 difference on the MADRS depression scale at week 3 (p<0.001). The
25mg group demonstrated statistical significance on the MADRS efficacy endpoint on the day after the COMP360 psilocybin
administration, day 2 (p=0.002). The 10mg vs 1mg dose did not show a statistically significant difference at week 3. The

MADRS was assessed by independent raters who were remote from the trial site, and blind to intervention and study design,
effectively creating a triple blind.

Change from baseline in MADRS total score
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At week 3, 36.7% (29 patients) in the 25mg group were responders (defined as a =50% decrease in MADRS total score
from baseline), compared with 17.7% (14 patients) in the 1mg group. Furthermore, 29.1% (23 patients) in the 25mg group
were in remission (defined as a MADRS total score <10) at week 3, compared with 7.6% (6 patients) in the 1mg group. At
week 12, 20.3% (16 patients) in the 25mg group were sustained responders (defined as meeting the MADRS response criteria
at week 3 and week 12, and at least at one visit out of week 6 and week 9) compared with 10.1% (8 patients) in the 1mg group.
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MADRS response and remission rates
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MADRS = Montgomery-Asberg Depression Rating Scale

MADRS sustained response rates
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Patients meeting the MADRS response criteria &l any visit up to and including week 3 and at all subsequent visits up to and including at week 12, and who did not start any new reatments for depression.

As well as looking at clinician-rated depression severity on the MADRS, the trial explored other aspects which are
recognized as being important for patients with TRD - and essential to recovery - including positive and negative affect,
anxiety, self-rated depression severity, quality of life, functioning and cognition. These exploratory measures also showed that
patients in the 25mg dose group of COMP360 psilocybin therapy reported benefits on those measures over those in the 1mg
group. On the Positive and Negative Affect Schedule measuring positive and negative affect, patients in the 25mg group had a
higher increase in positive affect (e.g., including feeling interested, excited, strong) and a greater decrease in negative affect
(including feeling distressed, upset, afraid) on the day after COMP360 administration and at the questionnaire’s final
administration at week 3. On scales measuring anxiety (the Generalized Anxiety Disorder — 7 item scale), self-rated depression
(QIDS-SR-16) and functioning (Sheehan Disability Scale and Work and Social Adjustment Scale), a greater improvement was
also shown at week 3 by patients in the 25mg group compared with the 1mg group. A post-hoc analysis of the 16 sustained
responders in the 25mg group found that changes in quality of life, self-reported depression severity, and functioning, were
clinically meaningful, with mean scores for these patients returning to “normal” levels and maintained to 12 weeks, the end of
the trial. Additionally, sustained responders were found to have clinically meaningful increases in positive affect from baseline
at day 2 and week 3.
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COMP360 was generally well tolerated, with more than 90% of treatment-emergent adverse events (TEAEs) being mild
or moderate in severity and greater than 77% of TEAES occurring on the day of administration being resolved on the same day
or the next day. 179 patients reported at least one TEAE; the most common TEAEs across treatment groups (>10% overall
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incidence) were headache, nausea, fatigue, and insomnia. There were 12 patients who reported treatment-emergent serious
adverse events (TESAEs). These TESAEs included suicidal behavior, intentional self-injury, and suicidal ideation, which are
regularly observed in a TRD patient population.

Two thirds of the patients had previous thoughts of wishing to be dead, as assessed by a suicidality scale completed during
patient screening; this included all patients reporting one of these adverse events, meaning that patients who experienced these
events during the trial had said in patient screening that they had had suicidal thoughts prior to the trial. Further, a detailed
case-by-case post-hoc analysis of safety data did not establish a causal relationship between these TEAES of suicidal ideation,
suicidal behavior and intentional self-injury and administration of COMP360. The events occurred in all treatment groups and
at a range of onset times and durations; the majority occurred more than a week after the psilocybin session.

+  There was no difference between the three groups post-administration in scores from item 10 on the MADRS, which
measures suicidality and was assessed by a blinded remote rater; mean scores across treatment groups were lower
than baseline at all subsequent time points

« 27 of the TEAEs of suicidal ideation, suicidal behavior and intentional self-injury occurred across 17 patients, with
seven patients in the 25mg group, six in the 10mg group, and four in the 1mg group

« 14 of these events were reported as treatment-emergent serious adverse events (TESAES); these occurred across nine
patients, with four patients in the 25mg group, four patients in the 10mg group, and one in the 1mg group

= The majority of these TESAEs (10 events out of 14) occurred at least one week after the COMP360 psilocybin
session

«  All suicidal behaviors occurred at least one month after the psilocybin therapy session and all patients reporting these
events were non responders at their last assessment prior to the event or at the time of the event

Overall, 209 patients completed the study; there were five withdrawals from the 25mg group, nine from the 10mg, and 10
from the 1mg.

Phase 2 study of COMP360 psilocybin therapy as adjunct to SSRI antidepressants

In addition to our completed Phase 2b trial, we have also completed a Phase 2 trial of the safety and efficacy of COMP360
in TRD patients when administered as an adjunct to SSRIs. Results of this study, including additional details, will also be
published in a peer-reviewed journal.

This open-label study included 19 patients from clinical sites in Ireland and the United States. The primary endpoint was
the change in baseline MADRS total score at 3 weeks in patients having 25mg COMP360 psilocybin therapy given in
augmentation with their existing SSRI antidepressant regimen.

Clinical findings

The baseline MADRS score of patients entering the study was 31.7, representing moderate to severe depression. At week
3, 8 of the 19 patients (42.1%) were responders and all 8 were also remitters. The mean reduction from baseline observed in
MADRS total score was 14.9 at week 3. There was a rapid response from day 2 to week 3 after COMP360 therapy, which is
consistent with the Phase 2b result.
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COMP360 psilocybin therapy using a 25mg dose also showed overall signals of improvement in most other measures
including improvement in anxiety, clinician and self-rated depressive symptoms, and positive and negative affect.

25mg COMP360 psilocybin therapy was generally well-tolerated when it was administered simultaneously with the
patient’s existing SSRI treatment. There were no TEAEs classed as serious (life threatening, leading to disabilities,
hospitalization or in general medically significant) and no TEAEs related to suicidal ideation or behavior or intentional self-
injury.

Long-Term Phase 2 Study

During 2022, we completed a long-term follow-up study of 66 participants who took part in our Phase 2b trial. Of the 66
participants, 22 participants were in the 25mg group, 19 participants were in the 10mg group, 17 participants were in the Img
group and 8 participants were in the 25mg plus SSRI group. The primary endpoint of this Phase 2b follow-up study was the
median time to a new depressive event. The pre-specified primary analysis was of the median time for such an event for all
participants in our Phase 2b trial, not only those who took part in the long-term follow-up study. The median time to a new
depressive event was 92 days for the COMP360 25mg group compared to 86 days for the 10mg group and 62 days for the 1mg
group.

In an additional post-hoc analysis to support the primary endpoint only including those participants from our Phase 2b
study who took part in the long-term follow up study (COMP004) the median time to such an event was longer (189 days) for
the COMP360 25mg group compared to the 10mg group (43 days) and the 1mg group (21 days) (patients entering from our
Phase 2b study).

Twenty-seven or 40.9% of participants had an adverse event that was ongoing as of, or started, after week 12. In addition,
a lower proportion of participants started new treatments for depression in the 25mg and 10mg arm compared to the 1mg arm.
Suicidality was recorded as an adverse event twice in 25mg group, twice in the 10mg group, and once in the 1mg group. The
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outcomes of the long-term follow-up study informed the design of our Phase 3 registrational program, including investigating
whether a second administration of COMP360 may achieve improved durability, response and remission outcomes.

Phase 3 Registrational Program

We commenced our Phase 3 program evaluating our COMP360 psilocybin therapy in TRD. The Phase 3 program is
composed of two pivotal trials, each with a long-term follow-up component. The pivotal program design is as follows:

= Pivotal trial 1 (COMPO05) (n=255): a single dose (25mg) monotherapy compared with placebo. This trial is designed to
replicate the treatment response seen in our Phase 2b trial (n=233). We plan to conduct the COMPOO05 study mostly at sites in
the U.S. We expect top-line data in summer of 2024.

« Pivotal trial 2 (COMPOO0E) (n= 568): a fixed repeat dose monotherapy using three dose arms: 25mg, 10mg and 1mg.
This trial is designed to investigate whether a second dose can increase treatment responders and/or improve responses
observed in our Phase 2b trial and explore the potential for a meaningful treatment response from repeat administration of
COMP360 10mg. We expect top-line data by mid-2025.

« The primary endpoint in both pivotal trials is the change from baseline in MADRS total score at week 6.

Each of these trials will have a pivotal component and a long-term follow-up component. The long-term follow-up
component in both trials is similar. The long-term follow up component will include a 26 week extension where patients will
remain in their original assigned treatment arms and patients who meet criteria for re-treatment will have the option to receive
a further treatment session according to their assigned dose. This will be followed by a 26 week open label component during
which all patients who meet criteria for re-treatment will have the option to receive a 25mg dose of COMP360 psilocybin. We
believe that this design will enable us to characterize better the durability of COMP360 administration.

The design of these studies reflects protocol amendments that we are implementing, in part, to reflect our re-estimation of
sample size for COMPOOS and to incorporate long-term follow-up into both pivotal studies. Our re-estimation of the sample
size for COMP005 was based on recent data from the University of Zurich's placebo-controlled study of COMP360 in MDD
and further analysis of our Phase 2b data, with specific focus on participants in the 1mg arm who had a minimal psychedelic
experience. In January 2023, we submitted the protocol amendments for COMP005 to the FDA and requested feedback, and
the FDA has indicated that they plan to provide feedback by March 20, 2023. We will consider any comments we receive. \We
recently submitted protocol amendments for COMPOQO6 to incorporate long-term follow-up into this study following the same
design principles reflected in the COMPO0O05 protocol amendments that are already under review by FDA,

Additional clinical trials

Beyond TRD, we are evaluating COMP360 psilocybin therapy for the treatment of anorexia nervosa and PTSD. We are
conducting a double-blind randomized controlled Phase 2 clinical trial investigating the safety and efficacy of COMP360
psilocybin, administered with psychological support, in people with anorexia nervosa. It is a multicenter study and will enroll
60 patients. We have experienced some delays due to challenges in recruiting and screening participants for our Phase 2 trial
in anorexia nervosa. To address these challenges, we are making amendments to our trial protocol to reduce the trial burden
for this highly vulnerable patient population. As a result, we no longer expect to have data from this trial available in 2023, as
we had originally expected. We are also conducting a Phase 2 clinical trial to assess the safety and tolerability of COMP360
psilocybin therapy in PTSD. It is a multicenter, fixed-dose open label study and will enroll 20 participants. We expect data
from the PTSD study by the end of 2023.

Expansion Opportunities

The active metabolite of psilocybin, psilocin, is a partial agonist at several 5-HT receptors, including the 5-HT4 receptor.
The 5-HTza receptors are abundantly expressed in multiple areas of the brain that have important roles in cognitive and
emotional processing and could impact a range of cognitive and mental health conditions. We therefore believe psilocybin
could have transdiagnostic utility and intend to explore various expansion opportunities beyond our core program of
developing our psilocyhin therapy for TRD. For example, we are conducting an additional study to evaluate the safety and
tolerability of COMP360 psilocybin therapy in patients suffering from PTSD. We are also investigating the potential benefits
of compounds other than psilocybin through our Discovery Center, a research collaboration with University of the Sciences in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, US; UC San Diego, School of Medicine, in San Diego, California, US; and Medical College of
Wisconsin in Milwaukee, Wisconsin, US. See “—Drug Discovery Center”.
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Mechanistic Studies

We are working with academic researchers and CROs to investigate the mechanistic characteristics of psilocybin therapy.
We have also established a network of PhD studentships predominantly within the United Kingdom (namely at the following
universities: University of Oxford, University of Bristol, University of Reading and University of Southampton) to research
elements of this work. Our mechanistic research utilizes our COMP360 and currently focuses on the following themes:

= Study of the mechanisms by which psilocin, the active moiety of our high-purity polymorphic crystalline formulation
psilocybin, and other psychedelic agents engage receptors in recombinant cell based assays (collaboration with Professor
Trevor Sharp, University of Oxford), human induced pluripotent stem cell-derived neurons (collaboration with Professor
Stephen Haggarty, Massachusetts General Hospital - Harvard Medical School) and also native tissues. The aim here is to
understand which systems are optimal to use for discovery research, and to understand further how different drugs may
influence receptor-mediated signal transduction;

*  Viacollaborations with the University of Bristol (Professor Matt Jones, in particular) and CROs (e.g. Neurotar and
Ulysses Neuroscience), we are also investigating the integrated electrophysiological response to psychedelic administration, to
determine how changes in neuronal excitatory activity mediate brain-wide changes in resting state network activity;

»  Preclinical academic collaborations with the University of Bristol, Harvard University, and the Southern Denmark
University to study the effects of our high-purity polymorphic crystalline formulation of psilocybin on a number of different
aspects of behavior, including affective bias, reward learning and compulsive behavior that may provide insights relevant to
information processing alterations frequently observed in mental health conditions;

«  Collaborations with the University of Reading and the University of Southampton also focus on understanding what
the potential role of inflammatory modulating processes might be in the mechanism of action of COMP360;

*  Astudy of the sustained effects of our high-purity polymorphic crystalline formulation psilocybin through the
investigation of short- and long-term changes in gene expression (MRNA) and epigenetic regulation (miRNA and DNA
methylation) as part of an academic collaboration with the University of Bordeaux, France; and

*  Ahealthy volunteers study with Imperial College London, investigating the acute and long-term psychological and
brain effects of psilocybin therapy, using COMP360.

These studies will further our understanding of the mechanism of action and inform our decisions over which other
indications to explore, beyond TRD and PTSD.

Other Indications: Preclinical Studies

Through collaborations with academic institutions, we are generating preclinical and clinical data to explore the benefits
of our psilocybin therapy in indications outside TRD.

We work with CROs and academic institutions, including the University of Bristol and the University of Bordeaux, in
conducting preclinical studies.

Other Indications: Investigator-Initiated Studies, or 11Ss

With respect to clinical studies, we work with leading academic institutions and researchers under IIS clinical trial
agreements. These institutions include: Imperial College London, King’s College London, Maryland Oncology Hematology,
New York State Psychiatric Institute at Columbia University Medical Center, Sheppard Pratt, UC San Diego School of
Medicine, University of Copenhagen, and University of Zurich. The indications previously explored or currently being
explored in these 11S signal-generating and mechanistic studies include: anorexia nervosa, autism, bipolar type 11 disorder,
body dysmorphic disorder, chronic cluster headache, depression in cancer, MDD, severe TRD, and suicidal ideation.

We supply our 115 researchers with COMP360 psilocybin and encourage the open publication of all study findings. If an
11S using COMP360 psilocybin produces results with the potential to improve mental health care, we may seek to advance this
research through a clinical development program, with the goal of making it available for patients, although we have no pre-
existing contractual right to do so. In addition to providing our I1S researchers with COMP360 psilocybin, we have in the past
offered, and may continue to offer, support with regulatory submissions. Through our 11S collaborations, we ultimately hope to
bring more innovation to patients, as quickly and safely as possible.
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In May 2022, we announced that we would fund an IS that will use COMP360 psilocybin to explore how COMP360
psilocybin affects specific brain pathways in autistic adults. The double-blind, randomized, placebo-controlled study will
investigate whether there is a difference in the function of serotonin brain networks in autistic and non-autistic adults. The
researchers will use a range of imaging techniques and behavioral tasks to examine how the serotonin system is modulated by
COMP360 psilocybin. This exploratory study is being conducted by a research scientist who is employed by us and is a PhD
student at King’s College London. The study is being conducted at the Institute of Psychiatry, Psychology & Neuroscience
(IoPPN) at King’s College London and is co-sponsored by King’s IoPPN and South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation
Trust. It will enroll 70 adult participants, including 40 autistic people and 30 non-autistic people.

Data from 1155

In 2020, Imperial College London, London, UK completed an [1S of COMP360 titled “Psilocybin for Major Depressive
Disorder: Comparative Mechanisms™ (Psilodep-RCT, ClinicalTrials.gov Identifier: NCT03429075). In this randomized,
double-blind, exploratory clinical trial, the efficacy and mechanisms of action of COMP360 were compared with those of a
six-week course of the SSRI, escitalopram. A total of 59 adult participants with MDD of at least moderate severity were
randomized to receive either two 25mg doses of COMP360 three weeks apart or six weeks of daily escitalopram (10mg for
three weeks and 20mg for the following three weeks) alongside two 1mg doses COMP360 three weeks apart. In both trial
arms, participants received psychological support as part of the trial. The primary efficacy endpoint of the change from
baseline on the 16-item Quick Inventory of Depressive Symptomatology-Self-Report (QIDS-SR-16) showed a two-point trend
in favor of the COMP360 arm which was apparent from week 1. Adjusted-response rates for QIDS-SR-16 (defined as =50%
reduction from baseline in the QIDS-SR-16 total score) at week 6 were 70.2% for the COMP360 arm vs. 48.0% for the
escitalopram arm and adjusted-remission rates (defined as a QIDS-SR-16 total score <5) at week 6 were 57.1% and 29.1%,
respectively. For the MADRS — a more widely used and accepted clinician-rated scale which COMPASS is using as the
primary endpoint in their clinical trials — a least square means treatment difference of -7.2 was found. Similar patterns were
found on other secondary endpoints measuring work and social functioning, anxiety, avoidance, anhedonia, and wellbeing.
This work has been published in the New England Journal of Medicine (Carhart-Harris et al. 2021).

In 2021, Maryland Oncology Hematology at the Aquilino Cancer Center in Rockville, Maryland, U.S. completed an 11S
of COMP360 titled “The Safety and Efficacy of Psilocybin in Cancer Patients with Major Depressive
Disorder” (ClinicalTrials.gov Identifier: NCT04593563). In this open-label study involving 30 patients with a cancer diagnosis
and MDD, patients received a 25mg dose of COMP360 in conjunction with psychological support. Patients began with an
average MADRS score of 25.9, representing moderate depression and after COMP360 psilocybin therapy, the average score
decreased by 19.1 points. A sustained response (& decrease of =50% in the MADRS total score from baseline observed at any
visit up to and including week 3, and also fulfilled at week 8) was seen in 24 patients; 15 patients showed remission of
depressive symptoms (a MADRS score <10) one week after a single dose of COMP360, which was sustained up to eight
weeks. COMP360 psilocybin therapy was found to be generally well-tolerated with no treatment-related serious adverse
events. Adverse effects on the day of dosing were transient and as expected in line with other studies included headache,
changes in sensory perception, and mood alteration.

In 2022, Sheppard Pratt Health System completed an [1S of COMP360 titled “An Open Label Study of the Safety and
Efficacy of COMP360 in Participants With Severe Treatment-Resistant Depression (P-TRD)”. The investigator presented data
from this study at the Society of Biological Psychiatry Annual Meeting in the second quarter of 2022 In this open-label study
involving 12 patients with severe treatment-resistant depression, patients received a 25mg dose of COMP360 with
psychological support. All participants had tried at least five antidepressant treatments without success, prior to joining the
study. The researchers found that 58.3% (n=7) of the participants had maintained MADRS response criteria at 12 weeks after
COMP360 psilocybin administration, and a quarter had maintained remission (n=3). There was no increase in the suicidality
score based on the MADRS, and no treatment-related serious adverse events were reported throughout the study.

In 2022, the University of California San Diego School of Medicine completed an 118 of COMP360 titled “Evaluation of
Psilocybin in Anorexia Nervosa: Safety and Efficacy.” (ClinicalTrials.gov Identifier: NCT04661514). The investigator
presented data from this study at the Society of Biological Psychiatry Annual Meeting in the second quarter of 2022, In this
open-label study involving 10 patients with anorexia nervosa, patients received a 25mg dose of COMP360 in conjunction with
psychological support. The primary aim of this study was to assess the safety and tolerability of a single 25mg dose of
psilocybin in participants with anorexia nervosa based on adverse events, changes in vital signs, electrocardiograms and
clinical laboratory tests. Forty percent (n=4) experienced clinically meaningful reductions at the 3-month follow-up, based on
global score on the Eating Disorder Examination (EDE). Participants demonstrated nominally statistically significant
reductions in shape concerns on the EDE at the 1-month follow-up (mean change from pre-treatment=1.3; p=0.028) , and
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nominally statistically significant reductions in eating concerns on the EDE at the 3-month follow-up (mean change from pre-
treatment=1.1; p=0.047). Changes in weight concerns on the EDE were approaching nominal statistical significance at the 3-
month follow-up but were not statistically significant (mean change from pre-treatment=1.2). COMP360 psilocybin therapy
was well-tolerated with no treatment-related serious adverse events reported.

In 2022, Sheppard Pratt Health System completed an 11S of COMP360 titled “The Safety and Efficacy of Psilocybin in
Participants With Type 2 Bipolar Disorder (BP-11) Depression.” (Clinical Trials.gov Identifier: NCT0443384512). The
investigator presented data from this study at the Annual Meeting of the American College of Neuropsychopharmacology
(ACNP) in December 2022. In this open-label study involving 14 patients with type 2 bipolar disorder, patients received a
25mg dose of COMP360 with psychological support. The study found that 86% (12 out of 14) of the participants met response
and remission criteria for the MADRS scale at 12 weeks after COMP360 psilocybin therapy. There was no increase in the
suicidality score based on the MADRS, no manic symptoms and no unexpected adverse events or difficulties with the dosing
sessions reported throughout the study. No treatment-related serious adverse events were reported.

In 2022, University of Zurich completed an 1S of COMP360 titled “Phase 11, Randomized, Double Blind, Placebo
Controlled, Parallel Group, Single Center Study of Psilocybin Efficacy in Major Depression.” (Clinical Trials.gov Identifier:
NCT03715127). The investigator published data from this study in The Lancet (Von Rotz et al, Lancet 2023; 56:101809). In
this double-blind, randomized clinical trial, 52 patients with major depressive disorder were randomized 1:1 to receive either a
single, moderate dose (0.215 mg/kg body weight) of COMP360 psilocybin or placebo in conjunction with psychological
support. MADRS and Beck's Depression Inventory (BDI) scores were assessed to estimate depression severity and the primary
endpoints were defined as changes from baseline to two weeks after the administration of COMP360. At the two-week
endpoint, response rates resulted in 58% for MADRS (COMP360 psilocybin: 15/26 vs. Placebo: 4/26; P = 0.0034) and for
BDI in 54% (COMP360 psilocybin: 14/26 vs. Placebo: 3/26; P = 0.0025). At the two-week endpoint, remission rates were
reported in 54% of patients for MADRS (COMP360 psilocybin: 14/26 vs. Placebo: 3/26; P = 0.0023) and assessed by BDI in
46% (COMP360 psilocybin: 12/26 vs. Placebo: 3/26; P = 0.013). Adverse events were in line with other studies and included
headache, dizziness, nausea and diarrhea. No cases of suicidal behavior occurred during the trial period of approximately one
month and no treatment-related serious adverse events were reported.

Drug Discovery Center

On August 5, 2020, we established a Drug Discovery Center under a sponsored research agreement with the University of
the Sciences in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (which merged into Saint Joseph’s University in 2022), or USciences, to focus on
developing optimized psychedelic and related compounds targeting the 5-HT 24, receptor, which is believed to mediate the
potential therapeutic effects of psychedelics. Pursuant to the agreement, USciences is performing research services on our
behalf, and has granted us an exclusive, royalty bearing, worldwide license, including rights to sublicense, all jointly held
intellectual property for any and all purposes, and a non-exclusive, fully paid-up, worldwide license to any pre-existing
intellectual property utilized over the course of performing the services. Under the agreement, we will pay a one-time research
service fee of an estimated $0.5 million and tiered payments upon completion of certain milestones by USciences up to an
aggregate of $0.9 million per licensed product covered by a valid claim of a patent included in the intellectual property rights
licensed to us under the agreement, as well as a low single-digit royalty percentage on annual net sales of licensed products
covered by a valid claim of a patent included in the intellectual property rights licensed to us under the agreement, subject to
certain reductions. In addition, USciences is entitled to a low double-digit percentage of sublicense revenue for agreements
entered into prior to a Phase 2 trial, and a mid-single-digit percentage of sublicense revenue for agreements entered into after
the start of a Phase 2 trial. Unless earlier terminated, the agreement terminates upon the expiration or revocation of the last
valid claim of any patent included in the joint intellectual property. We and USciences can terminate the agreement in the
event of a material breach by the other party and failure to cure such breach within a certain period of time. Additionally, we
and USciences can terminate the research service in the event of a material safety or regulatory issue with respect to the
research service. We may also terminate the research service at will upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to USciences.
USciences can terminate the research service if such services would materially and negatively interfere with its operations or
upon the continuation of a force majeure event. There are no current licensed patents or patent applications under the
sponsored research agreement.

In February 2021, we expanded the Discovery Center through a collaboration with laboratories at UC San Diego, School
of Medicine (San Diego, California, US), and Medical College of Wisconsin (Milwaukee, Wisconsin, US). Scientists from
these teams will work with us and the team from USciences, from their different locations, in a virtual network.

In September 2021, we acquired an intellectual property, or IP, portfolio including patent applications covering a variety
of psychedelic and empathogenic substances at a cost of $1.2 million. The IP was developed together with inventor Matthias
Grill PhD, founder and CEO of MiHKAL GmbH in Basel, Switzerland, who will be working with us on an exclusive research
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project to develop new product candidates. The substances covered in the IP portfolio include a variety of psychedelic and
empathogenic compounds, some of which are prodrugs, or pharmacologically inactive compounds which are metabolized
inside the body to produce an active drug. The new substances include novel derivatives of known compounds, increasing the
confidence in therapeutic effects and safety profile while offering optimized characteristics.

Ongoing research on prodrug development has led to a number of potential candidate leads being identified that we plan
to continue through further research based development.

Investments
Delix Therapeutics

On March 6, 2020 we made a strategic investment to acquire an 8% (on a fully diluted basis) shareholding in Delix
Therapeutics, Inc., a drug discovery and development company researching novel small molecules for use in CNS indications.
Delix Therapeutics develops non-hallucinogenic psychoplastogens, which are molecules capable of promoting neural
plasticity without hallucinogenic effects, by modifying existing psychedelics. These compounds may have potential for a
range of neuropsychiatric conditions.

Therapist Training

Our established therapist training program was originally designed by experts from the fields of psychology, psychiatry
and psychedelic therapy research. We are continuously evaluating opportunities to improve the quality and scalability of our
therapist training program. To date, we have trained more than 200 therapists, approximately 65 of whom have been approved
to lead sessions independently, and approximately 40 of whom are engaged in our active clinical trials. Therapists are often
referred to us by clinical trial sites and are employed by the sites. Details of our therapist training program were published in
February 2021 in the peer-reviewed journal Frontiers in Psychiatry.

Qur core training curriculum consists of:

«  Tier | - Theoretical Training: Approximately five hours of self-paced online learning through our interactive therapist
training platform, including a therapist manual, videos illustrating the competencies required from therapists
throughout preparation, psilocybin administration, and integration sessions with study participants, and self-assessed
knowledge checks;

= Tier Il - Practical Clinical Skills Training: Approximately 30 hours of live, remotely-delivered (via Zoom) interactive
learning, led by therapist trainers;

«  Tier Il - Clinical training: At this stage, therapist trainees review a selection of session recordings from our previous
psilocybin therapy studies (on our interactive therapist training platform), and support one participant in a COMP360
psilocybin therapy study alongside a therapist qualified to lead sessions independently. Following completion of Tier
111, therapists are able to lead sessions independently; and

«  Tier IV - Continuous Professional Development: Therapists receive group mentoring and support throughout their
participation in our clinical studies. Mentors have access to video/audio recordings of sessions (with participant
consent) led by their mentees, and are therefore able to provide adequate feedback to ensure fidelity to the
psychological support model.

Our therapist training program is currently available to professionals involved in our ongoing studies. As we scale, we
may expand our training to a larger pool of qualified mental healthcare professionals.

Using Digital Technology

We believe digital technology will change the way patients access psychotherapy services and manage their mental health
conditions. We anticipate saftware applications will enhance activities traditionally done with an in-person therapist. We also
believe remote consultations will help to remove barriers to accessing treatment such as stigma or lack of transportation.
Furthermore, digital tools will enable greater self-care, as they support patients managing depressive episodes on their own
and will be used to complement and augment psychotherapy and pharmacological treatments.

Working with third parties, we currently use digital technology in a number of ways:
+ An online preparation platform for participants in our TRD trial to educate them and help prepare them for their
psilocybin experience;




«  Aweb-based “shared knowledge” interactive therapist training platform, complementing our comprehensive face-to-
face training program;

»  Collection of measurements in our Phase 2b clinical trial, including remote data collection using mobile devices so
patients do not need to travel into study sites for all in-clinic visits;

«  Collection of some digital phenotyping information through the measurement of human-smartphone interactions; and

*  Harnessing Al and natural language processing capabilities to potentially characterize the mechanism of change and
assess therapist fidelity to our treatment protocol for psychological support. We are building an in-house digital team
with experts in digital technology, engineering, and Al, which we refer to as augmented intelligence as well as
artificial intelligence. We will continue to collaborate with other digital companies to research, develop and
ultimately commercialize proprietary digital technology solutions that have the potential to complement and augment
our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy. We believe this may enable us to offer a personalized, preventative
and predictive care model.

Manufacturing and Supply

We do not own or operate, and currently have no plans to establish, any manufacturing facilities. We rely on contract drug
manufacturing organizations, or CDMOs, to synthesize the active pharmaceutical ingredient, or API, that comprises
COMP360, and to blend the API excipients and encapsulate. All manufacturing processes are contracted to be compliant with
current Good Manufacturing Practice (cGMP). We expect to continue to rely on third parties for the production of all clinical
supply drug substance and drug product that we may use. We use additional contract manufacturers to fill, label, package,
store and distribute our drug product. We currently rely on a single supplier for our AP1 but have identified additional
manufacturers who have the appropriate experience and expertise to act as back-up suppliers of API and fill-and-finish
services. We believe we maintain sufficient supply of API to avoid any material disruptions in the event of any need to replace
one or more of our suppliers.

Commercialization

If our COMP360 psilocybin therapy is approved, we plan to use our own sales and marketing capabilities, targeting public
and private healthcare providers and clinic networks in the U.S. and major European markets. In select geographies, including
Asia and South America, we may enter into commercialization collaborations with third parties who have complementary
commercial capabilities.

Upon any approval, we intend to offer a range of services to enable the safe and effective use of COMP360 with
psychological support in clinical practice. These services are expected to include therapist training, information and education
for patients and healthcare providers, and implementation support for treatment centers, such as guidance on procurement and
installation of equipment, certification, and quality assurance.

Centers of Excellence

In line with our ambition to create a new mental health care model, we intend to establish Centers of Excellence to serve
as research facilities and innovation labs. In January 2021, we established our first Center of Excellence, with The Sheppard
Pratt Institute for Advanced Diagnostics and Therapeutics, in Baltimore, Maryland, in the United States. In March 2022, we
announced a strategic collaboration with King’s College London and South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust, or
SLaM, to establish The Center for Mental Health Research and Innovation with an overarching goal of accelerating patient
access to evidence-based innovation in mental health care by driving forward research in psychedelic therapies through,
among other things, the development of working model psychedelic treatment clinics, therapist training programs, conducting
clinical trials, and data analysis.

Our potential future Centers of Excellence will be designed to model the “clinics of the future,” and through them we
intend to gather evidence to shape our therapy model and prototype digital technology solutions to improve patient experience
and support therapists. Methodologies developed in the Centers of Excellence will be shared with our partner clinics.

Centers of Excellence will allow us to test and establish a new blueprint for innovative care models that can be licensed or
franchised to existing behavioral health providers, community mental health teams, private clinic networks, partial
hospitalization programs, and intensive outpatient programs,

41




We intend to establish additional Centers of Excellence for several purposes, including:
»  Conducting clinical trials, including proof of concept studies, to refine our therapeutic model;

«  Participating in late-stage trials as a clinical trial site;

«  Training and certifying therapists who are supporting or will support our clinical trials;

= Generating and collecting safety and other data, as well as (licensable) intellectual property;
«  Developing and testing digital technology solutions to improve patient experience;

»  Strengthening our regional presence as a scientific and clinical resource by showcasing what we believe to be the
future of mental health care, fostering relationships with stakeholders including patients, providers, payors and public
policymakers; and

«  Refining our approach to delivering our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy safely and cost-effectively.
Competition

Our industry is characterized by many newly emerging and innovative technologies, intense competition and a strong
emphasis on proprietary product rights. While we believe that our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy represents a
fundamental shift in the treatment paradigm relative to other TRD treatments, we face potential competition from many
different sources, including major pharmaceutical, specialty pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies, academic
institutions, governmental agencies and medical research organizations. Any product candidates that we successfully develop
and commercialize, including our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, will compete with the standard of care and
new therapies, both pharmacological and somatic, that may become available in the future.

Currently, only two pharmacotherapies are approved for TRD in the U.S.: Spravato (esketamine), marketed by Janssen,
which is an NMDA receptor antagonist; and olanzapine and fluoxetine hydrochloride capsules, which are available
generically. Because TRD, by definition, encompasses patients who have not been helped after two or more MDD therapies,
antidepressants indicated for use in MDD are frequently prescribed, combined or augmented with a second agent to treat TRD
patients. Several biopharmaceutical companies have therapies in clinical development. We are aware that Sage Therapeutics
and Axsome Therapeutics, among others, are developing treatments for TRD.

Multiple somatic therapies are also used in TRD, such as ECT and rTMS. Psychotherapeutic approaches, like CBT, are
used for MDD and TRD patients.

We also face competition from 501(c)(3) non-profit medical research organizations, including the Usona Institute, Such
non-profits may be willing to provide psilocybin-based products at cost or for free, undermining our potential market for
COMP360. In addition, a number of for-profit biotechnology companies or institutions are specifically pursuing the
development of psilocybin to treat mental health illnesses, including TRD.

We are aware of other organizations or institutions evaluating the use of psilocybin in mental health and neurocognitive
conditions. In addition, there are various companies exploring other psychedelic compounds for the treatment of mental health
and neurocognitive conditions.

Many of the pharmaceutical, biopharmaceutical and biotechnology companies with whom we may compete have
established markets for their therapies and have substantially greater financial, technical, human and other resources than we
do and may be better equipped to develop, manufacture and market superior products or therapies. In addition, many of these
potential competitors have significantly greater experience than we have in undertaking non-clinical studies and human
clinical trials of new therapeutic substances and in obtaining regulatory approvals of human therapeutic products. Accordingly,
our competitors may succeed in obtaining FDA, EMA or MHRA approval for alternative or superior products. In addition,
many competitors have greater name recognition and more extensive collaborative relationships. Smaller and earlier-stage
companies may also prove to be significant competitors, particularly through collaborative arrangements with large,
established companies. An increasing number of companies are increasing their efforts in discovery of new psychedelic
compounds.
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Patents and Other Intellectual and Proprietary Rights

Obtaining, maintaining and defending patents and other intellectual property (“IP”) rights, whether independently or in
collaboration with our partners, are of key importance in the protection and commercialization of the Company’s innovative
therapies. We shall continue to seek patent, trademark, and trade secret protection of our innovations in the U.S., EU, UK, and
other selected jurisdictions. This includes pursuing patent protection for our novel high-purity polymorphic crystalline
psilocybin and related manufacturing processes, pharmaceutical compositions, formulations, and methods of treatment of
psychiatric and neurological indications, including TRD, MDD, PTSD, and anorexia. This also includes pursuing trademark
protection for the Company’s various marks.

Upon regulatory approval in a particular jurisdiction, we will also seek to meaningfully protect our innovations by
asserting available regulatory exclusivity including regulatory data protection and market exclusivity. For example, upon
approval from the U.S. FDA, we may be entitled to five years of regulatory exclusivity for New Chemical Entity, or NCE, and
upon approval from the European Medicines Agency, or EMA, we may be entitled to ten years of regulatory exclusivity.

We will also defend our patents and other IP and proprietary rights as need be if and when we are subjected to third-party
challenges (e.g., litigation, post-grant review, inter-partes review, oppositions).




Patents and Patent Applications

Our patent portfolio related to COMP360 includes the following patents and published patent applications:

Territory | Patent Number/ Subject Matter Expiration Date | Corresponding Ex-U.S.
Application Patents and Patent
Number Applications or PCT
National Stage
Applications
us 10,519,175 Methods of treating treatment- ca.2038* Applications filed in
resistant depression Australia, Brazil, Canada,
us 10,947,257 Oral dosage forms of crystalline ca.2038* China, Colombia, Eurasian
psilocybin; Methods of treating Patent Organization,
major depressive disorder (MDD) ﬁ”t{gﬁ:sai'; F;itrggf ?mf:'
us 10,954,259 Crystalline psilocybin; ca.2038* Japan, Republic of Korea,
Pharmaceutical formulations; Mexico, Malaysia, New
Method of treating MDD Zealand, Philippines, Saudi
- Arabia, Singapore,
Us 11,180,517 | Method of treating treatment- ca2038% | Trailand and South
resistant depression Africa.
us 11,505,564 Method of manufacturing ca.2038*
GB 2571696 Method of manufacturing ca. 2037*
GB 2572023 Crystalline psilocybin; ca, 2038*
Pharmaceutical formulations;
Medical uses (including for
treatment-resistant depression);
Method of manufacturing
GB 2576059 Pharmaceutical formulations ca. 2038*
GB 2588505 Method of manufacturing ca. 2038*
GB 2588506 Crystalline psilocybin; ca. 2038*
Pharmaceutical formulations;
Method of manufacture
DE 202018006384 | Crystalline psilocybin; ca. 2038*
Pharmaceutical formulations
PCT, W0O/2020/2129 | Methods of treating anxiety ca. 2040* Applications filed in U.S.,
51 disorders and other conditions Australia, Canada, China,
European Patent Office,
Japan and Republic of
Korea
us 17/540,962 Method of treating PTSD ca. 2040*
PCT | WO02020/2129 | Methods of treating ca. 2040 | Applicationsfiledin U.S.,
48 neurocognitive disorders and other Australia, Canada, China,
conditions European Patent Office,
Japan and Republic of
Korea
PCT W02020/2129 | Methods of treating depression ca. 2040* Applications filed in U.S.,
52 and other disorders Australia, Canada, China,
European Patent Office,
Japan, Republic of Korea
and Taiwan
PCT | WO2022/207746 | Pharmaceutical formulations ca. 2042* Applications filed in
Taiwan and Argentina.
National Stage
Applications to be filed.

*In general, a U.S. patent, as well as most foreign patents, will expire after 20 years from the earliest effective filing date. In the U.S., it may be possible to
extend the patent term beyond the 20 years by requesting patent term extension, or PTE, of patents that claim a product requiring regulatory approval prior to
sale. PTE restores to a patent owner, patent term which was effectively “lost™ due to regulatory review. Similar term extensions may be available outside of
the U.S. Further, in the U.S., it may also be possible to extend beyond the 20-year patent term as a result of prosecution delays caused by the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office.




U.S. Patent No 10,519,175, was granted on December 31, 2019, with claims directed to methods of treating treatment-
resistant depression with oral dosage formulations of COMPASS’s high-purity crystalline psilocybin (including COMP360).
Three Third Party Observations were previously filed during the pendency of the application, each considered by the Examiner
and found to not be a barrier to patentability. A Petition for post-grant review of the patent was filed on February 21, 2020
and was dismissed on the merits on August 20, 2020.

On December 15, 2021, Freedom to Operate, Inc., filed a petition for post-grant review of U.S. Patent No. 10,947,257,
The patent owner’s response was filed on March 29, 2022. On June 22, 2022, the USPTO denied institution of the post-grant
review. Freedom to Operate, Inc. filed a request for rehearing on July 22, 2022, and a request for Precedential opinion panel
on August 16, 2022. The USPTO Board denied the request for Precedential Opinion Panel (POP) review on February 10,
2023. The USPTO Board has not yet issued a final decision on the request for rehearing.

On December 22, 2021, Freedom to Operate, Inc., filed a petition for post-grant review of U.S. Patent No. 10,954,259,
The patent owner's response was filed on April 11, 2022. On June 22, 2022, the USPTO denied institution of the post-grant
review. Freedom to Operate, Inc. filed a request for rehearing on July 22, 2022, and a request for Precedential opinion panel

on August 16, 2022, The USPTO Board denied the request for Precedential Opinion Panel (POP) review on February 10,
2023. The USPTO Board has not yet issued a final decision on the request for rehearing.

UK patent, No GB2571696, was granted in May 2020 with claims directed to large scale manufacture of psilocybin,
psilocybin made by said process and formulation comprising psilocybin made by said process. The Intention to Grant was
sent in December 2019, and Third-Party Observations were filed in late January 2020, shortly before grant was originally
scheduled. Grant of the patent was announced in the Patents Journal on May 27, 2020. This patent has an expiry date of
October 8, 2037. On June 11, 2020, Kohn & Associates PLLC filed a request at the UK Intellectual Property Office to issue
a post-grant opinion on the validity of the patent claims. On April 27, 2021, the agency issued a decision to refuse the request
for an opinion finding that it was inappropriate in all the circumstances to issue such an opinion. No appeal to this decision
was lodged within the required 28-day period.

UK patent, No GB2572023, was granted in June 2020. This patent includes claims covering our crystalline psilocybin
(including the form used in COMP360), pharmaceutical formulations of crystalline psilocybin, medical uses of crystalline
psilocybin (including for treatment-resistant depression), and a method of manufacturing crystalline psilocybin. The Intention
to Grant was sent in December 2019, and Third-Party Observations were filed in late January 2020. A notification of grant was
mailed June 23, 2020, and grant was announced in the Patents Journal on July 22, 2020. This patent has an expiry date of June
28, 2038. On August 27, 2020, Freedom to Operate, Inc. filed a request at the UK Intellectual Property Office to issue a post-
grant opinion on the validity of the patent claims. On July 28, 2021 a non-binding opinion was issued by the agency finding
that granted claims 1, 3 and 10-20 are not inventive. We submitted an amendment to the patent claims and on November 5,
2021 the agency provided notice that the amended specification would be published for opposition in the Patents Journal on
December 1, 2021. On December 17, 2021, the agency then issued a decision to not initiate revocation proceedings against
the patent.

On November 22, 2022, Porta Sophia filed a Third-Party Observation against international patent application
W02022/207746.

Trademarks

The Company has pursued protection for its trademarks across Classes 5, 9, 10, 35, 41, 42, 44 or various combinations
thereof. Our trademark portfolio includes filings for the COMPASS, COMPASS PATHWAY'S, C Design,
MYPATHFINDER, and CHANTERELLE marks in the United States, European Union, and United Kingdom, as detailed in
the chart below.

The Company owns registrations for the COMPASS, COMPASS PATHWAY'S, and C Design marks in the United States,
European Union, and United Kingdom; and for the MYPATHFINDER mark in the United Kingdom. Applications are pending
for the MYPATHFINDER mark in the United States and European Union; and for the CHANTERELLE mark in the United
States. The Company also owns trademark registrations and pending applications in other countries.
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Mark Territory Class(es) Trademark Application/ | Filing/Registration Status
Registration Date
No.

COMPASS us 5,9, 10, 35,41, 44 6648807 February 22, 2022 Registered
EU 5,9 10, 35,41, 44 1568499 May 25, 2021 Registered
UK 5,9,10, 35,41, 44 3476175 August 10, 2020 Registered
COMPASS us 5,9, 10, 35,41, 44 6648818 February 22, 2022 Registered
PATHWAYS EU 5,9, 10, 35, 41, 44 1570415 June 1, 2021 Registered
UK 5,9, 10, 35,41, 44 3476163 August 14, 2020 Registered
us 5,35,41 42, 44 6836992 September 6, 2022 Registered

@) us 9,10 90801777 June 29, 2021 Pending
EU 5,41, 44 1644148 June 30, 2022 Registered
UK 5,41, 44 1644148 May 5, 2022 Registered

MYPATHFINDER us 9,42 97174167 December 15, 2021 Pending

EU 9,42 1685580 June 7, 2022 Pending
UK 9,42 1685580 December 15, 2022 Registered

CHANTERELLE us 9,42 97626719 October 11, 2022 Pending

Government Regulation

The FDA and other regulatory authorities at federal, state and local levels, as well as in foreign countries, extensively
regulate, among other things, the research, development, testing, manufacture, quality control, import, export, safety,
effectiveness, labeling, packaging, storage, distribution, recordkeeping, approval, advertising, promotion, marketing, post-
approval monitoring and post-approval reporting of drugs. We, along with our vendors, contract research organizations and
contract manufacturers, will be required to navigate the various preclinical, clinical, manufacturing and commercial approval
requirements of the governing regulatory agencies of the countries in which we wish to conduct studies or seek approval of our
product candidates. The process of obtaining regulatory approvals of drugs and ensuring subsequent compliance with
appropriate federal, state, local and foreign statutes and regulations requires the expenditure of substantial time and financial
resources.

In the United States, the FDA regulates drug products under the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, as
amended, its implementing regulations and other laws. If we fail to comply with applicable FDA or other requirements at any
time with respect to product development, clinical testing, approval or any other legal requirements relating to product
manufacture, processing, handling, storage, quality control, safety, marketing, advertising, promotion, packaging, labeling,
export, import, distribution, or sale, we may become subject to administrative or judicial sanctions or other legal
consequences. These sanctions or consequences could include, among other things, the FDAs refusal to approve pending
applications, issuance of clinical holds for ongoing studies, suspension or revocation of approved applications, warning or
untitled letters, product withdrawals or recalls, product seizures, relabeling or repackaging, total or partial suspensions of
manufacturing or distribution, injunctions, fines, civil penalties or criminal prosecution.

The process required by the FDA before our product candidates are approved as drugs for therapeutic indications and may
be marketed in the United States generally involves the following:

+  Completion of extensive preclinical studies in accordance with applicable regulations, including studies conducted in
accordance with good laboratory practice, or GLP, requirements;

+  Completion of the manufacture, under current Good Manufacturing Practices, or cGMP, conditions, of the drug
substance and drug product that the sponsor intends to use in human clinical trials along with required analytical and
stability testing;

«  Submission to the FDA of an investigational new drug application, or IND, which must become effective before
clinical trials may begin;




« Approval by an institutional review board, or IRB, or independent ethics committee at each clinical trial site before
each trial may be initiated,

»  Performance of adequate and well-controlled clinical trials in accordance with applicable IND regulations, good
clinical practice, or GCP, requirements and other clinical trial-related regulations to establish the safety and efficacy
of the investigational product for each proposed indication;

+  Submission to the FDA of a New Drug Application, or NDA,
«  Payment of user fees for FDA review of the NDA;
= Adetermination by the FDA within 60 days of its receipt of an NDA, to accept the filing for review;

»  Satisfactory completion of one or more FDA pre-approval inspections of the manufacturing facility or facilities where
the drug will be produced to assess compliance with cGMP requirements to assure that the facilities, methods and
controls are adequate to preserve the drug’s identity, strength, quality and purity;

+  Potentially, satisfactory completion of FDA audit of the clinical trial sites that generated the data in support of the
NDA; and

+  FDA review and approval of the NDA, including consideration of the views of any FDA advisory committee, prior to
any commercial marketing or sale of the drug in the United States.

Preclinical Studies and Clinical Trials for Drugs

Before testing any drug in humans, the product candidate must undergo rigorous preclinical testing. Preclinical studies
include laboratory evaluations of drug chemistry, formulation and stability, as well as in vitro and animal studies to assess
safety and in some cases to establish the rationale for therapeutic use. The conduct of preclinical studies is subject to federal
and state regulation, including GLP requirements for safety/toxicology studies. The results of the preclinical studies, together
with manufacturing information and analytical data, must be submitted to the FDA as part of an IND. An IND is a request for
authorization from the FDA to administer an investigational product to humans and must become effective before clinical
trials may begin. Some long-term preclinical testing may continue after the IND is submitted. The IND automatically becomes
effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless the FDA, within the 30-day time period, raises concerns or questions about
the conduct of the clinical trial, including concerns that human research subjects will be exposed to unreasonable health risks,
and imposes a full or partial clinical hold. FDA must notify the sponsor of the grounds for the hold and any identified
deficiencies must be resolved before the clinical trial can begin. Submission of an IND may result in the FDA not allowing
clinical trials to commence or not allowing clinical trials to commence on the terms originally specified in the IND. A clinical
hold can also be imposed once a trial has already begun, thereby halting the trial until the deficiencies articulated by FDA are
corrected.

The clinical stage of development involves the administration of the product candidate to healthy volunteers or patients
under the supervision of qualified investigators, who generally are physicians not employed by or under the trial sponsor’s
control, in accordance with GCP requirements, which include the requirements that all research subjects provide their
informed consent for their participation in any clinical trial. Clinical trials are conducted under protocols detailing, among
other things, the objectives of the clinical trial, administration procedures, subject selection and exclusion criteria and the
parameters and criteria to be used in monitoring safety and evaluating effectiveness. Each protocol, and any subsequent
amendments to the protocol, must be submitted to the FDA as part of the IND. Furthermore, each clinical trial must be
reviewed and approved by an IRB for each institution at which the clinical trial will be conducted to ensure that the risks to
individuals participating in the clinical trials are minimized and are reasonable compared to the anticipated benefits. The IRB
also approves the informed consent form that must be provided to each clinical trial subject or his or her legal representative
and must monitor the clinical trial until completed. The FDA, the IRB, or the sponsor may suspend or discontinue a clinical
trial at any time on various grounds, including a finding that the subjects are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.
There also are requirements governing the reporting of ongoing clinical trials and completed clinical trials to public registries.
Information about clinical trials, including results for clinical trials other than Phase 1 investigations, must be submitted within
specific timeframes for publication on www.ClinicalTrials.gov, a clinical trials database maintained by the National Institutes
of Health,
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A sponsor who wishes to conduct a clinical trial outside of the United States may, but need not, obtain FDA authorization
to conduct the clinical trial under an IND. If a foreign clinical trial is not conducted under an IND, FDA will nevertheless
accept the results of the study in support of an NDA if the study was conducted in accordance with GCP requirements, and the
FDA is able to validate the data through an onsite inspection if deemed necessary.

Clinical trials to evaluate therapeutic indications to support NDAs for marketing approval are typically conducted in three

sequential phases, which may overlap.

+  Phase 1—Phase 1 clinical trials involve initial introduction of the investigational product into healthy human
volunteers or patients with the target disease or condition. These studies are typically designed to test the safety,
dosage tolerance, absorption, metabolism and distribution of the investigational product in humans, excretion, the
side effects associated with increasing doses, and, if possible, to gain early evidence of effectiveness.

+  Phase 2—Phase 2 clinical trials typically involve administration of the investigational product to a limited patient
population with a specified disease or condition to evaluate the drug’s potential efficacy, to determine the optimal
dosages and administration schedule and to identify possible adverse side effects and safety risks.

+  Phase 3—Phase 3 clinical trials typically involve administration of the investigational product to an expanded patient
population to further evaluate dosage, to provide statistically significant evidence of clinical efficacy and to further
test for safety, generally at multiple geographically dispersed clinical trial sites. These clinical trials are intended to
establish the overall risk/benefit ratio of the investigational product and to provide an adequate basis for product
approval and physician labeling.

Post-approval trials, sometimes referred to as Phase 4 clinical trials or post-marketing studies, may be conducted after
initial marketing approval. These trials are used to gain additional experience from the treatment of patients in the intended
therapeutic indication and are commonly intended to generate additional safety data regarding use of the product in a clinical
setting. In certain instances, the FDA may mandate the performance of Phase 4 clinical trials as a condition of NDA approval.

Progress reports detailing the results of the clinical trials, among other information, must be submitted at least annually to
the FDA. Written IND safety reports must be submitted to the FDA and the investigators fifteen days after the trial sponsor
determines the information qualifies for reporting for serious and unexpected suspected adverse events, findings from other
studies or animal or in vitro testing that suggest a significant risk for human volunteers and any clinically important increase in
the rate of a serious suspected adverse reaction over that listed in the protocol or investigator brochure. The sponsor must also
notify the FDA of any unexpected fatal or life-threatening suspected adverse reaction as soon as possible but in no case later
than seven calendar days after the sponsor’s initial receipt of the information.

Concurrent with clinical trials, companies usually complete additional animal studies and must also develop additional
information about the chemistry and physical characteristics of the product candidate and finalize a process for manufacturing
the drug product in commercial quantities in accordance with cGMP requirements. The manufacturing process must be
capable of consistently producing quality batches of the product candidate and manufacturers must develop, among other
things, methods for testing the identity, strength, quality and purity of the final drug product. In addition, appropriate
packaging must be selected and tested, and stability studies must be conducted to demonstrate that the product candidate does
not undergo unacceptable deterioration over its shelf life.

US Marketing Approval for Drugs

Assuming successful completion of the required clinical testing, the results of the preclinical studies and clinical trials,
together with detailed information relating to the product’s chemistry, manufacture, controls and proposed labeling, among
other things, are submitted to the FDA as part of an NDA package requesting approval to market the product for one or more
indications. An NDA is a request for approval to market a new drug for one or more specified indications and must contain
proof of the drug’s safety and efficacy for the requested indications. The marketing application is required to include both
negative and ambiguous results of preclinical studies and clinical trials, as well as positive findings. Data may come from
company-sponsored clinical trials intended to test the safety and efficacy of a product’s use or from a number of alternative
sources, including studies initiated by investigators. To support marketing approval, the data submitted must be sufficient in
quality and quantity to establish the safety and efficacy of the investigational product to the satisfaction of the FDA. The FDA
must approve an NDA before a drug may be marketed in the United States.

The FDA reviews all submitted NDAs before it accepts them for filing and may request additional information rather than
accepting the NDA for filing. The FDA must make a decision on accepting an NDA for filing within 60 days of receipt, and
such decision could include a refusal to file by the FDA. Once the submission is accepted for filing, the FDA begins an in-
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depth substantive review of the NDA. The FDA reviews an NDA to determine, among other things, whether the drug is safe
and effective for the indications sought and whether the facility in which it is manufactured, processed, packaged or held
meets standards designed to assure the product’s continued safety, quality and purity. Under the goals and policies agreed to
by the FDA under the Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, the FDA targets 10 months, from the filing date, in which
to complete its initial review of a new molecular entity NDA and respond to the applicant, and six months from the filing date
of a new molecular entity NDA for priority review. The FDA does not always meet its PDUFA goal dates for standard or
priarity NDAs, and the review process is often extended by FDA requests for additional information or clarification.

Further, under PDUFA, as amended, each NDA must be accompanied by a substantial user fee. The FDA adjusts the
PDUFA user fees on an annual basis. Fee waivers or reductions are available in certain circumstances, including a waiver of
the application fee for the first application filed by a small business. In addition, no user fees are assessed on NDAs for
products designated as orphan drugs, unless the product also includes a non-orphan indication.

The FDA also may require submission of a Risk Evaluation and Mitigation Strategy, or REMS, if it believes that a REMS
is necessary to ensure that the benefits of the drug outweigh its risks. A REMS can include use of risk evaluation and
mitigation strategies like medication guides, physician communication plans, assessment plans, and/or elements to assure safe
use, such as restricted distribution methods, patient registries, or other risk-minimization tools.

The FDA may refer an application for a novel drug to an advisory committee. An advisory committee is a panel of
independent experts, including clinicians and other scientific experts, which reviews, evaluates and provides a
recommendation as to whether the application should be approved and under what conditions. The FDA is not bound by the
recommendations of an advisory committee, but it considers such recommendations carefully when making decisions.

Before approving an NDA, the FDA typically will inspect the facility or facilities where the product is manufactured. The
FDA will not approve an application unless it determines that the manufacturing processes and facilities are in compliance
with cGMP requirements and are adequate to assure consistent production of the product within required specifications. In
addition, before approving an NDA, the FDA may inspect one or more clinical trial sites to assure compliance with GCP and
other requirements and the integrity of the clinical data submitted to the FDA.

After evaluating the NDA and all related information, including the advisory committee recommendation, if any, and
inspection reports regarding the manufacturing facilities and clinical trial sites, the FDA may issue an approval letter, or, in
some cases, a complete response letter. A complete response letter generally contains a statement of specific conditions that
must be met in order to secure final approval of the NDA and may require additional clinical or preclinical testing in order for
the FDA to reconsider the application. Even with submission of this additional information, the FDA ultimately may decide
that the application does not satisfy the regulatory criteria for approval. If and when those conditions have been met to the
FDA’s satisfaction, the FDA will typically issue an approval letter. An approval letter authorizes commercial marketing of the
drug with specific prescribing information for specific indications.

Even if the FDA approves a product, depending on the specific risks to be addressed it may limit the approved indications
for use of the product, require that contraindications, warnings or precautions be included in the product labeling, require that
post-approval studies, including Phase 4 clinical trials, be conducted to further assess a drug’s safety after approval, require
testing and surveillance programs to monitor the product after commercialization, or impose other conditions, including
distribution and use restrictions or other risk management mechanisms under a REMS, which can materially affect the
potential market and profitability of the product. The FDA may prevent or limit further marketing of a product based on the
results of post-marketing studies or surveillance programs. After approval, some types of changes to the approved product,
such as adding new indications, manufacturing changes, and additional labeling claims, are subject to further testing
requirements and FDA review and approval.

Expedited Development and Review Programs for Drugs

The FDA maintains several programs intended to facilitate and expedite development and review of new drugs to address
unmet medical needs in the treatment of serious or life-threatening diseases or conditions. These programs include Fast Track
designation, Breakthrough Therapy designation, Priority Review and Accelerated Approval, and the purpose of these
programs is to either expedite the development or review of important new drugs to get them to patients more quickly than
standard FDA review timelines typically permit.

A drug is eligible for Fast Track designation if it is intended to treat a serious or life-threatening disease or condition and

demonstrates the potential to address unmet medical needs for such disease or condition. Fast Track designation provides
increased opportunities for sponsor interactions with the FDA during preclinical and clinical development, in addition to the
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potential for rolling review once a marketing application is filed. Rolling review means that the agency may review portions of
the marketing application before the sponsor submits the complete application. In addition, a drug may be eligible for
Breakthrough Therapy designation if it is intended to treat a serious or life-threatening disease or condition and preliminary
clinical evidence indicates that the drug may demonstrate substantial improvement over existing therapies on one or more
clinically significant endpoints, such as substantial treatment effects observed early in clinical development. Breakthrough
Therapy designation provides all the features of Fast Track designation in addition to intensive guidance on an efficient drug
development program, and FDA organizational commitment to expedited development, including involvement of senior
managers and experienced review staff in a cross-disciplinary review, where appropriate.

Any product submitted to the FDA for approval, including a product with Fast Track or Breakthrough Therapy
designation, may also be eligible for additional FDA programs intended to expedite the review and approval process, including
Priority Review designation and Accelerated Approval. A product is eligible for Priority Review designation, once an NDA or
BLA is submitted, if the drug that is the subject of the marketing application has the potential to provide a significant
improvement in safety or effectiveness in the treatment, diagnosis or prevention of a serious disease or condition. Under
priority review, the FDA’s goal date to take action on the marketing application is six months compared to ten months for a
standard review. Products are eligible for Accelerated Approval if they can be shown to have an effect on a surrogate endpoint
that is reasonably likely to predict clinical benefit, or an effect on an intermediate clinical endpoint that can be measured
earlier than an effect on irreversible morbidity or mortality, which is reasonably likely to predict an effect on irreversible
morbidity or mortality or other clinical benefit, taking into account the severity, rarity, or prevalence of the condition and the
availability or lack of alternative treatments.

Accelerated Approval is usually contingent on a sponsor’s agreement to conduct additional post-approval studies to verify
and describe the product’s clinical benefit. Under the Food and Drug Omnibus Reform Act of 2022, or FDORA, the FDA is
permitted to require, as appropriate, that such trials be underway prior to approval or within a specific time period after the
date of approval for a product granted accelerated approval. Sponsors are also required to send updates to the FDA every 180
days on the status of such studies, including progress toward enrollment targets, and the FDA must promptly post this
information publicly. Under FDORA, the FDA has increased authority for expedited procedures to withdraw approval of a
drug or indication approved under accelerated approval if, for example, the sponsor fails to conduct such studies in a timely
manner and send the necessary updates to the FDA, or if a confirmatory trial fails to verify the predicted clinical benefit of the
product. In addition, the FDA generally requires, as a condition for Accelerated Approval, that all advertising and promotional
materials intended for dissemination or publication within 120 days of marketing approval be submitted to the agency for
review during the pre-approval review period. After the 120-day period has passed, all advertising and promaotional materials
must be submitted at least 30 days prior to the intended time of initial dissemination or publication.

Even if a product qualifies for one or more of these programs, the FDA may later decide that the product no longer meets
the conditions for qualification or the time period for FDA review or approval may not be shortened. Furthermore, Fast Track
designation, Breakthrough Therapy designation, Priority Review and Accelerated Approval do not change the scientific or
medical standards for approval or the quality of evidence necessary to support approval, though they may expedite the
development or review process.

US Post-Approval Requirements for Drugs

Drugs manufactured or distributed pursuant to FDA approvals are subject to continuing regulation by the FDA, including,
among other things, requirements relating to recordkeeping, periodic reporting, product sampling and distribution, reporting of
adverse experiences with the product, complying with promotion and advertising requirements, which include restrictions on
promoting products for unapproved uses or patient populations (known as “off-label use™) and limitations on industry-
sponsored scientific and educational activities, Although physicians may prescribe legally available products for off-label uses,
manufacturers may not market or promote such uses. The FDA and other agencies actively enforce the laws and regulations
prohibiting the promotion of off-label uses, and a company that is found to have improperly promoted off-label uses may be
subject to significant liability, including investigation by federal and state authorities, Prescription drug promotional materials
must be submitted to the FDA in conjunction with their first use or first publication. Further, if there are any modifications to
the drug, including changes in indications, labeling or manufacturing processes or facilities, the applicant may be required to
submit and obtain FDA approval of a new NDA or NDA supplement, which may require the development of additional data or
preclinical studies and clinical trials.

The FDA may impose a number of post-approval requirements as a condition of approval of an NDA. For example, the
FDA may require post-market testing, including Phase 4 clinical trials, and surveillance to further assess and monitor the
product’s safety and effectiveness after commercialization. In addition, drug manufacturers and other entities involved in the
manufacture and distribution of approved drugs, and those supplying products, ingredients, and components of them, are
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required to register their establishments with the FDA and certain state agencies and are subject to periodic unannounced
inspections by the FDA and certain state agencies for compliance with ongoing regulatory requirements, including cGMPs,
which impose certain procedural and documentation requirements. Failure to comply with statutory and regulatory
requirements may subject a manufacturer to legal or regulatory action, such as warning letters, suspension of manufacturing,
product seizures, injunctions, civil penalties or criminal prosecution. There is also a continuing, annual prescription drug
product program user fee.

Later discovery of previously unknown problems with a product, including adverse events of unanticipated severity or
freguency, or with manufacturing processes, or failure to comply with regulatory requirements, may result in revisions to the
approved labeling to add new safety information, requirements for post-market studies or clinical trials to assess new safety
risks, or imposition of distribution or other restrictions under a REMS. Other potential consequences include, among other
things:

+  Restrictions on the marketing or manufacturing of the product, complete withdrawal of the product from the market

or product recalls;

= The issuance of safety alerts, Dear Healthcare Provider letters, press releases or other communications containing
warnings or other safety information about the product;

«  Fines, warning letters or holds on post-approval clinical trials;

«  Refusal of the FDA to approve applications or supplements to approved applications, or suspension or revocation of
product approvals;

«  Product seizure or detention, or refusal to permit the import or export of products;
« Injunctions or the imposition of civil or criminal penalties; and

= Consent decrees, corporate integrity agreements, debarment or exclusion from federal healthcare programs; or
mandated modification of promotional materials and labeling and issuance of corrective information.

Controlled Substances

The federal Controlled Substances Act of 1970, or CSA, and its implementing regulations establish a “closed system™ of
regulations for controlled substances. The CSA imposes registration, security, recordkeeping and reporting, storage,
manufacturing, distribution, importation and other requirements under the oversight of the DEA. The DEA is the federal
agency responsible for regulating controlled substances, and requires those individuals or entities that manufacture, import,
export, distribute, research, or dispense controlled substances to comply with the regulatory requirements in order to prevent
the diversion of controlled substances to illicit channels of commerce.

The DEA categorizes controlled substances into one of five schedules — Schedule I, 11, 111, IV or VY — with varying
qualifications for listing in each schedule. Schedule | substances by definition have a high potential for abuse, have no
currently accepted medical use in treatment in the United States and lack accepted safety for use under medical supervision.
Pharmaceutical products having a currently accepted medical use that are otherwise approved for marketing may be listed as
Schedule 11, 111, IV or V substances, with Schedule 11 substances presenting the highest potential for abuse and physical or
psychological dependence, and Schedule V substances presenting the lowest relative potential for abuse and dependence.
COMP360, if approved in the United States, will require rescheduling by the DEA before it can be marketed.

Facilities that manufacture, distribute, import or export any controlled substance must register annually with the DEA.
The DEA registration is specific to the particular location, activity(ies) and controlled substance schedule(s).

The DEA inspects all manufacturing facilities to review security, recordkeeping, reporting and handling prior to issuing a
controlled substance registration. The specific security requirements vary by the type of business activity and the schedule and
quantity of controlled substances handled. The most stringent requirements apply to manufacturers of Schedule | and Schedule
11 substances. Required security measures commonly include background checks on employees and physical control of
controlled substances through storage in approved vaults, safes and cages, and through use of alarm systems and surveillance
cameras. Once registered, manufacturing facilities must maintain records documenting the manufacture, receipt and
distribution of all controlled substances. Manufacturers must submit periodic reports to the DEA of the distribution of
Schedule 1 and 11 controlled substances, Schedule 111 narcotic substances, and other designated substances. Registrants must
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also report any controlled substance thefts or significant losses, and must obtain authorization to destroy or dispose of
controlled substances. Imports of Schedule | and 11 controlled substances for commercial purposes are generally restricted to
substances not already available from a domestic supplier or where there is not adequate competition among domestic
suppliers. In addition to an importer or exporter registration, importers and exporters must obtain a permit for every import or
export of a Schedule | and 11 substance or Schedule 111, IV and V narcotic, and submit import or export declarations for
Schedule 111, IV and V non-narcotics. In some cases, Schedule 111 non-narcotic substances may be subject to the import/export
permit requirement, if necessary, to ensure that the United States complies with its obligations under international drug control
treaties.

For drugs manufactured in the United States, the DEA establishes annually an aggregate quota for the amount of
substances within Schedules | and 11 that may be manufactured or produced in the United States based on the DEA s estimate
of the quantity needed to meet legitimate medical, scientific, research and industrial needs. The quotas apply equally to the
manufacturing of the active pharmaceutical ingredient and production of dosage forms. The DEA may adjust aggregate
production quotas a few times per year, and individual manufacturing or procurement quotas from time to time during the
year, although the DEA has substantial discretion in whether or not to make such adjustments for individual companies.

The states also maintain separate controlled substance laws and regulations, including licensing, recordkeeping, security,
distribution, and dispensing requirements. State authorities, including boards of pharmacy, regulate use of controlled
substances in each state. Failure to maintain compliance with applicable requirements, particularly as manifested in the loss or
diversion of controlled substances, can result in enforcement action that could have a material adverse effect on our business,
operations and financial condition. The DEA may seek civil penalties, refuse to renew necessary registrations, or initiate
proceedings to revoke those registrations. In certain circumstances, violations could lead to criminal prosecution.

U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, to which we are subject, prohibits corporations and individuals from engaging in
certain activities to obtain or retain business or to influence a person working in an official capacity. It is illegal to pay, offer to
pay or authorize the payment of anything of value to any foreign government official, government staff member, political
party or political candidate in an attempt to obtain or retain business or to otherwise influence a person working in an official
capacity.

Regulation and Procedures Governing Approval of Medicinal Products in the European Union

In order to market any product outside of the United States, a company must also comply with numerous and varying
regulatory requirements of other countries and jurisdictions regarding quality, safety and efficacy and governing, among other
things, clinical trials, marketing authorization, commercial sales and distribution of products. Whether or not it obtains FDA
approval for a product, an applicant will need to obtain the necessary approvals by the comparable foreign regulatory
authorities before it can initiate clinical trials or marketing of the product in those countries or jurisdictions. Specifically, the
process governing approval of medicinal products in the EU generally follows the same lines as in the United States, although
the approval of a medicinal product in the United States is no guarantee of approval of the same product in the EU, either at all
or within the same timescale as approval may be granted in the United States. It entails satisfactory completion of
pharmaceutical development, non-clinical studies and adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and
efficacy of the medicinal product for each proposed indication. It also requires the submission to relevant competent
authorities for clinical trials authorization and subsequently of a marketing authorization application, or MAA, before the
product can be marketed and sold in the EU or any of its Member States. If we fail to comply with applicable requirements, we
may be subject to withdrawal of regulatory approvals, product recalls, seizure of products, operating restrictions and criminal
prosecution.

Clinical Trial Approval

In the EU, an applicant for autharization of a clinical trial must obtain prior approval from the national competent
authority of the EU Member States in which the clinical trial is to be conducted. Furthermore, the applicant may only start a
clinical trial at a specific study site after the relevant independent ethics committee has issued a favorable opinion. In April
2014, the EU adopted the new Clinical Trials Regulation (EU) No 536/2014, which replaced the previous Clinical Trials
Directive 2001/20/EC on January 31, 2022 and overhauls the system of approvals for clinical trials in the EU. Specifically, the
new legislation, which is directly applicable in all EU Member States (meaning that no national implementing legislation in
each EU Member State is required), aims at simplifying and streamlining the approval of clinical trials in the EU. For instance,
the new Clinical Trials Regulation provides for a streamlined application procedure via a single-entry point (instead of
submitting applications separately to each national competent authority and ethics committee in the Member States in which
the trial will be conducted) and strictly defined deadlines for the assessment of clinical trial applications. The Clinical Trials
Regulation also makes it more efficient for EU Member States to evaluate and authorize applications together, via the Clinical
Trials Information System. The transitory provisions of the new Clinical Trials Regulation provide that, by January 31, 2025,
all ongoing clinical trials must have transitioned to the new EU Clinical Trials Regulation.
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Marketing Authorization

To obtain a marketing authorization for a medicinal product in the European Economic Area (comprised of the EU
member states plus Norway, Iceland and Liechtenstein), or EEA, an applicant must submit an MAA, either under a centralized
procedure administered by the EMA or one of the procedures administered by competent authorities in the EU Member States
(decentralized procedure, national procedure, or mutual recognition procedure). A marketing authorization may be granted
only to an applicant established in the EEA.

The centralized procedure provides for the grant of a single marketing authorization by the European Commission that is
valid throughout the EEA and is mandatory for certain products, including products with a new active substance indicated for
the treatment of HIV, AIDS, cancer, neurodegenerative disorders, diabetes, auto-immune and other immune dysfunctions, and
viral diseases. For those products for which the use of the centralized procedure is not mandatory, pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 726/2004, applicants may elect to use the centralized procedure where either the product contains a new active substance
indicated for the treatment of diseases other than those on the mandatory list, where the applicant can show that the product
constitutes a significant therapeutic, scientific or technical innovation, or for which a centralized authorization would be in the
interest of public health. Our investigational COMP360 psilocybin therapy, as a new active substance indicated for the
treatment of treatment-resistant depression, will have the option to be filed through the centralized procedure.

Under the centralized procedure, the Committee for Medicinal Products for Human use, or the CHMP, which is the
EMA’s committee that is responsible for human medicines, is responsible for conducting the assessment of whether a
medicine meets the required quality, safety and efficacy requirements, and whether it has a positive risk/benefit profile. Under
the centralized procedure, the maximum timeframe for the evaluation of an MAA is 210 days from the receipt of a valid
MAA, excluding clock stops when additional information or written or oral explanation is to be provided by the applicant in
response to questions asked by the CHMP. Clock stops may extend the timeframe of evaluation of an MAA considerably
beyond 210 days. Where the CHMP gives a positive opinion, it provides the opinion together with supporting documentation
to the European Commission, who make the final decision to grant a marketing authorization. Within 67 days from the date of
the CHMP opinion, the European Commission will adopt its final decision on the MAA. Accelerated evaluation may be
granted by the CHMP in exceptional cases, when a medicinal product is of major interest from the point of view of public
health and, in particular, from the viewpoint of therapeutic innovation. If the CHMP accepts such a request, the timeframe of
210 days for assessment will be reduced to 150 days (excluding clock stops), but it is possible that the CHMP may revert to
the standard time limit for the centralized procedure if it determines that the application is no longer appropriate to conduct an
accelerated assessment.

Now that the UK (which comprises Great Britain and Northern Ireland) has left the EU, Great Britain is no longer be
covered by centralized marketing authorizations (under the Northern Ireland Protocol, centralized marketing authorizations
continue to be recognized in Northern Ireland). All medicinal products with a current centralized marketing authorization were
automatically converted to Great Britain marketing authorizations on January 1, 2021. Until December 31, 2023, the MHRA
may rely on a decision taken by the European Commission on the approval of a new marketing authorization in the centralized
procedure, in order to more quickly grant a new Great Britain marketing authorization. A separate application will, however,
still be required. On January 24, 2023, the MHRA announced that a new international recognition framework will be put in
place from January 1, 2024, which will have regard to decisions on the approval of marketing authorizations made by the
EMA and certain other regulators.

The decentralized marketing authorization procedure allows an applicant to apply for simultaneous authorization in more
than one EU Member State of medicinal products that have not yet been authorized in any EU Member State and that do not
fall within the mandatory scope of the centralized procedure.

The mutual recognition procedure is based on the acceptance by the competent authorities of the EU Member States of the
marketing authorization of a medicinal product by the competent authorities of another EU Member State. The holder of a
national marketing authorization may submit an application to the competent authority of an EU Member State requesting that
this authority recognize the marketing authorization delivered by the competent authority of another EU Member State.

PRIME Scheme
In March 20186, the EMA launched a scheme that is intended to reinforce early dialogue with, and regulatory support
from, the EMA in order to stimulate innovation, o